NEW ISSUE—Book-Entry Only

RATING: S&P: A/A-1 (See "Rating" herein)

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming compliance by the Agency and the Borrower with their respective tax covenants described herein, interest on the Bonds (as defined herein) is not includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for purposes of federal income taxation. Interest on the Bonds will not constitute a specific preference item for the purposes of computation of the alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations, although interest on the Bonds will be taken into account in computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations. The Act provides that the Bonds and the income therefrom shall at all times be exempt from taxation in the State of Vermont except for transfer and estate taxes. See "Tax Exemption" herein.

VERMONT EDUCATIONAL AND HEALTH BUILDINGS FINANCING AGENCY

\$20,315,000 VARIABLE RATE DEMAND HOSPITAL REVENUE BONDS (GIFFORD MEDICAL CENTER PROJECT) 2006 SERIES A

Dated: Date of Delivery

Due: October 1, 2036

The Bonds will be issued as fully registered Bonds and, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of the Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"). DTC will act as Securities Depository for the Bonds. Purchases of beneficial interests in the Bonds will be made in book entry form only, in the denomination of \$100,000, or any whole multiple of \$5,000 in excess thereof. Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their ownership interest in the Bonds. So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds, as nominee of DTC, references herein to the Bondholders or registered owners of the Bonds shall mean Cede & Co. as Bond shall not mean the beneficial owners of the Bonds. See "BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM" herein. Principal and interest will be paid by Chittenden Trust Company, Burlington, Vermont, as Bond Trustee (the "Bond Trustee"). So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the registered owner, such payments will be made directly to Cede & Co. Disbursement of such payments to the DTC Participants (as defined herein) is the responsibility of DTC, and disbursements of such payments to the beneficial owners is the responsibility of the DTC Participants and the Indirect Participants, as more fully described herein.

The Bonds are payable solely from the sources hereafter described and are issued pursuant to the Trust Agreement. Payment of the principal and Purchase Price (as defined herein) of and up to 35 days' interest on the Bonds (at a maximum rate of interest not to exceed 10% per annum) is also secured by an irrevocable direct pay letter of credit issued by



The Credit Facility, which will expire at the earlier of June 1, 2009 or the occurrence of certain specified events, unless otherwise extended or renewed, will permit the Bond Trustee to draw an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and up to 35 days' accrued interest on the Bonds (at a maximum rate of interest not to exceed 10% per annum) to be used (1) to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due and (2) to pay the Purchase Price of Bonds tendered by the holders thereof pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

From and after the day of the initial authentication and delivery of the Bonds, the Bonds will bear interest at the Daily Rate established by A.G. Edwards & Sons, Inc., as Remarketing Agent for the Bonds, until the interest rate is converted, if ever, to a Weekly Rate, an Extended Rate or a Fixed Rate. Interest on the Bonds will initially be payable on the first Business Day of each month and shall be calculated based upon the actual number of days elapsed. The initial Interest Payment Date for the Bonds is July 3, 2006.

UPON A TENDER OF BONDS, OWNERS OF BONDS WHO FAIL TO DELIVER THEIR BONDS TO THE TENDER AGENT ON A TIMELY BASIS WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE TENDERED SUCH BONDS FOR PURCHASE. THE BONDS ARE SUBJECT TO OPTIONAL AND MANDATORY REDEMPTION PRIOR TO MATURITY IN EACH CASE IN THE MANNER AND AT THE TIMES SET FORTH HEREIN.

THE BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AGENCY AND ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM PAYMENTS TO BE MADE BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE BORROWER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT (AS DEFINED BELOW) AND THE TRUST AGREEMENT, THE CREDIT FACILITY AND FROM CERTAIN OTHER FUNDS, ALL AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN. THE AGENCY HAS NO TAXING POWER. NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OF VERMONT OR OF ANY MUNICIPALITY OR POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF VERMONT IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS.

The Agency will enter into a loan agreement with the Borrower, under which the Agency will agree to lend to the Borrower the proceeds of the Bonds, and in consideration of such loan, the Borrower will agree to make payments to the Bond Trustee (the "Loan Repayments") in such amounts and at such times as are required to provide for timely payment of the principal or Purchase Price, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds. The obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement are evidenced by an obligation issued pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture, as described in more detail herein. Reference is made to this Official Statement for relevant security provisions of the Bonds.

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Agency will assign certain of the Agency's rights under the Loan Agreement, including all its rights, title and interest in and to the Loan Repayments (subject to the reservation of certain rights of the Agency, including its rights to notices, payment of certain expenses and indemnity) and will assign all of its rights, title and interest in and to any and all moneys and securities in the Bond Fund (as defined herein) to the Bond Trustee.

PRICE 100%

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued and received by the Underwriter, subject to prior sale, withdrawal or modification of the offer without notice and subject to the approval of legality by Sidley Austin LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Agency by its counsel, Deppman & Foley, P.C., Middlebury, Vermont, for the Bank by its counsel, Murphy Sullivan Kronk, Burlington, Vermont, and its co-counsel, Calfee, Halter & Griswold LLP, Cleveland, Ohio, for the Borrower by its counsel, McKee, Guiliani & Cleveland, P.C., Montpelier, Vermont, and for the Underwriter, by its counsel, Burak Anderson & Melloni, PLC, Burlington, Vermont. It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery in definitive form in New York, New York on or about June 1, 2006.



No dealer, broker, salesman or other person been authorized by the Vermont Educational and Health Buildings Financing Agency (the "Agency"), Gifford Medical Center, Inc. (the "Borrower"), Chittenden Trust Company (the "Bond Trustee"), KeyBank National Association (the "Bank") or A.G. Edwards & Sons, Inc. (the "Underwriter") to give any information or to make any representations with respect to the Bonds other than those contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing. Certain information contained herein has been obtained from the Borrower and other sources that are believed to be reliable, but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, and is not to be construed to be the representation of the Agency or the Underwriter. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the parties referred to above since the date hereof. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as a part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of the transactions contemplated herein, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND THE TRUST AGREEMENT AND THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE (AS DEFINED HEREIN) HAVE NOT BEEN QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939, AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON THE EXEMPTIONS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACTS.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVER ALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

The order and placement of materials in this Official Statement, including the Appendices, are not to be deemed to be a determination of relevance, materiality or importance, and this Official Statement, including the Appendices, must be considered in its entirety.

IN MAKING ANY INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY. FURTHERMORE, THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR DETERMINED THE ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS SHOULD RELY SOLELY ON THE BANK AND THE CREDIT FACILITY, AND SHOULD NOT RELY ON THE CREDIT OR ASSETS OF THE BORROWER. EXCEPT FOR A VERY LIMITED DESCRIPTION OF THE BORROWER CONTAINED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, NO INFORMATION WITH RESPECT TO THE BORROWER (FINANCIAL OR OTHERWISE) IS INCLUDED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, AND THE BORROWER MAKES NO REPRESENTATION HEREIN CONCERNING ITS PRESENT OR FUTURE FINANCIAL CONDITION. POTENTIAL INVESTORS SHOULD BASE THEIR INVESTMENT DECISIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS SOLELY UPON THE CREDIT OF THE PROVIDER OF THE CREDIT FACILITY SECURING THE BONDS, INITIALLY, KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION. THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT SHOULD NOT BE RELIED UPON IN DETERMINING WHETHER TO PURCHASE BONDS THAT ARE NOT IN A VARIABLE RATE PERIOD AND SECURED BY THE CREDIT FACILITY.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

INTRODUCTION	1
THE AGENCY	5
DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS	8
BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM	
SECURITY FOR THE BONDS	
THE BANK AND THE CREDIT FACILITY	
THE BORROWER	
ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS	
BONDHOLDERS' RISKS	
TAX EXEMPTION	40
LEGALITY OF BONDS FOR INVESTMENT	41
STATE NOT LIABLE ON BONDS	
COVENANT BY THE STATE	42
RATING	42
NO LITIGATION	
APPROVAL OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS	
FINANCIAL ADVISORS	
UNDERWRITING	43
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE	44
OTHER MATTERS	44
APPENDIX A - INFORMATION CONCERNING THE BANK	A-1
APPENDIX B - DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS AND SUMMARIES OF TH	IE LOAN
AGREEMENT AND THE TRUST AGREEMENT AND COPY OF THE MASTER	TRUST
INDENTURE	B-1
APPENDIX C - PROPOSED FORM OF LEGAL OPINION	C-1

OFFICIAL STATEMENT

Relating To

VERMONT EDUCATIONAL AND HEALTH BUILDINGS FINANCING AGENCY

\$20,315,000 VARIABLE RATE DEMAND HOSPITAL REVENUE BONDS (GIFFORD MEDICAL CENTER PROJECT) 2006 SERIES A

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, including the cover page and appendices, sets forth certain information in connection with the issuance and sale by the Vermont Educational and Health Buildings Financing Agency (the "Agency"), a public instrumentality of the State of Vermont (the "State"), of its Variable Rate Demand Hospital Revenue Bonds (Gifford Medical Center Project) 2006 Series A in the aggregate principal amount of \$20,315,000 (the "Bonds"). The Bonds are authorized to be issued pursuant to Title 16, Chapter 131, Section 3851-3862 of the Vermont Statutes Annotated, as amended (the "Act").

The Bonds will be issued under a trust agreement, dated as of May 1, 2006 (the "Trust Agreement"), between the Agency and Chittenden Trust Company, Burlington, Vermont, as bond trustee (the "Bond Trustee"), and a resolution of the Agency adopted on May 18, 2006. The Bond Trustee is also the Bond Registrar for the Bonds. The Bonds will be dated their date of delivery, mature, subject to prior purchase or redemption, on October 1, 2036, and will initially bear interest at a Daily Rate.

The Agency will enter into a loan agreement, dated as of May 1, 2006 (the "Loan Agreement"), with Gifford Medical Center, Inc. (the "Borrower"), under which the Agency will agree to lend to the Borrower the proceeds of the Bonds and, in consideration of the loan, the Borrower will agree to make payments to the Bond Trustee (the "Loan Repayments") in such amounts and at such times as are required to provide for timely payment of the principal or purchase price of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds.

The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of providing funds to (i) currently refund the Series 2003A Bonds (as defined below), (ii) fund certain capital expenditures on behalf of the Borrower, (iii) pay a portion of the interest expected to accrue on the Bonds and (iv) pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

The Bonds are limited obligations of the Agency, payable solely from money to be received from the Borrower pursuant to the terms of the Loan Agreement and pursuant to Obligation No. 1 ("Obligation No. 1") issued to the Agency under a Master Trust Indenture (the

"Master Trust Indenture"), dated as of May 1, 2006, between the Borrower and Chittenden Trust Company, as Master Trustee (the "Master Trustee"). Upon issuance of the Bonds, the Borrower will be the only Member of the Obligated Group established pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture (the "Obligated Group"), and Obligation No. 1 securing the Bonds will constitute a joint and several obligation of the Borrower and any future Members of the Obligated Group. Payments on Obligation No. 1 will be required to be sufficient to pay the principal of or purchase price and interest and any premium on the Bonds, as due and payable. To secure the payment of the Bonds, the Agency will assign to the Bond Trustee all of its interest in Obligation No. 1 and, with certain exceptions, the Loan Agreement. Obligation No. 1 will be secured by a security interest in the Pledged Assets (as defined herein). The Master Trust Indenture permits any Person to become a member of the Obligated Group upon compliance with certain financial tests and other conditions. The Master Trust Indenture also permits, upon compliance with the terms thereof, any Member of the Obligated Group to withdraw from the Obligated Group. The Borrower has covenanted not to withdraw from the Obligated Group so long as Obligation No. 1 or Obligation No. 2 (as defined herein) is Outstanding.

In addition, the Borrower's payment obligations under the Reimbursement Agreement (as defined herein) with the Bank will be secured by Obligation No. 2, dated as of May 1, 2006 ("Obligation No. 2"). Obligation Nos. 1 and 2 will be secured <u>pari passu</u> under the Master Trust Indenture with any other Obligations (as defined herein) issued under the Master Trust Indenture from time to time.

The Agency previously issued, on behalf of the Borrower, its Variable Rate Demand Hospital Revenue Bonds (Gifford Medical Center Project) 2003 Series A (the "Series 2003A Bonds"). The proceeds of the Series 2003A Bonds were used to (1) repay certain outstanding taxable indebtedness of the Borrower, (2) fund certain capital expenditures, (3) pay a portion of the interest accruing on the Series 2003A Bonds, and (4) pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2003A Bonds. As of May 1, 2006, \$11,900,000 of the Series 2003A Bonds (including a reimbursement agreement relating to the Series 2003A Bonds) are secured by a pledge of gross receipts under a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2003 (the "2003 MTI"), between the Borrower and Chittenden Trust Company. A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used to satisfy and discharge the 2003 MTI and, upon such discharge, such security will be released.

Pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture related to the Bonds, as security for the payment of the principal of, and the redemption premium, if any, and interest on, Obligation Nos. 1 and 2, and any other Obligation issued and outstanding under the Master Trust Indenture, the Borrower has granted a security interest in the Pledged Assets to the Master Trustee. The Borrower (and all future Members of the Obligated Group) has agreed in the Master Trust Indenture that it will not create or suffer to be created or exist any Lien other than Permitted Liens upon the Pledged Assets or on other Property now owned or hereafter acquired. In addition, the Borrower (and all future members of the Obligated Group) is subject to covenants under the Master Trust Indenture containing restrictions or limitations with respect to indebtedness, consolidation or merger and transfer of assets, among others. The assets that are pledged under the Master Trust Indenture to secure Obligation Nos. 1 and 2 and any additional Obligations that may be issued on a parity with such Obligations (collectively, the "Obligations") consist of all Gross Receipts (as defined herein) of the Members of the Obligated Group, now owned or hereafter acquired, and all proceeds thereof (the "Pledged Assets"). See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS" herein.

For more information about the Borrower's obligations under the Master Trust Indenture and Obligation Nos. 1 and 2, including a description of the conditions under which additional Obligations may be issued and other Indebtedness may be incurred, conditions under which other organizations may join or withdraw from the Obligated Group and conditions under which Members of the Obligated Group may acquire or dispose of property and merge with or acquire other organizations, see Appendix B hereto.

Assignment by Agency of Loan Repayments

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Agency will, for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds, assign certain of the Agency's rights under the Loan Agreement, including all its rights, title and interest in and to the Loan Repayments (subject to the reservation of certain rights of the Agency, including its rights to notices, payment of certain expenses and indemnity), and will assign all of its rights, title and interest in and to Obligation No. 1, and to any and all moneys and securities in the Bond Fund and, until applied in payment of any item of the cost of the Project (as defined herein) to all money and securities in the Construction Fund, to the Bond Trustee.

Letter of Credit

Through June 1, 2009, payment of the principal or Purchase Price of the Bonds and up to 35 days' interest accrued thereon (at a maximum rate of interest not to exceed 10% per annum) will be supported by an irrevocable direct-pay letter of credit (the "Credit Facility") issued by KeyBank National Association (the "Bank") or by a Substitute Credit Facility or Alternate Credit Facility as provided under the Trust Agreement. See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Alternate Credit Supports" herein. The Bank is issuing the Credit Facility pursuant to a Reimbursement Agreement between the Borrower and the Bank (the "Reimbursement Agreement"), which is dated as of May 1, 2006. After June 1, 2009, the payment of the principal or Purchase Price of the Bonds and not less than thirty-five (35) days' interest thereon may be supported by the Credit Facility, as the term thereof may have been extended, or by a Substitute Credit Facility or an Alternate Credit Facility or may not be supported by any Credit Facility.

Miscellaneous

Summaries of certain provisions of the Trust Agreement and the Loan Agreement and copies of the Master Trust Indenture are included as Appendix B to this Official Statement.

The purchase of the Bonds involves a degree of risk. Prospective purchasers should carefully consider the material under the caption "BONDHOLDERS' RISKS" herein.

The Bonds will be sold and delivered by the Agency to the Underwriter, pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement by and among the Agency, the Borrower and the Underwriter. See "UNDERWRITING" herein.

Investors are cautioned that the Bonds are being marketed and sold on the basis of the credit of the Bank, as issuer of the Credit Facility, and not on the basis of the credit of the Borrower or the financial viability of the Project. No attempt is made in this Official Statement to describe the Borrower or its operations in a manner that could enable purchasers of the Bonds to assess the creditworthiness of the Borrower. Accordingly, in deciding whether to invest in the Bonds, potential investors should not rely upon the ability of the Borrower to make the required payments under the Loan Agreement in time and in amount sufficient to pay the principal of, purchase price, and interest on the Bonds.

On or prior to the date of issuance and delivery of the Bonds, interested parties may request copies of the most recent audited financial statements of the Borrower through the office of A.G. Edwards & Sons, Inc., Public Finance E260, One North Jefferson Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63103-2287.

The following summaries are not comprehensive or definitive. All descriptions of the Act, the Bonds, the Trust Agreement, the Loan Agreement, the Credit Facility, the Reimbursement Agreement, the Master Trust Indenture and the Obligations are brief summaries of certain provisions thereof and are qualified in their entirety by the definitive forms of such statute and documents. Copies of the documents are available for inspection at the principal corporate office of the Bond Trustee, Chittenden Trust Company, located at Two Burlington Square, Burlington, Vermont 05401.

Capitalized terms used in this Official Statement have the meanings specified herein and in Appendix B hereto. Terms not otherwise defined in this Official Statement have the meanings provided in the specific documents.

THE AGENCY

The Agency was created as a body corporate and politic constituting a public instrumentality of the State for the purpose of exercising the powers conferred on it by virtue of the Act. The purpose of the Agency is essentially to assist certain health care and educational facilities in the acquisition, construction, financing and refinancing of their related projects.

Agency Membership and Organization

Under the Act, the Board of the Agency consists of the Commissioner of Education of the State of Vermont, the State Treasurer, the Secretary of Administration of the State of Vermont and the Secretary of Human Services Agency, all *ex officio*, seven members appointed by the Governor of the State, with the advice and consent of the Senate, for terms of six years, and two members appointed by the Governor for terms of two years. The members of the Board annually elect a Chair, a Vice-Chair, a Treasurer and a Secretary. The day-to-day administration of the Agency is handled by the Executive Director of the Agency. The present officers and members of the Agency and their places of business or residence are as follows:

Officers

James E. Potvin, Chair Stevens, Wilcox, Baker, Potvin, Cassidy & Jakubowski Rutland, Vermont

Jeb Spaulding, Treasurer State Treasurer Montpelier, Vermont

Ex Officio Members

Jeb Spaulding State Treasurer Montpelier, Vermont

Richard Cate Commissioner of Education Montpelier, Vermont Dawn D. Bugbee, Vice Chair Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Green Mountain Power Corporation Colchester, Vermont

Peter A. Sherlock, Secretary Sherlock Investment Management Brattleboro, Vermont

Michael K. Smith Secretary of the Agency of Administration Montpelier, Vermont

Cynthia D. LaWare Secretary of the Agency of Human Services Waterbury, Vermont

Appointed and Elected Members

Dawn D. Bugbee Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Green Mountain Power Corporation Colchester, Vermont

Edward Ogorzalek Chief Financial Officer Rutland Regional Medical Center Rutland, Vermont

Neal E. Robinson Vice President for Finance St. Michael's College Colchester, Vermont

Peter A. Sherlock President Sherlock Investment Management Brattleboro, Vermont

Executive Director

Robert W. Giroux Executive Director Vermont Educational and Health Buildings Financing Agency 56 East State Street Montpelier, Vermont Kenneth Gibbons President Union Bank Morrisville, Vermont

James E. Potvin Certified Public Accountant Stevens, Wilcox, Baker, Potvin, Cassidy & Jakubowski Rutland, Vermont

Mary Pat Scarpa Vice President, Private Banking KeyBank Burlington, Vermont

Stuart Weppler Chairman of the Board Copley Health Systems Morrisville, Vermont

Deppman & Foley, P.C., Middlebury, Vermont, is general counsel to the Agency.

Sidley Austin LLP, New York, New York, is Bond Counsel to the Agency and will submit its approving opinion with regard to the legality of the Bonds in substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix C.

Public Financial Management, Inc., Boston, Massachusetts, is the financial advisor to the Agency.

Financing Programs of the Agency

The Agency was created under the Act as a body corporate and politic constituting a public instrumentality of the State of Vermont. The Act empowers the Agency, among other

things, to finance or assist in the financing of eligible institutions through financing agreements, which may include loan agreements, lease agreements, conditional sales agreements, purchase money mortgages, installment sale contracts and other types of contracts to acquire property, both real and personal, including leasehold and other interests in land, necessary or convenient for its corporate purposes; to acquire or make loans with respect to facilities, including buildings, improvements to real property, equipment, furnishings, appurtenances, utilities and other property, determined by the Agency to be necessary or convenient in the operation of any eligible institutions; to lease or to make loans with respect to such facilities to any such eligible institutions, and to issue refunding bonds of the Agency, whether the bonds to be refunded have or have not matured.

The Agency has heretofore authorized and issued numerous series of its bonds and notes, including, as previously described, bonds and notes issued on behalf of the Borrower. All outstanding Agency bonds and note issues have been authorized and issued pursuant to financing documents separate from and unrelated to the Loan Agreement and the Trust Agreement for the Bonds. Inasmuch as each series of bonds and notes of the Agency is secured separately from all other bonds and notes issued thereby, the moneys on deposit in the respective funds (including cash and securities in the respective reserve accounts) established to provide for the timely payment of the debt service requirements on the various issues of outstanding bonds and notes of the Agency cannot be commingled or be used for any purpose other than servicing the requirements of the specific series of bonds or notes in connection with which such funds were created.

The Agency under the Act may issue from time to time other bonds and notes under separate resolutions to assist certain health care and educational facilities in the acquisition, construction, financing and refinancing of their related projects payable from revenues derived by the Agency from such borrowers.

Other than with respect to the description of the Agency provided herein, and the information with respect to the Agency under "NO LITIGATION" herein, the Agency has not prepared or reviewed, and expresses no opinion with respect to the accuracy or completeness of, any of the information set forth in this Official Statement.

No recourse shall be had for any claim based on the Bonds, the Loan Agreement or the Trust Agreement against any past, present or future member, officer, employee or agent, as such, of the Agency or of any predecessor or successor corporation, either directly or through the Agency or otherwise, whether by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS

SET FORTH BELOW IS A SUMMARY OF THE BONDS AND THE TRUST AGREEMENT. SEE APPENDIX B HERETO FOR MORE INFORMATION. ALL TIMES REFERENCED BELOW ARE NEW YORK CITY TIME UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

Interest Rates

The Bonds shall be dated as of the date of delivery thereof and the payment therefor. The Bonds shall initially bear interest at the Daily Rate until converted to another Rate Period as provided in the applicable Trust Agreement; provided, however, that the Bank Rate shall be applicable to a Bond for any period prior to the date the Remarketing Agent sells such Bond pursuant to the Trust Agreement and during which time it is held by or for the account of the Bank. The Variable Rate to be applicable to the Bonds during any Rate Period shall be determined by the Remarketing Agent. The Initial Interest Rate shall be established upon the date of delivery of the Bonds.

When the Bonds are bearing interest at the Daily Rate or the Weekly Rate, the Interest Payment Date for the Bonds is the first Business Day of each calendar month.

Determination of Variable Rates

(A) The Variable Rate to be applicable to the Bonds during any Rate Period shall be determined by the Remarketing Agent and notice thereof shall be given as follows:

(1) The Daily Rate or Weekly Rate for the Rate Period in question shall be determined by the Remarketing Agent on the date or dates and at the time or times required pursuant to sections (B) and (C) below, as applicable. Notice of each such Daily Rate or Weekly Rate shall be given by telephone, e-mail or by facsimile (and, if by telephone, followed by notice in writing) by the Remarketing Agent to the Bond Trustee, not later than 5:00 p.m. on the date of determination. The Tender Agent shall inform the Holders, the Agency, the Borrower and the Bond Trustee of the applicable Daily, Weekly or Extended Rates, upon request.

(2) The Minimum Extended Rate so to be determined shall be the lowest rate of interest which, in the judgment of the Remarketing Agent on the date of determination of the Minimum Extended Rate, would cause the Bonds to have a market value equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest, on the date established for the determination of the Extended Rate. The preliminary Extended Rate or the Daily, Weekly or Extended Rate so to be determined shall be the lowest rate of interest which, in the judgment of the Remarketing Agent, would cause the Bonds to have a market value equal to the principal amount thereof (plus accrued interest) under prevailing market conditions as of the date of determination; provided that: (i) if the Remarketing Agent fails for any reason to determine or notify the Tender Agent of (a) the Minimum Extended Rate for any Extended Rate Period when required under the Trust Agreement, the Minimum Extended Rate for such Period shall be the preliminary Extended Rate, if a preliminary Extended Rate has been announced, and, if no preliminary Extended Rate has been announced, the Minimum Extended Rate shall be the Extended Rate then in effect, (b) the Extended Rate for any Extended Rate Period when required under the Trust Agreement, the Extended Rate for such Period shall be the Minimum Extended Rate, (c) the Daily Rate for any Daily Rate Period when required under the Trust Agreement, the Daily Rate for such period shall be the Daily Rate for any Extended Rate for any Weekly Rate for such period shall be the Daily Rate then in effect or (d) the Weekly Rate for any Weekly Rate then in effect; (ii) in no event shall the Extended Rate for any Weekly Rate then in effect; (ii) in no event shall the Extended Rate for any Extended Rate for any Extended Rate for any Extended Rate for any Extended Rate Period be lower than the Minimum Extended Rate for such period; and (iii) in no event shall the preliminary Extended Rate, the Minimum Rate. The Maximum Rate, with respect to the Bonds, other than Bank Bonds, is ten percent (10%) per annum.

(3) All determinations of Variable Rates under the Trust Agreement shall be conclusive and binding upon the Borrower, the Agency, the Bond Trustee and the Holders. The Borrower, the Agency, the Bond Trustee and the Remarketing Agent shall not be liable to any Holder for failure to give any notice required above or for failure of any Holder to receive any such notice.

(B) The Daily Rate shall be determined for each Daily Rate Period as follows:

(1) Each Daily Rate Period shall be of one day's duration; except that (A) in the case of a conversion to a Daily Rate Period from an Extended Rate Period, the initial Daily Rate Period shall be from the Daily Rate Conversion Date to the following day; and (B) in the case of a conversion of the Bonds from a Daily Rate Period to a Weekly Rate Period or an Extended Rate Period, the last Daily Rate Period shall end on the Conversion Date.

(2) The Daily Rate for each Daily Rate Period shall be determined by the Remarketing Agent not later than 10:30 a.m. on each Business Day during the Daily Rate Period to which it relates.

(C) Weekly Rate shall be determined for each Weekly Rate Period as follows:

(1) Weekly Rate Periods shall commence on Thursday of each week through Wednesday of the following week; except that (a) in the case of a conversion from a Daily Rate Period or an Extended Rate Period to a Weekly Rate Period, the initial Weekly Rate Period shall be from the Weekly Rate Conversion Date to Thursday of the following week; and (B) in the case of a conversion from a Weekly Rate Period to a Daily Rate Period or an Extended Rate Period, the last Weekly Rate Period shall end on the Conversion Date.

(2) The Weekly Rate for the Weekly Rate Period shall be effective from and including the commencement date of such period and shall remain in effect through and including the last day thereof. Such Weekly Rate shall be determined by the Remarketing Agent not later than 4:00 p.m. on the Business Day immediately prior to the commencement date of the Weekly Rate Period to which it relates.

(D) An Extended Rate shall be determined for the Extended Rate Period as follows:

(1) The Extended Rate Periods shall commence initially on the Extended Rate Conversion Date and subsequently on the first Business Day of the calendar month following the last day of the prior Rate Period, and extend for a period of six months or integral multiples thereof set by the Remarketing Agent, and end on a day which is the last day preceding the first Business Day of a calendar month.

(2) A preliminary Extended Rate of the Extended Rate Period shall be determined not later than 4:00 p.m. on the last Business Day which is a least thirty (30) days immediately preceding the commencement of such period; a Minimum Extended Rate for the Extended Rate Period shall be determined not later than 4:00 p.m. on the last Business Day which is at least eighteen (18) days immediately preceding the commencement date of such period; and the actual Extended Rate for the Extended Rate Period shall be determined not later than 4:00 p.m. on the Business Day immediately preceding the commencement date of such period; and the actual Extended Rate for the Extended Rate Period shall be determined not later than 4:00 p.m. on the Business Day immediately preceding the commencement date of such period.

(E) The Variable Rate Periods may not extend beyond the Expiration Date.

Each Bond will bear interest from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date on which it is authenticated unless it is (1) authenticated upon any Interest Payment Date in which event it shall bear interest from such Interest Payment Date or (2) authenticated prior to the first Interest Payment Date in which event it will bear interest from its date or such later date as is specified in the resolution providing for its issuance; provided, however, that, if at the time of authentication of any Bond interest is in default, such Bond will bear interest from the date to which interest has been paid. All computations of interest shall be based on a 365- or 366-day year, as the case may be, for the actual number of days elapsed; except that interest at an Extended Rate or the Fixed Rate shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

The principal of, premium, if any, and the interest on the Bonds will be payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America that is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts on the dates of payment thereof.

Conversion Between Variable Rate Periods

At the option of the Borrower, and upon delivery to the Agency and the Bond Trustee of an Opinion of Bond Counsel, the Bonds may be converted from one Variable Rate Period to another. If the Bonds are converted from one Variable Rate Period to another, then all of the Bonds shall be converted. Such conversion shall be made as follows:

(1) In the case of conversion between Variable Rate Periods, the Conversion Date shall be an Interest Payment Date for the Variable Rate Period from which the conversion is to be made; provided, however, that in the case of a conversion from an Extended Rate Period, the Conversion Date shall be limited to an Interest Payment Date on which a new Extended Rate Period for the Bonds would otherwise have commenced pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

(2) The Remarketing Agent shall give written notice of any such conversion to the Borrower, the Bond Trustee, the Tender Agent, the Agency and the Bank not less than five (5) Business Days prior to the date on which the Tender Agent is required to notify the Holders of the conversion pursuant to paragraph (3) below. Such notice shall specify the Conversion Date and the Rate Period to which the conversion will be made.

(3) Not less than thirty (30) days prior to any Conversion Date (fifteen (15) days in case of conversions from a Daily Rate Period to a Weekly Rate Period or vice versa), the Tender Agent shall mail or cause the Bond Trustee to mail a written notice of the conversion to the Bank, the Borrower and all of the Holders. A copy of such notice shall be sent to the Agency and the Bond Trustee. Such notice shall set forth (a) the information contained in the notice from the Remarketing Agent pursuant to paragraph (2) above, (b) the Interest Payment Date for the new Rate Period and (c) the date on which the Remarketing Agent will determine and the Tender Agent will notify the Holders of the preliminary or Minimum Extended Rate (if applicable).

(4) The preliminary or Minimum Extended Rate (if applicable) or the Variable Rate for the Variable Rate Period commencing on the Conversion Date shall be determined by the Remarketing Agent in the manner and on the date set forth in the Trust Agreement.

(5) No conversion from one Variable Rate Period to another shall take effect unless (i) the new Variable Rate Period will not extend beyond the Expiration Date and (ii) the interest component of the Credit Facility will cover interest on the Bonds computed at the Maximum Rate for such number of days as required by S&P.

Fixed Rate Conversion

At the option of Borrower, all, but not less than all, of the Bonds may be converted to bear interest at a Fixed Rate. Such conversion shall be made as follows:

(1) The Fixed Rate Conversion Date shall be (a) in the case of a conversion from a Daily or Weekly Rate Period, an Interest Payment Date on which interest is payable for the Daily or Weekly Rate Period from which the conversion is to be made; and (b) in the case of a conversion from an Extended Rate Period, an Interest Payment Date on which a new Extended Rate Period would otherwise commence.

(2) Not less than forty-five (45) days prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, the Borrower, (a) shall give written notice of the conversion to the Agency, the Tender Agent, the Bond Trustee, the Remarketing Agent and the Bank setting forth the proposed Fixed Rate Conversion Date, and (b) shall deliver to the Bond Trustee, the Bank and the Remarketing Agent an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the conversion of the interest rate on the Bonds to a Fixed Rate will not cause the interest on the Bonds to become includable in the gross income of the recipients thereof for federal income tax purposes.

(3) Not less than thirty (30) days prior to the proposed Fixed Rate Conversion Date, the Tender Agent shall mail, or cause the Bond Trustee to mail, a notice of the proposed conversion to the Holders of the Bonds, which notice shall state: (a) the proposed Fixed Rate Conversion Date; (b) that the Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the Fixed Rate Conversion Date at a Purchase Price of par plus accrued interest; and (c) that, on or after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, such Bonds shall be deemed purchased on that date and thereafter the Holders shall have no further rights except to receive such Purchase Price.

(4) Not later than 3:30 p.m. on the last Business Day that is at least five (5) days prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, the Remarketing Agent shall determine the Fixed Rates for the Bonds to be converted and, not later than 4:00 p.m. on such date shall notify the Bond Trustee and the Tender Agent of such Fixed Rates by telephone, e-mail, or by facsimile (and, if by telephone, promptly confirmed in writing). Such determination shall be the lowest rates of interest which, in the judgment of the Remarketing Agent as of the date of determination and under prevailing market conditions, would cause such Bonds to have a market value equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest. Such determination shall be conclusive and binding upon the Borrower, the Bond Trustee, the Tender Agent, the Bank, the Agency and the Holders of the Bonds. The Tender Agent shall make such Fixed Rate or Rates available upon request by telephone (promptly confirmed in writing), telegram, telex, or other similar communication to the Agency, the Borrower and the Bank.

(5) Notwithstanding the delivery of notice of Fixed Rate conversion, conversion the Bonds to a Fixed Rate or Rates shall not take effect:

- a. If the Borrower withdraws such notice of conversion not later than the Business Day immediately preceding the date on which the Fixed Rate is to be determined;
- b. If the Remarketing Agent fails to determine a Fixed Rate or Rates;
- c. If any notice required to be given by the Trust Agreement is not given when required; or
- d. If, upon the conversion, Bonds bearing interest at Fixed Rates would be Bank Bonds.

In any such events, the Bonds shall automatically be converted to a Weekly Rate Period on the date the Fixed Rate conversion was to be made, provided that the mandatory tender for purchase shall nevertheless be carried out if notice of the Fixed Rate conversion had been given to the Holders of the Bonds. No cancellation of a Fixed Rate conversion pursuant to this paragraph

shall constitute an Event of Default under the Trust Agreement. If the Bonds are converted to a Weekly Rate, and the Remarketing Agent fails to set a Weekly Rate, the Weekly Rate shall be the per annum rate of interest determined by the Bond Trustee and shall be equal to ninety percent (90%) of the yield for United States Treasury Bills maturing approximately thirty (30) days following the date such conversion was to be made, as published by <u>The Wall Street Journal</u> or, if <u>The Wall Street Journal</u> is no longer published, then as published on such date in any financial newspaper of national circulation selected by the Bond Trustee, but in any such case the Weekly Rate shall not exceed the Maximum Rate.

Redemption Of Bonds

<u>Optional Redemption</u>. If during a Daily or Weekly Rate Period or Extended Rate Period of six (6) months in length the Borrower exercises its option to prepay, in whole or in part, the Loan pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Bonds shall be subject to optional redemption on any Interest Payment Date at the written direction of the Borrower, delivered to the Bond Trustee and the Bank on or prior to the forty-fifth (45^{th}) day preceding the redemption date, as a whole or in part, at 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium.

If during an Extended Rate Period of more than six (6) months in length or after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date the Borrower exercises its option to prepay the Loan pursuant to its Loan Agreement, the Bonds shall be subject to optional redemption in whole at any time or in part on any Interest Payment Date, at the written direction of the Borrower, delivered to the Bond Trustee and the Bank on or prior to the forty-fifth (45th) day preceding the redemption date, provided that the Bonds shall not be redeemable during the No Call Period shown below, which shall begin on the first day of the then current Extended Rate Period or on the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, as applicable. In each Extended Rate or Fixed Rate Period after the No Call Period, such Bonds shall be redeemable at a redemption price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof, plus interest accrued to the redemption date.

Equal to or	But Less	No Call
<u>Greater than</u>	Than	<u>Period</u>
15 years	N/A	10 years
10 years	15 years	8 years
5 years	10 years	5 years
N/A	5 years	1 year

The redemption provisions set forth above may be changed upon the conversion of the Bonds to Fixed Rates upon the receipt of an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the proposed change is authorized or permitted by the law of the State and the Trust Agreement and will not adversely affect the validity of the Bonds under the laws of the State or the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on such Bonds. Extraordinary Optional Redemption. If the Borrower exercises its option to prepay the Loan, as provided in the Loan Agreement, in whole or in part, upon the occurrence of certain events described below, the Bonds are required to be redeemed, in whole if the Loan is prepaid in full, or in part if the Loan is prepaid in part, on any date, upon payment of 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed plus interest accrued to the redemption date, without premium.

The Borrower has the option to prepay the Loan in full or in part at any time at par plus accrued interest upon the occurrence of one of the following events:

(a) Damage or destruction of all or any part (if damage or destruction of such part causes the Borrower to be impracticable to operate, as evidenced by an Officer's Certificate filed with the Agency and the Bond Trustee) of its operating assets by fire or casualty, or loss of title to or use of substantially all of the operating assets as a result of the failure of title or as a result of eminent domain proceedings or proceedings in lieu thereof; or

(b) Changes in the Constitution of the United States of America or of the State or of legislation or administrative action, or failure of administrative action by the United States or the State or any agency or political subdivision of either thereof, or by reason of any judicial decision; in either event, to such extent that in the opinion of the board of directors of the Borrower (expressed in a resolution) and in the opinion of an independent architect, engineer or management consultant (as may be appropriate for the particular event), both filed with the Agency and the Bond Trustee, (i) the Loan Agreement is impossible to perform without unreasonable delay or (ii) unreasonable burdens or excessive liabilities not being imposed on the date of the Loan Agreement are imposed on the Borrower.

Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption. The Bonds are required to be redeemed in whole on the same day on which the Bond Trustee receives written notice from the Bank that an event of default shall have occurred and be continuing under the Reimbursement Agreement, at one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium. <u>Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Without Premium</u>. The Bonds are also required to be redeemed to the extent of any Sinking Fund Requirement therefor on October 1 of each Bond Year in which there is a Sinking Fund Requirement, at one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium. Initially, the Sinking Fund Requirements for the Bonds shall be as set forth in the following table:

<u>Year</u>	<u>Amount</u>	<u>Year</u>	<u>Amount</u>
2012	\$450,000	2024	\$ 775,000
2013	470,000	2025	810,000
2014	495,000	2026	845,000
2015	515,000	2027	880,000
2016	540,000	2028	925,000
2017	565,000	2029	965,000
2018	590,000	2030	1,010,000
2019	615,000	2031	1,055,000
2020	645,000	2032	1,105,000
2021	675,000	2033	1,155,000
2022	705,000	2034	1,205,000
2023	740,000	2035	1,260,000
		2036*	1,320,000

*Final maturity

So long as the Credit Facility shall be in effect and shall not have been dishonored, the Sinking Fund Requirements with respect to the Bonds may be changed, without the consent of the Holders of the Bonds, by the Bank and the Borrower, subject to the receipt by the Agency and the Bond Trustee of an Opinion of Bond Counsel.

<u>Notice of Redemption</u>. Notice of redemption identifying the Bonds to be redeemed will be given by the Bond Trustee by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to all owners of the Bonds to be redeemed at least thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date; provided, however, that such notice shall be given at least fifteen (15) days before the redemption date in the case of Bonds being redeemed on or prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date; and provided, further, that in the case of an Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption described above, the Bond Trustee shall instead give notice promptly upon its receipt of notice from the Bank, as described above. Failure to mail any such notice to any owner or any defect in any notice so mailed will not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of the Bonds of any other owner. No further interest will accrue on the principal of any Bond called for redemption after the redemption date if funds sufficient for such redemption have been deposited with the Bond Trustee.

Optional Tender of Bonds Prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date

<u>Optional Tender</u>. During any Variable Rate Period, the Holders of the Bonds may elect to have their Bonds (or portions thereof in authorized denominations of \$100,000, or integral multiples of \$5,000 in excess thereof) purchased at the Purchase Price, on the following Purchase Dates and upon the giving of the following notices:

(i) Bonds bearing interest at Daily Rates may be tendered for purchase on any Business Day upon delivery of a written notice of tender to the Tender Agent not later than 11:30 a.m. on the Business Day immediately preceding such Purchase Date;

(ii) Bonds bearing interest at a Weekly Rate may be tendered for purchase on any Business Day upon delivery of a written notice of tender to the Tender Agent not later than 5:00 p.m. on a Business Day not less than seven (7) days prior to the Purchase Date; and

(iii) Bonds bearing interest at the Extended Rate may be tendered for purchase on the commencement date of any Extended Rate Period (other than the Extended Rate Conversion Date) upon delivery of a written notice of tender to the Tender Agent not later than 5:00 p.m. on a Business Day which is not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the Purchase Date.

Notice of Tender. Each notice of tender:

(i) shall, in the case of a written notice, be delivered to the Tender Agent at its designated office and be in form satisfactory to the Tender Agent;

(ii) shall state, whether delivered in writing or by telephone (promptly confirmed in writing by telecopy), (A) the principal amount of the Bonds or portion of the Bonds to be purchased, (B) that the Holder irrevocably demands purchase of the Bond or portion thereof, (C) the date on which such Bond or portion is to be purchased and (D) payment instructions; and

(iii) shall automatically constitute, whether delivered in writing or by telephone, (A) an irrevocable offer to sell the Bond or portion to which the notice relates on the Purchase Date to any purchasers selected by the Remarketing Agent, at the Purchase Price, (B) an irrevocable authorization and instruction to the Bond Registrar to effect transfer of such Bond or portion upon payment of such price to the Tender Agent on the Purchase Date, (C) an irrevocable authorization and instruction to the Tender Agent to effect the exchange of the Bond to be purchased in whole or in part for other Bonds of the Borrower in an equal aggregate principal amount so as to facilitate the sale of such Bond or portion, and (D) an acknowledgment that the Holder will have no further rights with respect to the Bond or portion upon payment of the Purchase Price thereof by the Tender Agent on the Purchase Date, except for the right of such Holder to receive such Purchase Price upon surrender of such Bond to the Tender Agent.

The determination of the Tender Agent as to whether a notice of tender has been properly delivered pursuant to the foregoing shall be conclusive and binding upon the Holder.

Remarketing. Not later than 4:30 p.m. on the Business Day immediately following the date of receipt of any notice of tender (12:00 p.m. on the day of receipt of the notice of tender during any Daily Rate Period), the Tender Agent shall notify the Remarketing Agent and the Bond Trustee (if the Bond Trustee is not serving as the Tender Agent) of the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof to be tendered and remarketed and the date they are to be tendered and remarketed. The Remarketing Agent shall offer for sale and use its best efforts to find purchasers for all such Bonds or portions thereof properly tendered. All such Bonds shall be remarketed at par plus any accrued interest. The terms of any sale by the Remarketing Agent of tendered Bonds shall provide for the purchase of the remarketed Bonds at the Purchase Price and the payment of such Purchase Price to the Tender Agent by the Remarketing Agent in immediately available funds against delivery of the remarketed Bonds to the Tender Agent at or before 9:00 a.m. on the Purchase Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Remarketing Agent shall not offer for sale any Bond if notice of conversion from one Variable Rate Period to another or to a Fixed Rate Period has been given to the Holders by the Tender Agent, unless the Remarketing Agent has advised the Person to whom the offer is made of such conversion and the effect of such conversion on the rights of such Holders to tender their Bonds, as described in the conversion notice from the Tender Agent to the Holders.

<u>Purchase of Tendered Bonds</u>. At or before 4:00 p.m. on the Business Day immediately preceding the date fixed for purchase of tendered Bonds, the Remarketing Agent shall give notice by telephone, telegram, telecopy, telex or other similar communication to the Borrower, the Agency, the Bond Trustee, the Tender Agent and, so long as the Credit Facility for the Bonds shall be in effect and shall not have been dishonored, the Bank, of the principal amount of tendered Bonds which were remarketed and give notice to the Bond Trustee by telephone (promptly confirmed in writing) of the principal amount, names, addresses and taxpayer identification numbers of the purchasers and the denominations of Bonds to be delivered to each purchaser.

The Remarketing Agent shall pay, against receipt of newly registered Bonds, to the Tender Agent at or before 9:30 a.m. on the date fixed for purchase of tendered Bonds, all amounts representing proceeds of the remarketing of the Bonds other than the proceeds of the remarketing of Bonds purchased by the Borrower or the Agency or any Affiliate of either thereof. The Tender Agent (if other than the Bond Trustee) shall promptly notify the Bond Trustee of all amounts so received from the Remarketing Agent. The Bond Trustee shall, at or before 10:00 a.m. on the date fixed for purchase, submit the necessary draw certificates in accordance with the terms of the Credit Facility to ensure that, on such Purchase Date, an amount equal to the total Purchase Price of all Bonds tendered for purchase on such Purchase Date, reduced by the amount of remarketing proceeds held by the Tender Agent for payment of such Purchase Price, shall be drawn on the Credit Facility for such Bonds, and the Bond Trustee shall, immediately upon receipt of the amount drawn on the Credit Facility, remit such amount to the Tender Agent. No drawing under the Credit Facility shall be made or proceeds applied to pay the Purchase Price of any Bonds owned by the Bank or any Bonds that have been converted to bear interest at a Fixed Rate.

The Remarketing Agent shall pay to the Bond Trustee at or before 9:30 a.m. on the date fixed for purchase of tendered Bonds all amounts representing proceeds of remarketing of Bonds purchased by the Borrower or the Agency or any Affiliate of either thereof. The Bond Trustee shall remit all amounts representing proceeds of remarketing of Bonds so purchased to the Bank, not later than 2:00 p.m. on the date the Bonds are so purchased.

<u>Payments by the Tender Agent</u>. On or before 4:00 p.m. on the date set for purchase of tendered Bonds and upon receipt by the Tender Agent of 100% of the aggregate Purchase Price of the tendered Bonds, the Tender Agent shall pay the Purchase Price of the Bonds to such Holders thereof at its corporate trust office or by bank wire transfer to the accounts specified in the appropriate Optional Tender Notices. Such payments shall be made in immediately available funds. The Tender Agent shall apply in order (A) moneys paid to it by the Remarketing Agent as proceeds of the remarketing of such Bonds by the Remarketing Agent (which shall not include the proceeds of the remarketing of such Bonds purchased by the Borrower or the Agency or any Affiliate of either thereof), (B) moneys drawn on the Credit Facility for such Bonds in an amount equal to the unpaid Purchase Price of such tendered Bonds, and (C) any other moneys available to it for the payment of such tendered Bonds. Upon receipt thereof the Tender Agent shall remit to the Bond Trustee all such tendered Bonds for cancellation.

<u>Resale of Bonds Purchased by the Bank</u>. The Remarketing Agent shall continue to offer for sale and use its best efforts to sell Bonds purchased by the Bank at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any. Bonds purchased by the Bank to be delivered as a result of the resale of the Bonds shall not be delivered by the Bond Trustee unless the Credit Facility is reinstated in accordance with its terms in an amount equal to the full amount drawn thereunder that was used to purchase such Bonds and unless the Bond Trustee shall have received written notice from the Bank of such reinstatement. The Bond Trustee shall promptly take such action as is required of it pursuant to the Credit Facility to cause such reinstatement.

<u>Delivery of Bonds</u>. All Bonds to be purchased on any date shall be required to be delivered to the corporate trust office of the Tender Agent at or before 10:00 a.m. on the Purchase Date.

Mandatory Tender of Bonds Upon Variable or Fixed Rate Conversion

<u>Mandatory Tender</u>. In the event of a conversion of Bonds from one Rate Period to another, such Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the Conversion Date at a price equal to the Purchase Price.

<u>Remarketing</u>. At or before 4:00 p.m. on the Business Day immediately following the last day on which notices of election to tender Bonds may be delivered to the Tender Agent, the Tender Agent shall notify the Bond Trustee, the Remarketing Agent and the Bank, by telephone, telegraph, telecopy, telex or other similar communication, of the aggregated principal amount of Bonds to be tendered for purchase on the Conversion Date or the Purchase Date. The Remarketing Agent shall offer for sale and use its best efforts to find purchasers for such Bonds. The terms of any sale by the Remarketing Agent shall provide for the payment of the Purchase Price to the Remarketing Agent for subsequent payment to the Tender Agent of the tendered Bonds in immediately available funds at or before 9:00 a.m. on the Conversion Date or the Purchase Date.

<u>Purchase of Tendered Bonds</u>. The provisions described above under "DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS – Optional Tender of Bonds Prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date – Purchase of Tendered Bonds" shall apply to mandatory tenders upon conversion to the Variable Fixed Rates.

Mandatory Tender of Bonds Upon Expiration of the Credit Facility

<u>Mandatory Tender</u>. The Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the Expiration Date at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest; provided that the Holders of the Bonds may elect to retain their Bonds notwithstanding a mandatory tender by delivering to the Tender Agent at its principal office not later than 5:00 p.m. on a Business Day which is not less than fourteen (14) Business Days prior to the Expiration Date a written notice of such election. Such written notice shall (i) state that the person delivering the same is a Holder (specifying the numbers and denominations of the Bonds of such Holder); (ii) state that the Holder is aware of the fact that, after the Expiration Date therefor, the Bonds will no longer have the benefit of the Credit Facility, and that the ratings of the Bonds, if any, may therefore be reduced or dropped; and (iii) direct the Tender Agent not to purchase the Bonds of such Holder. Any such notice delivered to the Tender Agent shall be irrevocable and binding upon the Holder delivering the same and all subsequent Holders of the Bonds to be retained, including any Bonds issued in exchange therefore or upon transfer thereof.

<u>Notice to Holders</u>. The Bond Trustee shall mail a notice of the Expiration Date of the Credit Facility to all Holders of the Bonds. Such notice shall be mailed not less than thirty (30) nor more than forty-five (45) days prior to the Expiration Date and shall (i) specify the Expiration Date, (ii) state that, after the Expiration Date, the Bonds will no longer have the benefit of the Credit Facility, and that the ratings of the Bonds, if any, may thereafter be reduced or dropped, (iii) specify the date and time by which any notice of election to retain Bonds must be received, and specify the matters required to be stated in such notice (or contain the form thereof) and (iv) state that with respect to any Bonds for which an election to retain Bonds has not been received by the Tender Agent, such Bonds shall be deemed tendered on the Expiration Date provided the conditions set forth below under "DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS – Undelivered Bonds" have been met.

<u>Remarketing</u>. At or before 4:00 p.m. on the Business Day immediately following the last day on which notices of elections to retain Bonds may be delivered to the Tender Agent, the Tender Agent shall notify the Borrower, the Agency, the Remarketing Agent and the Bank, by telephone, telegraph, telecopy, telex or other similar communication, of the principal amount of Bonds tendered or deemed to be tendered for purchase on the Expiration Date. The Remarketing Agent shall offer for sale and use its best efforts to find purchasers for such Bonds; provided that in no event shall the Remarketing Agent offer any such Bonds for sale to any person unless it has advised such person of the fact that, after the Expiration Date, such Bonds will no longer have the benefit of the Credit Facility. The terms of any sale by the Remarketing Agent shall provide for the payment of the Purchase Price to the Remarketing Agent for subsequent payment to the Tender Agent of the tendered Bonds in immediately available funds at or before 9:00 a.m. on the Expiration Date.

<u>Purchase of Tendered Bonds</u>. The provisions described above under "DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS – Optional Tender of Bonds Prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date – Purchase of Tendered Bonds" shall apply to mandatory tenders upon expiration of the Credit Facility.

Mandatory Tender of Bonds Upon Provision of Alternate Credit Facility

<u>Mandatory Tender</u>. The Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the Business Day preceding the date on which an Alternate Credit Facility will become effective at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest; provided, that the Holders of the Bonds may elect to retain their Bonds notwithstanding such a mandatory tender by delivering to the Tender Agent at its corporate trust office not later than 5:00 p.m. on a Business Day which is not less than fourteen (14) Business Days prior to the effective date of the Alternate Credit Facility, a written notice of such election complying with the requirements described below. Any such notice delivered to the Tender Agent shall be irrevocable and binding upon the Holder delivering the same and all subsequent Holders of the Bonds to be retained including any the Bonds issued in exchange therefor or upon transfer thereof.

<u>Notice to Holders</u>. Notice of the substitution of an Alternate Credit Facility shall be mailed by the Bond Trustee to each Holder of the Bonds in compliance with the requirements described under the caption "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Alternate Credit Supports – Alternate Credit Facilities" below.

<u>Remarketing</u>. The provisions described above under "DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS – Mandatory Tender of Bonds Upon Expiration of the Credit Facility – Remarketing" shall apply to remarketings of Bonds subject to mandatory tender for purchase upon the substitution of an Alternate Credit Facility; provided, however, that the terms of any sale by the Remarketing Agent shall provide for the payment of the Purchase Price to the Remarketing Agent for subsequent payment to the Tender Agent of the tendered Bonds in immediately available funds at or before 9:00 A.M. on the Business Day preceding the effective date of the Alternate Credit Facility; and provided further, however, that in no event shall the Remarketing Agent offer any Bond for sale to any person unless the Alternate Credit Facility has become effective.

<u>Purchase of Tendered Bonds</u>. On or before 10:00A.M. on the Business Day preceding the effective date of an Alternate Credit Facility, the Bond Trustee shall submit the necessary draw certificates in accordance with the terms of the Credit Facility to ensure that, on such Business Day, an amount shall be drawn on the Credit Facility equal to the total Purchase Price of all Bonds deemed to be tendered, reduced by the amount of remarketing proceeds held by the Tender Agent for payment of such Purchase Price. The Tender Agent shall pay such Purchase Price in the manner set forth under "DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS – Optional Tender of Bonds Prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date – Purchase of Tendered Bonds" above.

Undelivered Bonds

Any Bonds subject to mandatory tender for purchase shall be delivered to the Tender Agent on or prior to the date on which the Bonds are required to be purchased and any Bonds subject to mandatory tender for purchase that are not delivered for which there has been irrevocably deposited in trust with the Tender Agent an amount of money sufficient to pay the Purchase Price thereof shall be deemed to have been tendered to the Tender Agent pursuant to this Section and shall be Undelivered Bonds. IN THE EVENT OF A FAILURE BY A HOLDER (OTHER THAN A HOLDER WHO HAS PROPERLY GIVEN NOTICE OF ITS INTENTION TO CONTINUE TO HOLD ITS BONDS) TO DELIVER ITS BONDS ON OR PRIOR TO THE REQUIRED DATE, SUCH HOLDER SHALL NOT BE ENTITLED TO ANY PAYMENT (INCLUDING ANY INTEREST TO ACCRUE SUBSEQUENT TO THE REQUIRED PURCHASE DATE) OTHER THAN THE PURCHASE PRICE FOR SUCH UNDELIVERED BONDS, AND ANY UNDELIVERED BONDS SHALL NO LONGER BE ENTITLED TO THE BENEFITS OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT, EXCEPT FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PURCHASE PRICE THEREFOR. The Bond Trustee shall be entitled to place stop-transfer orders against an appropriate principal amount of Bonds registered in the name of such prior Holders. Any moneys held by the Tender Agent under the Trust Agreement for the purchase of Undelivered Bonds shall be held in a segregated fund by the Tender Agent, shall not be invested, and shall be held for the exclusive benefit of the Holders of such Undelivered Bonds.

The Bond Trustee shall authenticate a new Bond or Bonds in replacement of any Undelivered Bonds. The replacement of any Undelivered Bond shall not be deemed to create a new indebtedness, but such Bond as is issued shall be deemed to evidence the indebtedness previously evidenced by the Undelivered Bond.

Bank Deemed Holder

For all purposes of the provisions of the Trust Agreement regarding defaults and remedies and supplements to the Trust Agreement and the Loan Agreement, the Bank shall, so long as the Credit Facility shall be in effect and shall not have been dishonored and uncured and so long as the Bank Obligations with respect to the Borrower remains unpaid, be deemed the Holder of all the Bonds. As such, the Bank may take all actions permitted by the provisions of the Trust Agreement regarding defaults and remedies and supplements to the Trust Agreement and the Loan Agreement to be taken by the Holders of the Bonds, to the exclusion of the actual Holders of the Bonds, as if the Bank was in fact the actual Holder of all the Bonds; the purposes of this provision being to permit the Bank to direct the taking of actions and the enforcement of remedies permitted by the provisions of the Trust Agreement regarding defaults and remedies and to consent to supplements to the Trust Agreement and the Loan Agreement so long as the Trust Agreement and the Loan Agreement so long as the Bank to direct the taking of actions and the enforcement of remedies permitted by the provisions of the Trust Agreement regarding defaults and remedies and to consent to supplements to the Trust Agreement and the Loan Agreement so long as the Bank Obligation remains unpaid.

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system was obtained from material provided by DTC. None of the Agency, the Borrower, the Bond Trustee or the Underwriter takes any responsibility for the accuracy of such information, makes any representation as to the completeness of such information or makes any representation as to the absence of material changes in such information subsequent to the date hereof.

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be initially issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully registered Bond will be issued for the Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, and deposited with DTC.

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2.2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instrument from over 100 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC, in turn, is owned by a number of Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Government Securities Clearing Corporation, MBS Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation, (NSCC, GSCC, MBSCC, and EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). The DTC rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing details of

the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an omnibus proxy (the "Omnibus Proxy") to the Agency as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and redemption premium, if any, of and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Agency or the Bond Trustee on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name" and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Bond Trustee or the Agency, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest to Cede & Co., (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC), is the responsibility of the Agency or the Bond Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants is the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

The Agency and the Bond Trustee may treat DTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive registered owner of the Bonds registered in its name for the purposes of payment of the principal or redemption premium, if any, of, or interest on, the Bonds, giving any notice permitted or required to be given to registered owners under the Trust Agreement, registering the transfer of the Bonds, or other action to be taken by registered owners and for all other purposes whatsoever. None of the Agency, the Borrower or the Bond Trustee shall have any responsibility or obligation to any Participant, any person claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the Bonds under or through DTC or any Participant, or any other person which is not shown on the registration books of the Agency (kept by the Bond Registrar) as being a registered owner, with respect to the accuracy of any amount in respect of the principal, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds; any notice which is permitted or required to be given to registered owners thereunder or under the conditions to transfers or exchanges adopted by the Agency; or other action taken by DTC as a registered owner.

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to have its Bonds purchased or tendered, through its Participant, to the Tender Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Bonds by causing the Direct Participant to transfer the Participant's interest in the Bonds, on DTC's records, to the Tender Agent. The requirement for physical delivery of Bonds in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Bonds are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC's records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Bonds to the Tender Agent's DTC account.

DTC may discontinue providing its service as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Agency and the Bond Trustee and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law, or the Agency or the Bond Trustee may terminate its participation in the system of book-entry transfer through DTC at any time by giving notice to DTC. In either event, the Agency may retain another securities depository for the Bonds or may direct the Bond Trustee to deliver bond certificates in accordance with instructions from DTC or its successor. If the Agency directs the Bond Trustee to deliver such bond certificates, such Bonds may thereafter be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds in other authorized denominations and of the same series and maturity as set forth in the Trust Agreement, upon surrender thereof at the principal corporate trust office of the Bond Trustee, who will then be responsible for maintaining the registration books of the Agency.

THE INFORMATION IN THIS SECTION CONCERNING DTC AND DTC'S BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM SOURCES THAT THE AGENCY BELIEVES TO BE RELIABLE, BUT THE AGENCY, THE BORROWER, THE BOND TRUSTEE AND THE UNDERWRITER TAKE NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY THEREOF. NO REPRESENTATION IS MADE BY THE AGENCY, THE BORROWER, THE BOND TRUSTEE OR THE UNDERWRITER AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY OF SUCH INFORMATION OR AS TO THE ABSENCE OF MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGES IN SUCH INFORMATION SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE HEREOF. NO ATTEMPT HAS BEEN MADE BY THE AGENCY, THE BORROWER, THE BOND TRUSTEE OR THE UNDERWRITER TO DETERMINE WHETHER DTC IS OR WILL BE FINANCIALLY OR OTHERWISE CAPABLE OF FULFILLING ITS OBLIGATIONS. NEITHER THE AGENCY NOR THE BOND TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATIONS TO SUCH DTC PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR THE PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES WITH RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE FOR THE DTC PARTICIPANTS, THE INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS. PAYMENTS MADE TO DTC OR ITS NOMINEE SHALL SATISFY THE AGENCY'S OBLIGATION UNDER THE ACT AND THE TRUST AGREEMENT TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH PAYMENTS.

SO LONG AS CEDE & CO. OR SUCH OTHER DTC NOMINEE IS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS, AS NOMINEE OF DTC, REFERENCES HEREIN TO THE BONDHOLDERS OR REGISTERED OWNERS OF THE BONDS SHALL MEAN CEDE & CO. OR SUCH OTHER DTC NOMINEE AND SHALL NOT MEAN THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE BONDS. PAYMENTS MADE BY THE BOND TRUSTEE TO DTC OR ITS NOMINEE SHALL SATISFY THE AGENCY'S OBLIGATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH PAYMENTS.

IT IS THE DUTY OF EACH BENEFICIAL OWNER TO ARRANGE WITH THE DTC PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT TO RECEIVE FROM SUCH DTC PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST, CREDIT BALANCES AND ALL OTHER COMMUNICATIONS WHICH THE DTC PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT RECEIVES FROM DTC.

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS

The Bonds will be secured by (1) the Loan Repayments, (2) the Credit Facility, (3) Obligation No. 1, and (4) all other moneys and securities held from to time by the Bond Trustee for the Bondholders under the Trust Agreement.

Principal or purchase price of and interest and any premium on the Bonds will be payable from moneys paid by the Borrower pursuant to the Loan Agreement and by the Obligated Group pursuant to Obligation No. 1. Payment of Obligation No. 1 will be the joint and several obligation of the members of the Obligated Group. Currently, the Borrower is the only member of the Obligated Group.

Pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture, as security for the payment of the amounts due on the Obligations issued under the Master Trust Indenture, the Borrower has pledged and granted, and any other future Members of the Obligated Group will pledge and grant, a security interest in the Pledged Assets to the Master Trustee. The Pledged Assets consist of the Gross Receipts of the members of the Obligated Group and all proceeds thereof. For purposes of the Master Trust Indenture, the term "Gross Receipts" means all Accounts and all revenues, income, receipts and money (other than proceeds of borrowing) received in any period by or on behalf of any member of the Obligated Group, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (a) revenues derived from its operations, (b) gifts, grants, bequests, donations and contributions and the income therefrom, exclusive of any gifts, grants, bequests, donations and contributions and the income therefrom to the extent specifically restricted by the donor to a particular purpose inconsistent with their use for the payment of the Obligations, (c) proceeds derived from (i) insurance, except to the extent otherwise required by the Master Trust Indenture, (ii) Accounts, (iii) securities and other investments, (iv) inventory and other tangible and intangible property, (v) medical or hospital insurance, indemnity or reimbursement programs or agreements and (vi) contract rights and other rights and assets now or hereafter owned, held or possessed by each member of the Obligated Group, and (d) rentals received from the leasing of real or tangible personal property. The security interest in the Pledged Assets has been perfected to the extent, and only to the extent, that such security interest may be perfected by filing financing statements under the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of Vermont (the "UCC"). Continuation statements with respect to such filings must be filed every five years to continue the perfection of such security interest. The security interest in the Pledged Assets is subject to Permitted Liens that existed prior to or that may be created subsequent to the time the security interest in the Pledged Assets attached and subject to the right of each member of the Obligated Group to sell Accounts or incur Indebtedness secured by Accounts under certain circumstances as set forth in the Master Trust Indenture. The security interest in the Pledged Assets may not be enforceable against third parties unless the Pledged Assets are transferred to the Master Trustee (which transfer members of the Obligated Group are required to make only if requested by the Master Trustee after a default under the Master Trust Indenture) and is subject to certain exceptions under the UCC. The enforcement of the security interest in the Pledged Assets may be further limited by the following: (i) statutory liens, (ii) rights arising in favor of the United States of America or any agency thereof, (iii) present or future prohibitions against assignment in any

federal or State statutes or regulations, (iv) constructive trusts, equitable liens or other rights impressed or conferred by any state or federal court in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, (v) federal bankruptcy laws, State of Vermont receivership or fraudulent conveyance laws or similar laws affecting creditors' rights that may affect the enforceability of the Master Trust Indenture or the security interest in the Pledged Assets and (vi) rights of third parties in the Pledged Assets not in the possession of the Master Trustee. See "BONDHOLDERS' RISKS – Enforcement of Bondholder Remedies; Bankruptcy" herein.

The actual realization of amounts to be derived upon the enforcement of any security interest securing the Bonds will depend upon the exercise of various remedies specified by the Loan Agreement, the Trust Agreement and the Master Trust Indenture. These and other remedies may, in many respects, require judicial action of a nature that is often subject to discretion and delay. Under existing law, the remedies specified by the Loan Agreement, the Trust Agreement and the Master Trust Indenture may not be readily available or may be limited. A court may decide not to order the specific performance of the covenants contained in those documents. The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by state and federal laws, rulings and decisions affecting remedies and by bankruptcy, fraudulent conveyance, reorganization and other laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally. See "BONDHOLDERS' RISKS – Enforcement of Bondholder Remedies; Bankruptcy" herein.

Pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture, the members of the Obligated Group are subject to covenants under the Master Trust Indenture relating to maintenance of a Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio and concerning, among other things, incurrence of Indebtedness, existence of liens on Property, consolidation and merger, disposition of assets, addition of members to the Obligated Group and withdrawal of members from the Obligated Group. See Appendix B hereto.

THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE PERMITS MEMBERS OF THE OBLIGATED GROUP TO ISSUE OR INCUR ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS EVIDENCED BY OBLIGATIONS THAT WILL SHARE THE SECURITY FOR OBLIGATION NO. 1 ON A PARITY WITH OBLIGATION NO. 1.

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Agency will, for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds, assign certain of the Agency's rights under the Loan Agreement, including all its rights, title and interest in and to the Loan Repayments (subject to the reservation of certain rights of the Agency, including its rights to notices, payment of certain expenses and indemnity), and will assign all of its right, title and interest in and to Obligation No. 1, and to any and all moneys and securities in the Bond Fund and, until applied in payment of any item of the Cost of the Project (as defined herein), to all money and securities in the Construction Fund for the Bonds, to the Bond Trustee.

Alternate Credit Supports

<u>Substitute Credit Facilities</u>. The Credit Facility, as initially issued, will expire by its terms on June 1, 2009, unless extended in accordance with its terms. Any Substitute Credit Facility may be substituted for the Credit Facility then in effect at any time other than during the sixty (60) day period preceding the Expiration Date in effect if the Borrower has satisfied the requirements of the Trust Agreement with respect to such Substitute Credit Facility. The Bond Trustee shall notify the Holders of the Bonds of such substitution within five days after the effective date thereof.

<u>Alternate Credit Facilities</u>. An Alternate Credit Facility may be substituted for the Credit Facility then in effect any time other than during the sixty (60) day period preceding the Expiration Date of the Credit Facility if the Borrower, (i) delivers to the Bond Trustee such Alternate Credit Facility at least thirty-five (35) days in advance of the date such Alternate Credit Facility will become effective and (ii) satisfies the requirements of the Trust Agreement with respect to such Alternate Credit Facility.

Notice of the substitution of an Alternate Credit Facility will be made by the Bond Trustee to each Holder of the Bonds at his address as shown on the registration books on or before the thirtieth (30th) day before such Alternate Credit Facility will become effective. Such notice shall state (i) that the existing Credit Facility is being replaced by an Alternate Credit Facility, (ii) the rating that will be assigned to the Bonds by Standard & Poor's Corporation, if the Bonds are rated by Standard & Poor's, and Moody's Investors Service, if the Bonds are rated by Moody's Investors Service, as a result of the substitution, (iii) that all Holders who wish to continue to own Bonds on or after the date such Alternate Credit Facility will be effective must give notice to that effect to the Tender Agent no later than 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on or before the fourteenth (14th) Business Day prior to such effective date or be deemed to have tendered their Bonds for purchase on the Business Day preceding such effective date and (iv) state that with respect to this paragraph has not been received by the Tender Agent, the Bonds shall be deemed tendered on the effective date of the Alternate Credit Facility provided that the conditions described under "DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS – Undelivered Bonds" have been met.

Any Holder desiring to retain its Bonds on and after the date the Alternate Credit Facility will be effective must notify the Tender Agent in writing received not later than the fourteenth (14th) day prior to such effective date. Such notice shall state in substance (i) the numbers and principal amount of the Bonds to be retained and (ii) that such Holder is aware that the rating(s) assigned to the Bonds, if any, by Standard & Poor's or Moody's Investors Service may be lower than those assigned to the Bank, as the case may be. Any Holder not delivering such a notice shall be deemed to have tendered his Bonds for purchase by the Tender Agent on the Business Day preceding the date such Alternate Credit Facility will be effective.

<u>Documents to be Delivered</u>. Prior to the provision of any Substitute Credit Facility or Alternate Credit Facility, the Borrower shall have delivered to the Bond Trustee: (i) with respect to a Substitute Credit Facility, written confirmation from each rating agency that such substitution will not result in a reduction or withdrawal of the rating or ratings in effect for the Bonds immediately prior to such substitution, (ii) an opinion of counsel for the issuer of the Substitute Credit Facility or Alternate Credit Facility that such contract constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the issuer thereof enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject only to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium and other laws or equitable principles affecting creditors rights insofar as the same may be applicable in the event of a bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium or other similar proceeding or occurrence with respect to the issuer; (iii) an opinion of counsel satisfactory to such Bond Trustee to the effect that the exemption of the Bonds, or any securities evidenced thereby, from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the exemption of the Trust Agreement from qualification under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, shall not be impaired by such substitution; and (iv) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such substitution will not cause the interest on the Bonds to become includable in the gross income of the recipients thereof for federal income tax purposes.

THE BANK AND THE CREDIT FACILITY

The Bank

Attached hereto as Appendix A is certain information concerning the Bank as the issuer of the Credit Facility. The Credit Facility is referred to as the Letter of Credit in Appendix A hereto.

The Credit Facility

The statements made herein concerning the Credit Facility are summaries and do not purport to be complete. Such statements use certain terms defined in the Credit Facility and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the detailed provisions of the Credit Facility.

The Credit Facility is an irrevocable obligation of the Bank to pay the Bond Trustee, upon presentation of sight drafts and appropriate certifications, an aggregate amount up to the principal of (including the purchase price on a tender of the Bonds) and up to thirty-five (35) days' accrued interest on the outstanding Bonds (such amount, as from time to time adjusted as provided below, hereinafter called the "Available Amount"). The Available Amount of the Credit Facility shall (A) be decreased from time to time immediately following the Bank's honoring the Bond Trustee's draft drawn on the Bank under the Credit Facility by an amount equal to the amount of such draft and (B) be increased (but in no event shall the amount of any such increase cause the Available Amount to exceed \$20,509,802) to the extent, but only to the extent, of amounts drawn under the Credit Facility (a) relating to payment of interest on the Bonds, and (b) so long as no Default shall exist under the Reimbursement Agreement, upon written notice to the Bank of the remarketing and reimbursement to the Bank from the remarketing of Bonds that had been tendered to the Tender Agent pursuant to the tender provisions of the Trust Agreement.

The Bond Trustee is required by the Trust Agreement to draw upon the Credit Facility prior to and including the Expiration Date in the following circumstances:

(1) No later than 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on each date on which interest is payable on the Bonds, the Trust Agreement requires the Bond Trustee to present a sight draft to the Bank together with required certificates for the payment of an amount which, together with Available Moneys held by the Bond Trustee in the Interest Account for the Bonds, will be sufficient to pay the interest becoming due on the Bonds.

(2) No later than 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on each day on which principal is due on the Bonds prior to and including the Expiration Date, whether by optional redemption, mandatory redemption, acceleration or maturity, the Trust Agreement requires the Bond Trustee to present a sight draft to the Bank together with required certificates for the payment of an amount which, together with Available Moneys available therefor held by the Bond Trustee for the Bonds, will be sufficient to pay the principal of all the Bonds becoming due upon presentation and surrender thereof.

(3) Upon receipt of the Bonds which have been tendered for purchase on or prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, and which have not been purchased from moneys provided by the Remarketing Agent, the Bond Trustee shall at or before 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on the date fixed for purchase present a sight draft to the Bank together with required certificates for payment of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any.

No drawing under the Credit Facility shall be made or any proceeds or any drawing applied to apply the interest on any Bonds owned by the Bank or any Bonds that have been converted to bear interest at a Fixed Rate.

The Credit Facility expires by its terms on the earlier of: (i) June 1, 2009 (as extended from time-to-time); (ii) the earlier of (A) the date which is fifteen (15) days after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date or (B) the date on which the Bank honors a drawing under the Credit Facility on or after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date; (iii) the date which is fifteen (15) days after the date the Bond Trustee receives notice from the Bank of an Event of Default under the Reimbursement Agreement; (iv) the date on which the Bank receives notice from the Bond Trustee that it has received a Substitute or Alternate Credit Facility and such Substitute or Alternate Credit Facility has been in effect for one Business Day and has been accepted by the Bond Trustee; or (v) the date when the principal balance of the Available Amount has been reduced to zero and is not subject to reinstatement.

The Stated Expiration Date of the Credit Facility (currently, June 1, 2009) shall be automatically extended, for additional one (1) year terms, commencing in 2007 and each year thereafter, unless the Bank notifies the Bond Trustee, with a copy to the Borrower, no later than May 1 of each such year, that the Bank will not extend the Stated Expiration Date.

The Borrower may elect to have a Substitute or Alternate Credit Facility secure the Bonds. See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Alternate Credit Supports."

The Reimbursement Agreement

The following summarizes certain provisions of the Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to which the Credit Facility is being issued. Reference is made to the Reimbursement Agreement for the details of the provisions thereof.

<u>Security</u>. As security for the Credit Facility, the Borrower has issued its Obligation No. 2 under the Master Trust Indenture to the Bank. The Borrower has agreed in the Reimbursement Agreement not to create or incur or suffer to be created or incurred or to exist any lien, encumbrance, mortgage, pledge, negative pledge, charge, restriction or other security interest of any kind on any of its Property (except Permitted Liens).

<u>Events of Default.</u> Any of the following events, acts or occurrences shall constitute an "Event of Default" under the Reimbursement Agreement: (a) default in payment to be made any payment to the Bank required to be made pursuant to the terms of the agreements made by the Borrower in connection with the Bonds (the "Credit Documents"); (b) any representation or warranty made by the Borrower or any officer thereof herein, in the Credit Documents or in any

other written statement, certificate, report, or financial statement at any time furnished by or for the Borrower in connection with any of the Credit Documents, proves to be incorrect in any material respect when made; (c) the Borrower shall fail to perform or observe any other provision, covenant, or agreement contained in the Reimbursement Agreement or in any other of the Credit Documents applicable to the Borrower, and such failure remains unremedied for thirty (30) calendar days after the Bank shall have given written notice thereof to the Borrower; (d) the Borrower shall default in the performance of certain financial covenants under the Reimbursement Agreement and said default continues for thirty (30) calendar days after the earlier of such time as (i) the Bank shall have given written notice thereof to Borrower or (ii) the Borrower becomes aware of the existence of such default; (e) an "Event of Default" (as defined in the relevant Credit Document) shall have occurred; or (f) the Borrower (i) fails to pay any indebtedness for borrowed money (other than as arising under the Reimbursement Agreement) owing by Borrower when due, whether at maturity, by acceleration, or otherwise; or (ii) fails to perform term, covenant, or agreement on its part to be performed under any agreement or instrument (other than the Reimbursement Agreement) evidencing, securing or relating to such indebtedness when required to be performed, or is otherwise in default thereunder, if the effect of such failure is to accelerate, or to permit the holder(s) of such indebtedness or the trustee(s) under any such agreement or instrument to accelerate, the maturity of such indebtedness, unless waived by such holder(s) or trustee(s); (g) the Borrower discontinues business except as otherwise permitted under the Reimbursement Agreement; (h) the Borrower at any time sponsors or establishes any Plan (as defined in the Reimbursement Agreement), and the Borrower fails to notify the Bank in writing of such occurrence within the ten (10) days after such Plan is authorized by the Borrower or fails to agree within a reasonable time to such amendments to the Reimbursement Agreement regarding provisions with respect to ERISA that the Bank customarily uses at that time in loan agreements with other borrowers; or (i) the Borrower (i) is adjudicated a debtor or insolvent, or ceases, is unable, or admits in writing its inability, to pay its debts as they mature, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (ii) applies for, or consents to, the appointment of any receiver, trustee, or similar officer for it or for all or any substantial part of its property, or any such receiver, trustee, or similar officer is appointed without the application or consent of the Borrower; (iii) institutes, or consents to the institution of, by petition, application, or otherwise, any bankruptcy reorganization, arrangement, readjustment of debt, dissolution, liquidation, or similar proceeding relating to it under the laws of any jurisdiction; (iv) has any such proceeding described in clause (iii) instituted against it and such proceeding remains thereafter undismissed for a period of sixty (60) days; or (v) has any judgment, writ, warrant of attachment or execution or similar process issued or levied against a substantial part of its property and such judgment, writ, or similar process is not released, vacated, or fully bonded within sixty (60) days after its issue or levy.

In the event of the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Reimbursement Agreement, the Bank may collect all amounts due from the Borrower and may notify the Bond Trustee that an Event of Default has occurred. Thereafter, the Bank may proceed to protect and enforce its rights, at law, in equity, or otherwise, against the Borrower.

If, at the time of the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Reimbursement Agreement, there remains any undisbursed portion of the Bank's commitment under the Credit Facility, the Borrower, upon demand, shall pay to the Bank to be held for application to drawings under the Credit Facility, a sum which equals the entire commitment amount as of such date. Any amount so paid which has not been drawn on as of the expiration of the Credit Facility shall be applied to the Borrower's other liabilities to the Bank (as applicable), and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Borrower.

THE BORROWER

Gifford Medical Center, Inc.

Gifford Medical Center, or "Gifford," in Randolph, Vermont, is a 45-bed community medical center with 19 different specialties, a 24-hour emergency department and an inpatient unit, consisting of a 25 beds and a hospital-based 20-bed nursing home unit. Located in the geographic center of Vermont, Gifford's service area reaches into four counties within the state of Vermont.

In addition to the clinical offices located on the main campus, Gifford Medical Center operates five community health care centers located in Bethel, Chelsea, Randolph, Rochester and Sharon, Vermont. Gifford also provides limited services in Montpelier, Vermont and White River Junction, Vermont.

Gifford is licensed by the State of Vermont Department of Health and is certified as a Critical Access Hospital by the Department of Health and Human Services as a provider under the Medicare program. Begun in 1959, Gifford's cancer program is accredited by the American College of Surgeons Commission on Cancer, currently making it the smallest of the approximately 2,300 U.S. hospitals with an accredited cancer program.

Summary of Historic Utilization 2003-2005

The following tables provided by Gifford Medical Center show the utilization of the medical center for the periods indicated. Gifford Medical Center's fiscal year commences on October 1st and ends on September 30th of the following year.

	2003	2004	2005
Inpatient Care:			
Discharges	1,049	1,125	1,036
Days of Care	3,489	3,280	3,164
Length of Stay	3.3	2.9	3.1
Daily Census	9.6	9.0	8.7
Outpatient Care:			
Visits	9,706	10,007	10,012

Payor Mix 2003-2005

(as percent of gross revenues)

Set forth below is a summary of the source of patient revenues for Gifford for the periods indicated.

	2003	2004	2005
Medicare	37.6%	37.0%	36.0%
Medicaid	14.4%	16.1%	15.9%
Commercial	27.6%	24.1%	25.3%
Blue Cross	16.6%	17.4%	17.3%
Self Pay	3.7%	5.3%	5.4%

Description of the Project

A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used by the Borrower to pay, or reimbursing the Borrower for paying, a portion of the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating and equipping capital projects with respect to the Borrower's medical care facilities, including (a) the construction of a ten-bed addition to the Borrower's Nursing Home, the renovation and reconfiguring of the Borrower's Rehabilitative Services Department, Diagnostic Imaging Department, Pharmacy, Laboratory and some of its provider clinics, (b) facility system upgrades, including upgrades of the Borrower's emergency power systems, coolers, chillers and other upgrades, the addition of a new patient/visitor entrance serving the Obstetrics Department, the Medical Surgical Units, the Swing Bed Unit and the Nursing Home, and upgrades and replacements of medical technology equipment for diagnostic services (including for the Borrower's Diagnostic Imaging Department, Respiratory Therapy Department, Laboratory and some of its provider clinics), procedural services (including for the Borrower's Operating Room, Ambulatory Care Department and some of its outpatient clinics), and support services (including for the Borrower's Information Systems Department and other support departments), and (c) minor renovations, soundproofing, and patient privacy and comfort improvement projects (collectively, the "Project").

Audited Financial Statements Available

On or prior to the date of issuance and delivery of the Bonds, interested parties may request copies of the most recent audited financial statements relating to the Borrower through the office of A.G. Edwards & Sons, Inc., Public Finance E260, One North Jefferson Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63103-2287.

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of providing funds to (i) currently refund the Series 2003A Bonds, (ii) fund certain capital expenditures on behalf of the Borrower, (iii) pay a portion of the interest expected to accrue on the Bonds and (iv) pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. Set forth below are the estimated sources of funds that will be available for such purposes and the estimated uses of funds required for such purposes:

Sources of Funds

Par Amount of Bonds	\$20,315,000
Transfers from Prior Trustee Held Funds	117,000
Total Sources	\$ <u>20,432,000</u>
<u>Uses of Funds</u>	
Refinance 2003A Bonds	\$11,981,500
Capital Expenditures	7,794,000
Capitalized Interest	424,000
Cost of Issuance* and Credit Enhancement	232,500
Total Uses of Funds	\$ <u>20,432,000</u>

^{*} This amount includes underwriter's discount and other costs for legal, accounting, trustee, rating and printing expenses and financial advisor and Agency fees relating to the issuance of the Bonds. Any such expenses in excess of 2% of the proceeds of the Bonds will be paid by the Borrower from other funds. Credit Enhancement costs include the credit facility fees through September 30, 2006.

BONDHOLDERS' RISKS

Purchase of the Bonds involves a degree of risk. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should give careful consideration to the matters referred to in the following summary. Such summary should not be considered exhaustive, but rather informational only.

No Obligation of the State or any Municipality or Political Subdivision

Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State or of any municipality or political subdivision of the State is pledged to the payment of the Bonds. The Bonds are special obligations of the Agency payable solely from the sources described in this Official Statement.

Default by the Bank under the Credit Facility

The Bank's obligation under the Credit Facility will be a general obligation of the Bank that will not be guaranteed or secured, in whole or in part, by the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof. Default by the Bank might result in insufficient revenues being available to pay the principal of, premium, if any, on and accrued and unpaid interest on the Bonds. In the event of a default in payment by the Bank, the Bond Trustee may experience delays in seeking to enforce the obligations of the Bank under the Credit Facility.

Source of Payment of the Bonds

The Bonds are payable from drawings under the Credit Facility and from payments to be made by the Borrower under the Obligations and the Loan Agreement. While the future abilities of the Borrower to meet its obligations under the Loan Agreement are based upon assumptions and business judgments that the Borrower believes are reasonable and appropriate, they are subject to conditions which may change in the future to an extent that cannot be determined at this time. Thus, no assurance can be given that revenues will be realized by the Borrower in amounts sufficient to pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the Bonds.

The earning and revenue by the Borrower is subject to, among other things, demand for the services offered by the Borrower, the ability of the Borrower to continue to provide such services, competition, rates, costs, management and staff personnel and future economics and other developments, all of which are unpredictable and which may affect revenues and the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds.

There is no representation or assurance that the Borrower will generate sufficient revenues to meet its obligations under the Loan Agreement. The realization of future revenues and control of expenses is dependent upon, among other things, the capabilities of the management of the Borrower and the ability of its medical staff to maximize financial incentives and minimize disincentives under reimbursement systems.

The Borrower expects that it will experience increases in operating costs due to inflation and other factors. There is no assurance that cost increases will be matched by increased patient and other charges in amounts sufficient to generate an excess of revenues over expenses at the levels experienced by the Borrower.

The impact of new legislation affecting the health care industry as well as future amendments to or changes in laws or regulations promulgated pertaining to the reimbursement systems, future state and Federal funding of health care reimbursement programs, regulation of health care and future economic and other conditions are also unpredictable. Various mechanisms to limit the amount of money paid to health care providers under both the Medicare and Medicaid programs have been enacted, some of which have been implemented and some of which may be implemented in the future. These and future funding reductions could have a material adverse effect on the Borrower.

As a result of such uncertain factors, there can be no assurance that the Borrower will realize revenues sufficient to make the Loan Repayments.

Regulatory Matters and Third Party Payments

Under Vermont law, certain "new heath care projects" require a certificate of need issued by the Commissioner of the Vermont Department of Banking, Insurance, Securities and Health Care Administration ("BISHCA"). "New health care projects" generally include any capital expenditure by a hospital in excess of \$3,000,000; purchase or lease of any single piece of diagnostic or therapeutic equipment with a value in excess of \$1,000,000; any change in licensed bed capacity of a hospital; and the offering of any new service with an expected annual operating cost in excess of \$500,000. In addition, BISHCA may assert jurisdiction over projects that do meet the above dollar threshold under some circumstances. Receipt of a certificate of need is subject to public review and satisfaction of certain statutory criteria relating to need and cost. No assurance can be given as to the Borrower's ability to obtain certificate of need approval of future projects necessary for the maintenance of competitive rates and charges or quality and scope of care. The Borrower's failure to complete the Project within the approved certificate of need cost parameters could result in the imposition of penalties and/or other regulatory remedies.

The Borrower contracts with preferred provider and health maintenance organizations, commercial insurers and other third-party payors. Such preferred providers, health maintenance organizations and insurers currently pay hospitals on a discounted basis. No assurance can be given that the Borrower will obtain or maintain such contracts with third party payors at favorable rates.

Mandatory Tender

The Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the Expiration Date. No assurance can be given that the Bank will renew the Credit Facility or that the Borrower will be able to deliver Alternate or Substitute Credit Facilities that comply with the provisions of the Trust Agreement.

Enforcement of Bondholder Remedies; Bankruptcy

The Bond Trustee's right to enforce payment under the Loan Agreement and the Obligations under the Master Trust Indenture may be limited by bankruptcy proceedings and equity principles and may be subject to judicial discretion and delay. The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by any of the foregoing. Accordingly, there can be no assurances that the proceeds of any liquidation of the assets subject to the Master Trust Indenture would be available or available on a timely basis to pay the Bonds in full.

Bankruptcy proceedings by the Borrower could have adverse effects on holders of the Bonds, including (1) delay in enforcement of their remedies, (2) subordination of their claims to claims of those supplying goods and services to the Borrower after the initiation of bankruptcy proceedings and to the administrative expenses of bankruptcy proceedings, and (3) imposition without their consent of a plan of reorganization reducing or delaying payment of the Bonds. The effect of application of the United States Bankruptcy Code to any bankruptcy proceedings by the Borrower cannot be predicted and may be affected significantly by judicial interpretation.

The state of insolvency, fraudulent conveyance and bankruptcy laws relating to the enforceability of guaranties or obligations issued by a corporation in favor of the creditors of another, or the obligation of a member of the Obligated Group to make debt service payments on behalf of another member of the Obligated Group, is unsettled. The ability to enforce the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture (or any Obligations issued pursuant thereto) against any member of the Obligated Group may not be required to make any payment or to challenge. A member of any obligations, or portion thereof, the proceeds of which were not loaned or otherwise disbursed to such member, to the extent that such transfer would render such member insolvent or which would conflict with, not be permitted by or is subject to recovery for the benefit of other creditors of such member under applicable laws.

Covenant to Maintain Tax-Exempt Status of the Bonds

The tax-exempt status of the Bonds is based on the continued compliance by the Agency and the Borrower with certain covenants contained in the resolution of the Agency, the Loan Agreement and certain other documents executed by the Agency and the Borrower. These covenants relate generally to restrictions on use of facilities financed with proceeds of the Bonds, arbitrage limitations, rebate of certain excess investment earnings to the federal government and restrictions on the amount of issuance costs financed with the proceeds of the Bonds. Failure to comply with such covenants could cause interest on the Bonds to become subject to federal income taxation retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.

Limitations on the Pledge of Revenues

In the event of a redemption of the Bonds or an acceleration of the Bonds, and a default by the Bank under the Credit Facility, the Bond Trustee is authorized to enforce the obligations evidenced by an Obligation under the Master Trust Indenture. Enforcement of the pledge of the Pledged Assets may result in insufficient funds to pay the entire outstanding amount of principal and interest on the Bonds.

The Bankruptcy Code also substantially increases the ability of a bankruptcy court to modify the rights of a creditor holding a secured claim. In the event of a bankruptcy proceeding involving the Borrower, by virtue of the Master Trust Indenture, the Master Trustee should be treated under the Bankruptcy Code as one holding a secured claim, to the extent provided in the Master Trust Indenture. The potential effects of bankruptcy could be, among other things, to delay enforcement of remedies otherwise available to the Bond Trustee and allow the bankruptcy court, under certain circumstances, to subordinate the rights and liens created by the Master Trust Indenture, to sell all or part of the Borrower's assets without applying the proceeds of such sale to the Obligations, to permit the Borrower to cure defaults, or to modify the terms of or payments due under the Loan Agreement, the Master Trust Indenture or Obligation No. 1 or Obligation No. 2, as the case may be.

Limitations on Security Interests

The perfection of the security interests in the Gross Receipts of the Borrower may be limited by a number of factors. Under current law, such security interest may be limited by (i) statutory liens; (ii) rights arising in favor of the United States of America or any agency thereof; (iii) present or future prohibitions against assignments contained in any federal statues or regulation; (iv) constructive trusts, equitable liens and other rights impressed or conferred by any federal or state court in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction; (v) the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code affecting assignments of revenues earned after or within 366 days prior to any effectual institution of bankruptcy proceedings by or against the Borrower; (vi) rights of third parties in such property converted to cash and not in the possession of the Master Trustee; and (vii) the requirement that appropriate financing or continuation statements be filed in accordance with the UCC as from time to time in effect.

Other Risk Factors

In the future, the following factors, among others, may adversely affect the operations of the Borrower to an extent that cannot be determined at this time:

- (1) Employee strikes, labor shortages and other adverse labor actions that could result in a substantial reduction in revenues without corresponding decreases in costs.
- (2) Increased costs and decreased availability of liability insurance.
- (3) Cost and availability of energy.
- (4) High interest rates, which could strain cash flow or prevent borrowing for needed capital expenditures.

- (5) An increase in the costs of health care benefits, retirement plans, or other benefit packages offered by the Borrower to its employees.
- (6) Litigation.

THE BONDS ARE BEING OFFERED SOLELY ON THE BASIS OF THE FINANCIAL STRENGTH OF THE BANK AND NOT ON THE FINANCIAL STRENGTH OF THE BORROWER OR OTHER SECURITY. ONLY A BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE BORROWER IS INCLUDED HEREIN. THE OWNERS OF THE BONDS WILL NOT BE ABLE TO ASSESS THE LIKELIHOOD THAT PAYMENT OF THE BONDS WILL BE SUBJECT TO AN EXTRAORDINARY MANDATORY REDEMPTION BEFORE THE STATED MATURITY THEREOF BECAUSE OF AN EVENT OF DEFAULT UNDER THE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT, UPON WHICH REDEMPTION THE BONDS WOULD CEASE TO ACCRUE INTEREST AND WOULD BE PAYABLE AT PAR. SEE "DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS" HEREIN.

TAX EXEMPTION

Opinion of Bond Counsel

Sidley Austin LLP, New York, New York, as Bond Counsel, will be delivering an opinion with respect to the Bonds. The following is a summary of the opinion to be delivered by Sidley Austin LLP, New York, New York.

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, based on existing statutes, regulations and court decisions and assuming compliance by the Borrower and the Agency with certain requirements of the Code and covenants of the Borrower in the Loan Agreement and Trust Agreement regarding the use, expenditure and investment of proceeds of the Bonds and the timely payment of certain investment earnings to the US. Treasury, if required, interest on the Bonds is not includable in the gross income of the owners of the Bonds for purposes of federal income taxation. Failure by the Borrower or the Agency to comply with their respective covenants to comply with the provisions of the Code regarding the use, expenditure and investment of proceeds of the Bonds and the timely payment of certain investment earnings to the Treasury of the United States may cause interest on the Bonds to become included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to their date of issuance. The covenant of the Agency described above does not require the Agency to make any financial contribution for which it does not receive funds from the Borrower with respect to the Bonds. Bond Counsel will express no opinion as to the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes to the extent that the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes is adversely affected as a result of the taking of any action upon the approval of counsel other than Bond Counsel.

Bond Counsel's opinion relies on certain representations made by the Borrower with respect to certain material facts within the knowledge of the Borrower which Bond Counsel has

not independently verified and upon the accompanying opinion of McKee, Giuliani & Cleveland, P.C., Montpelier, Vermont, counsel to the Borrower, that the Borrower is an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code or corresponding provisions of prior law and that, to the best of such counsel's knowledge, the Borrower has done nothing to impair such status. The tax exemption of interest on the Bonds is dependent upon, among other things, the status of the Borrower with respect to the Bonds as a "Section 501(c)(3) organization" and, therefore, the conclusion of Bond Counsel that such interest is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes is dependent, in part, upon the opinion of the aforementioned counsel.

Alternative Minimum Tax

Interest on the Bonds will not be treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum taxable income of individuals and corporations; however, interest on the Bonds will be included in the calculation of the alternative minimum tax liabilities of corporations.

Other Tax Consequences

Ownership of tax-exempt obligations may result in collateral federal income tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, financial institutions, property and casualty insurance companies, certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States, certain S corporations with excess passive income, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continue indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations and taxpayers who may be eligible for the earned income credit. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to the applicability of any such collateral consequences.

Legislation affecting municipal securities is constantly being considered by the United States Congress. There can be no assurance that legislation enacted after the date of issuance of the Bonds will not have an adverse effect on the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. Legislation or regulatory actions and proposals may also affect the economic value of tax exemption or the market price of the Bonds.

The Act provides that the bonds of the Agency and the income therefrom shall at all times be exempt from taxation in the State, except for transfer and estate taxes.

LEGALITY OF BONDS FOR INVESTMENT

The Act provides that the bonds of the Agency are securities in which all public officers and bodies of the State and all municipalities and municipal subdivisions, all insurance companies and associations, all savings banks and savings institutions, including savings and loan associations, administrators, guardians, executors, trustees, committees and other fiduciaries in the State may properly and legally invest funds in their control.

STATE NOT LIABLE ON BONDS

The State is not liable for the payment of the principal of premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, or for the performance of any pledge, obligation or agreement of any kind whatsoever which may be undertaken by the Agency, and neither the Bonds nor any of the Agency's agreements or obligations shall be construed to constitute an indebtedness of the State within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision whatsoever, nor shall the Bonds directly or indirectly or contingently obligate the State or any municipality or political subdivision thereof to levy or to pledge any form of taxation whatever therefor or to make any appropriation for their payment.

COVENANT BY THE STATE

Under the Act, the State does pledge to and agree with the holders of the Bonds that the State will not limit or alter the rights vested in the Agency until the Bonds, together with interest thereon, with interest on any unpaid installment of interest, and all costs and expenses incurred by the Agency in connection with the facilities or in connection with any action or proceedings by or on behalf of the bondholders, are fully met and discharged.

RATING

A rating has been requested from Standard & Poor's ("S&P") for the Bonds. It is expected that, when issued by S&P, the rating for the Bonds will be "A/A-1". A rating, when issued, reflects only an opinion of S&P and is not a recommendation to buy or sell the Bonds. An explanation of the significance of such rating should be obtained from Standard and Poor's, 55 Water Street, New York, New York 10041.

Generally, a rating agency bases its ratings on the information and materials furnished it and on investigations, studies and assumptions by the rating agency. There is no assurance that a particular rating will apply for any given period of time or that it will not be lowered or withdrawn entirely if, in the judgment of the agency originally establishing the rating, circumstances so warrant. The Underwriter has undertaken no responsibility either to bring to the attention of the holders of the Bonds any proposed revision or withdrawal of the rating of the Bonds or to oppose any such proposed revision or withdrawal. Any downward revision or withdrawal of such rating could have an adverse effect on the market price or marketability of the Bonds. Such rating should not be taken as a recommendation to buy or hold the Bonds.

NO LITIGATION

There is not now pending any litigation against the Agency restraining or enjoining the issuance or delivery of the Bonds or questioning or affecting the validity of the Bonds or the proceedings and authority under which they are to be issued. Neither the creation, organization or existence, nor the title of the present members or other officers of the Agency to their

respective offices, is being contested. There is no litigation pending against the Agency which in any manner questions the right of the Agency to make the loan to the Borrower contemplated by the Loan Agreement.

The Borrower is not aware of any litigation pending or threatened, to which the Borrower is a party, wherein any unfavorable decision would adversely affect the ability of the Borrower to enter into the Loan Agreement, issue its Obligation Nos. 1 and 2 or carry out its obligations thereunder.

APPROVAL OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds are subject to the approval of legality by Sidley Austin LLP, New York, New York. Copies of such opinion will be available at the time of delivery of the Bonds. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Agency by its counsel, Deppman & Foley, P.C., Middlebury, Vermont, for the Bank by its counsel, Murphy Sullivan Kronk, Burlington, Vermont, and its co-counsel, Calfee, Halter & Griswold LLP, Cleveland, Ohio; for the Borrower by its counsel, McKee, Giuliani & Cleveland, P.C., Montpelier, Vermont; and for the Underwriter by its counsel, Burak Anderson & Melloni, PLC, Burlington, Vermont.

FINANCIAL ADVISORS

Public Financial Management, Inc., Boston, Massachusetts, served as financial advisor to the Agency in this transaction, and Bittel Financial Advisors, Wynnewood, Pennsylvania, served as financial advisor to the Borrower.

UNDERWRITING

The Underwriter will agree to purchase the Bonds from the Agency pursuant to a bond purchase agreement by and among the Agency the Borrower and the Underwriter at a purchase price equal to the par amount of the Bonds, less an underwriter's discount of \$37,582.75. The Underwriter will purchase all Bonds if any are purchased. The Underwriter initially intends to offer the Bonds to the public at the prices shown on the cover page. The Borrower has agreed to indemnify the Underwriter and the Agency with respect to certain information contained in this Official Statement.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

Although the offering of the Bonds is exempt from the provisions of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12, the Borrower has committed in the Loan Agreement, upon conversion of the Bonds to an Extended Rate Period or a Fixed Rate Period, to provide certain information on an ongoing basis.

OTHER MATTERS

The foregoing summaries and explanations do not purport to be comprehensive and are expressly made subject to the exact provisions of documents referred to herein. So far as any statements are made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, they are intended merely as such and not as representations of fact.

The agreement of the Agency with the holders of the Bonds is fully set forth in the Trust Agreement, and this Official Statement is not to be construed as constituting an agreement with the purchasers of the Bonds. Except as set forth above under the heading "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE," neither the Agency nor the Borrower has committed to provide information on an ongoing basis concerning the Agency or the Borrower.

The Borrower has reviewed the information contained herein that relates to it and the Project, and has approved all such information for use in this Official Statement.

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement have been duly authorized by the Agency.

This Official Statement is in a form "Deemed Final" by the Agency for the purpose of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12.

VERMONT EDUCATIONAL AND HEALTH BUILDINGS FINANCING AGENCY

By: <u>/s/ Robert W. Giroux</u> Executive Director

APPENDIX A -INFORMATION CONCERNING THE BANK

<u>General</u>

KeyBank National Association (the "Bank") is a national banking association headquartered in Cleveland, Ohio serving markets throughout the United States. The Bank provides customized financial services to individuals, businesses and other institutions.

At March 31, 2006, the Bank had total assets of approximately \$88.9 billion and total shareholder's equity of approximately \$7.0 billion. The Statement of Condition of the Bank at March 31, 2006, is set forth on the following page.

All of the Bank's capital stock is owned by KeyCorp, a publicly-held multi-line financial services company headquartered in Cleveland, Ohio, the common stock of which is registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. At March 31, 2006, the Bank represented approximately 95% of the assets of KeyCorp. KeyCorp files annual and other reports containing audited, consolidated financial and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission, 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20659 and copies of this information may be obtained from the Commission upon payment of copying charges, or examined at the Commission's offices without charge. THE LETTER OF CREDIT IS AN UNSECURED OBLIGATION OF THE BANK AND NOT OF KEYCORP. KEYCORP HAS NOT GUARANTEED THE BANK'S OBLIGATION UNDER THE LETTER OF CREDIT OR THE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT AND IS NOT AND WILL NOT BECOME OBLIGATED IN ANY MANNER WITH RESPECT THERETO.

The Bank will supply, without charge to any person to whom this Official Statement is delivered, a copy of the KeyCorp Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, as well as copies of reports on Forms 10-Q or 8-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, by calling the Bank's Toll Free Financial Report Request Line 1-888-539-3322.

Limitation of Responsibilities

The Bank is responsible only for the information contained in this Appendix and did not participate in the preparation of, or in any way verify the information contained in, any other part of the Official Statement. Accordingly, the Bank assumes no responsibility for and makes no representation or warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of information contained in any other part of the Official Statement.

KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION Consolidated Statement of Condition March 31, 2006

ASSETS		In thousands
Cash and balances due from depository institutions	\$	2,861,277
U. S. Treasury securities	•	5,396
U. S. Government agency obligations		64,818
Mortgage-backed securities		6,625,566
Asset-backed securities		181,816
Securities issued by states and political subdivisions in the U.S.		50,244
Investments in mutual funds and other equity securities with		
readily determinable fair values		18,419
Other debt securities		22,828
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell		211,439 69,468,536
Loans and lease financing receivables, net of unearned income and allowance Trading assets		1,026,215
Premises and fixed assets		529,341
Other real estate owned		20,681
Intangible assets		1,324,293
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies		751,114
Other assets		5,715,102
Total Assets	\$	88,877,085
LIABILITIES		
Deposits		
In domestic offices		
Individuals, partnerships and corporations	\$	52,312,856
U. S. Government		20,793
States and political subdivisions in the U.S.		4,185,267
Commercial banks and other depository institutions in the U.S.		263,782
Banks in foreign countries In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs		3,543 4,286,367
Total Deposits		61,072,608
		01,072,000
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase		3,113,244
Trading liabilities		852,482
Other borrowed money		7,941,853
Subordinated notes and debentures		3,897,962
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries		1,122,588
Other liabilities		3,911,538
Total Liabilities		81,912,275
EQUITY CAPITAL		
Common stock		50,000
Surplus		1,716,572
Retained earnings		5,291,563
Accumulated other comprehensive loss		(93,325)
Total Equity Capital		6,964,810
Total Liabilities and Equity Capital	\$	88,877,085

APPENDIX B -DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS AND SUMMARIES OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND THE TRUST AGREEMENT AND COPY OF THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE

DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS

The following is a summary of the definitions of certain items contained in the Loan Agreement and the Trust Agreement and used in this Official Statement. Accordingly, the term "Corporation", as used in this Appendix B, refers to the Borrower.

"Act of Bankruptcy" means a filing of a petition of bankruptcy (or any other commencement of bankruptcy or similar proceedings) by or against the Corporation or the Agency under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar law, as now or hereafter in effect.

"Alternate Credit Facility" means any validly issued letter of credit delivered to the Bond Trustee and being substituted for the Credit Facility then in effect pursuant to the Trust Agreement and which fails to qualify as a Substitute Credit Facility.

"Available Moneys" means (i) money or Defeasance Obligations deposited by the Corporation in trust with the Bond Trustee that have been held in trust by the Bond Trustee for at least 123 days (365 days if the Corporation is no longer the sole Member of the Obligated Group) prior to the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, determined on a first-in- first-out basis, without an intervening Act of Bankruptcy, (ii) proceeds of the Bonds deposited in the Interest Account, (iii) money that would not be a preference payment under the United States Bankruptcy Code, as indicated in an Opinion of Counsel nationally recognized as expert in bankruptcy law, and (iv) any investment of amounts specified in (i), (ii) and (iii) above and the proceeds from the investment thereof. For the purposes hereof, the Bond Trustee shall not be required to consider amounts to be Available Moneys unless such amounts represent draws under the Credit Facility or, as of the Business Day next preceding any date on which payment or disbursement is to be made by the Bond Trustee, the Bond Trustee has received a certificate of an officer of the Corporation and an Opinion of Counsel satisfactory to the Bond Trustee to the effect that no Act of Bankruptcy exists or has occurred which would result in such funds being considered voidable preferences in the event of an Act of Bankruptcy.

"Bank" means Keybank National Association, issuer of the initial Credit Facility, and any legal successors thereto, or any other entity providing a Substitute Credit Facility except for the Corporation.

"Bank Obligations" means all obligations of the Corporation to the Bank under the Reimbursement Agreement.

"Bank Rate" means, with respect to the Bonds, the rate of interest per annum payable in respect to such Bonds held by or for the account of the Bank as provided in the Trust Agreement.

"Beneficial Owner" means the Person in whose name a Bond is recorded as beneficial owner of such Bond by the Securities Depository or a Participant or an Indirect Participant on the records of such Securities Depository, Participant or Indirect Participant, as the case may be, or such Person's subrogee.

"Bond Fund" means the Bond Fund created under the Trust Agreement.

"Bonds" means the Bonds of the Agency issued pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

"Bond Year" means the period commencing on the first day of October of any year and ending on the last day of September in the following year.

"Book Entry Bonds" means Bonds of which a Securities Depository or its nominee is the Holder.

"Book-Entry System" means a book-entry system established and operated for the recordation of Beneficial Owners of the Bonds pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

"Business Day" means any day other than (i) a Saturday or Sunday or legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in any city in which the principal office of the Bond Trustee, the Tender Agent, the Remarketing Agent or the Bank is located are authorized or required by law or executive order to close, or (ii) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

"Corporation Representative" means each of the persons at the time designated to act on behalf of the Corporation in a written certificate furnished to the Agency and the Bond Trustee, which certificate shall contain the specimen signature(s) of such person(s) and shall be signed on behalf of the Corporation by its president or chief financial officer.

"Cost" means, without intending thereby to limit or restrict any proper definition of such word under the Act, all items of cost set forth in the Trust Agreement.

"Credit Facility" means the irrevocable direct pay letter of credit dated the date of delivery of the Bonds, issued by the Bank pursuant to the Reimbursement Agreement and any extensions, renewals or substitutions thereof pursuant to the Reimbursement Agreement; provided, however, that upon the substitution of an Alternate Credit Facility or a Substitute Credit Facility pursuant to the Trust Agreement for any Credit Facility held by the Bond Trustee, "Credit Facility" shall mean such Alternate Credit Facility or Substitute Credit Facility, as the case may be.

"Daily Rate" means the interest rate to be determined for the Bonds during any Daily Interest Period pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

"Defaulted Interest" means any interest on any Bond which is payable, but is not punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date.

"Defeasance Obligations" means (i) noncallable Government Obligations, (ii) evidences of ownership of a proportionate interest in specified noncallable Government Obligations, which Government Obligations are held by a bank or trust company organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof in the capacity of custodian, (iii) Defeased Municipal Obligations and (iv) evidences of ownership of a proportionate interest in specified Defeased Municipal Obligations, which Defeased Municipal Obligations are held by a bank or trust company organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof in the capacity as custodian.

"Defeased Municipal Obligations" means obligations of state or local government municipal bond issuers which are rated in the highest rating category by S&P and Moody's, respectively, provision for the payment of the principal of and interest on which shall have been made by deposit with a trustee or escrow agent of (i) noncallable Government Obligations, (ii) evidences of ownership of a proportionate interest in specified noncallable Government Obligations, (iii) cash or (iv) any combination of such noncallable Government Obligations, evidences of ownership and cash, which Government Obligations or evidences of ownership, together with any cash, are held by a bank or trust company organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof in the capacity of custodian, the maturing principal of and interest on such Government Obligations or evidences of ownership, when due and payable, being sufficient, together with any cash, to provide money to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such obligations of such state or local government municipal bond issuers.

"Expiration Date" means the date six days prior to the date upon which the Credit Facility will expire in accordance with its terms, without regard to earlier termination upon the occurrence of certain events.

"Extended Rate" means the rate at which the Bonds shall bear interest during any Extended Rate Period.

"Fixed Rate" means the rate or rates at which the Bonds shall bear interest from and including the Fixed Rate Conversion Date to the maturity date thereof.

"Government Obligations" means direct obligations of, or obligations the timely payment of the principal of and interest on which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America.

"Holder" means a person in whose name a Bond is registered in the registration books of the Bond Trustee.

"Indirect Participant" means a broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which the Securities Depository holds Bonds as a securities depository through a Participant.

"Interest Payment Date" means, (a) when used with respect to Bonds bearing interest at other than the Bank Rate, the Extended Rate or the Fixed Rate, the first Business Day of each calendar month, (b) when used with respect to Bonds bearing interest at the Bank Rate, the date the Remarketing Agent is able to sell such Bonds pursuant to the Trust Agreement, (c) when used with respect to Bonds bearing interest at the Extended Rate, the first Business Day of the sixth month following the Extended Rate Conversion Date and the first Business Day of each sixth calendar month thereafter, and (d) when used with respect to Bonds bearing interest at the Fixed Rate, each April 1 and October 1.

"Investment Obligations" means:

(1) Defeasance Obligations;

(2) bonds, debentures, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued by any of the following agencies or any other like governmental or government-sponsored agencies which are hereafter created: Bank for Cooperatives; Federal Intermediate Credit Banks; Federal Financing Bank; Federal Home Loan Bank System; Export Import Bank of the United States; Farmers Home Administration; Small Business Administration Inter-American Development Bank; International Bank for Reconstruction and Development; Federal Land Banks; and Government National Mortgage Association;

(3) direct and general obligations of any state of the United States of America or any municipality or political subdivision of such state, or obligations of any corporation, if such obligations are rated in one of the two highest rating categories by S&P and Moody's and, if rated by S&P, are not on Creditwatch, or, upon the discontinuance of either or both of such services, any other nationally recognized rating services;

(4) negotiable or non-negotiable certificates of deposit, time deposits, or other similar banking arrangements, issued by any bank (including the Bond Trustee) or trust company or any savings and loan association, and either (i) the long-term obligations of such bank or trust company or savings and loan association are rated in one of the two highest rating categories by S&P and Moody's or (ii) the deposits are continuously secured as to principal, but only to the extent not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, or similar corporation chartered by the United States of America, (a) by lodging with a bank or trust company, as collateral security, obligations described in paragraph (1) or (2) above or, with the approval of the Bond Trustee, other marketable securities eligible as security for the deposit of trust funds under applicable regulations of the Comptroller or the Currency of the United States or applicable state law or regulations, having a market value (exclusive of accrued interest) not less than the amount of such deposit, or (b) if the furnishing of security as provided in clause (a) of this paragraph is not permitted by applicable law, in such manner as may then be required or permitted by applicable state or federal laws and regulations regarding the security for, or granting a preference in the case of, the deposit of trust funds;

(5) repurchase agreements with respect to obligations listed in paragraph (1) or (2) above if entered into with a bank (including the Bond Trustee), trust company or a broker or dealer (as defined by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) which is a dealer in government bonds which reports to, trades with and is recognized as a primary dealer by a Federal Reserve Bank, and which is a member of the Securities Investors Protection Corporation

if (i) such obligations that are the subject of such repurchase agreement are delivered to the Bond Trustee or are supported by a safe-keeping receipt issued by a depository satisfactory to the Bond Trustee, provided that such repurchase agreement must provide that the value of the underlying obligations shall be maintained at a current market value, calculated no less frequently than monthly, of not less than the repurchase price, (ii) a prior perfected security interest in the obligations which are the subject of such repurchase agreement has been granted to the Bond Trustee and (iii) such obligations are free and clear of any adverse third party claims;

(6) commercial paper rated in the highest rating category by S&P and Moody's;

(7) money market funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, whose shares are registered under the Securities Act of 1933, and having a rating by S&P of AAAm-G, AAA-m, or AA-m and if rated by Moody's, rated Aaa, Aa1 or Aa2;

(8) investment agreements continuously secured by the obligations listed in paragraphs (1), (2) or (4) above, with any bank, trust company or broker or dealer (as defined by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) which is a dealer in government bonds, which reports to, trades with and is recognized as a primary dealer by, a Federal Reserve Bank, and is a member of the Securities Investors Protection Corporation if (i) such obligations are delivered to the Bond Trustee or are supported by a safekeeping receipt issued by a depository satisfactory to the Bond Trustee, provided that such investment agreements must provide that the value of the underlying obligations shall be maintained at a current market value, calculated no less frequently than monthly, of not less than the amount deposited thereunder, (ii) a prior perfected security interest in the obligations which are securing such agreement has been granted to the Bond Trustee, and (iii) such obligations are free and clear of any adverse third party claims;

(9) investment agreements with any bank (including a domestic branch of a foreign bank), trust company, insurance company, insurance holding company, corporation or other financial institution which has long-term obligations rated in one of the two highest rating categories by S&P and Moody's; and

(10) so long as the Credit Facility is in effect and has not been dishonored, any other investment approved in writing by the Bank.

"Loan Repayments" means the payments so described under the caption "Loan Repayments; Required Payments Under the Loan Agreement" in the Summary of the Loan Agreement in this Appendix B.

"Mandatory Tender Date" means any date on which the Bonds are subject to mandatory tender pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, its successors and their assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, "Moody's" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency appointed by the Corporation and approved by the Agency.

"Optional Tender Date" means any date on which the Bonds are subject to optional tender pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

"Outstanding" when used with reference to Bonds means, as of a particular date, all Bonds theretofore issued under the Trust Agreement, except:

(a) Bonds theretofore cancelled by the Bond Registrar or delivered to the Bond Registrar for cancellation;

(b) Bonds, for the payment of which money, Defeasance Obligations, or a combination of both, sufficient to pay, on the date when such Bonds are to be paid or redeemed, the principal or Redemption Price of, and the interest accruing to such date on, the Bonds to be paid or redeemed, has been deposited with the Bond Trustee or the Bond Registrar in trust for the Holders of such Bonds; Defeasance Obligations shall be deemed to be sufficient to pay or redeem Bonds on a specified date if the principal of and the interest on such Government Obligations,

when due, will be sufficient to pay on such date the principal or Redemption Price of, and the interest accruing on, such Bonds to such date;

(c) Bonds in exchange for or in lieu of which other Bonds have been issued;

(d) Bonds deemed to have been paid in accordance with the Trust Agreement; provided, however, that so long as the Credit Facility is in effect, any moneys or Government Obligations deposited pursuant to the Trust Agreement and used to pay amounts due or to become due on the Bonds shall not, in the Opinion of Counsel of recognized standing in matters pertaining to bankruptcy laws, constitute a voidable preference if an Act of Bankruptcy occurs; and

(e) Undelivered Bonds;

provided, however, that any Bond paid from the proceeds of a drawing under the Credit Facility shall be deemed Outstanding and not to have been paid until the principal of and all interest on such Bond shall be paid by the Corporation to the Bank; and provided, further, however, if payment for the Bonds has been provided for pursuant to the Trust Agreement prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date such Bonds shall be deemed Outstanding and not to have been paid and continue to enjoy the security and benefits of the Trust Agreement but only to the extent required to assure the repurchase of such Bonds in the manner provided for in the Trust Agreement and in the Remarketing Agreement.

"Participant" means a broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which the Securities Depository holds Bonds as a securities depository.

"Purchase Date", when used with respect to any Bond, means any date on which the Tender Agent is obligated to purchase such Bond.

"Purchase Price" of any Bond required to be purchased by the Tender Agent means an amount equal to the principal amount of such Bond plus accrued interest thereon if the Purchase Date is other than an Interest Payment Date at the rate applicable to such Bond from the most recent Interest Payment Date to but excluding the Purchase Date.

"Rate Period" means, when used with respect to any particular rate of interest, the period during which such rate of interest determined for the Bonds will remain in effect pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

"Redemption Fund" means the Redemption Fund created under the Trust Agreement and described in the Summary of the Trust Agreement in this Appendix B.

"Redemption Price" means, with respect to Bonds or a portion thereof, the principal amount of such Bonds or portion thereof plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon redemption thereof.

"Reimbursement Agreement" means the Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2006, between the Bank and the Corporation pursuant to which the initial Credit Facility is issued, and also includes any similar agreement between the Corporation and the Bank pursuant to which a Substitute Credit Facility is issued and including, in each case, all amendments and supplements thereto.

"Required Payments Under the Loan Agreement" means the payments so described under the caption "Loan Repayments; Required Payments Under the Loan Agreement" in the Summary of the Loan Agreement in this Appendix B.

"Securities Depository" means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and any substitute for or successor to such securities depository that shall maintain a Book-Entry System with respect to the Bonds.

"Securities Depository Nominee" means the Securities Depository or the nominee of such Securities Depository in whose name there shall be registered on the Register the Bonds to be delivered to such Securities Depository during the continuation with such Securities Depository of participation in its Book-Entry System.

"S&P" means Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, its successors and their assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, "S&P" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency appointed by the Corporation and approved by the Agency.

"Sinking Fund Requirement" means, with respect to Bonds for any Bond Year, the principal amount fixed or computed as hereinafter provided for the retirement of such Bonds by purchase or redemption on October 1 of the following Bond Year.

The Sinking Fund Requirement for the Bonds for each Bond Year shall be initially the respective principal amounts of such Bonds to be redeemed, or otherwise retired, on October 1 of the following Bond Year as provided in the Trust Agreement. The Sinking Fund Requirements for the Bonds are as set forth under the subheading "Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Without Premium" under the heading, "DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS" set forth herein.

"State" means the State of Vermont.

"Substitute Credit Facility" means any validly issued irrevocable letter of credit containing substantially the same terms as the initial Credit Facility, delivered to the Bond Trustee and being substituted for the Credit Facility then in effect pursuant to the Trust Agreement. (See "Alternate Credit Supports - Substitute Credit Facilities" under the heading "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS" set forth herein.)

"Total Required Payments" means the sum of Loan Repayments and Required Payments under the Loan Agreement.

"Undelivered Bonds" means Bonds which are deemed to have been tendered to the Tender Agent, as provided in the Trust Agreement, but which have not been surrendered to the Tender Agent.

"Variable Rate" means, as the context requires, the Daily, Weekly or Extended Rate applicable to the Bonds.

"Weekly Rate" means the interest rate to be determined for the Bonds during any Weekly Interest Period pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

SUMMARY OF LOAN AGREEMENT

Loans Repayments; Required Payments Under the Loan Agreement

The Corporation is required to make Total Required Payments under the Loan Agreement when due.

Loan Repayments are required to be sufficient in the aggregate to repay the Loan and interest thereon and to pay in full all Bonds outstanding under the Trust Agreement, together with the total interest and redemption premium, if any, thereon. The Corporation is required to repay the Loan in installments, each installment being deemed a Loan Repayment. The Corporation may prepay all or any part of the loan as provided in the Loan Agreement.

The Corporation shall also pay, when due and payable, as Required Payments under the Loan Agreement, the following costs and expenses, exclusive of costs and expenses payable from the proceeds of the Bonds:

(i) the fees and other costs incurred for services of the Master Trustee (and, if not paid when due, interest thereon at its base rate), the Tender Agent (and, if not paid when due, interest thereon at its base rate), the Remarketing Agent, the Bank and any rating agency rating the Bonds;

(ii) the fees and other costs payable to the Bond Trustee (and, if not paid when due, interest thereon at its base rate);

(iii) all costs incurred in connection with the purchase or redemption of Bonds to the extent money is not otherwise available therefor;

(iv) the fees and other costs incurred for services of such engineers, architects, attorneys, management consultants, insurance advisers, and accountants as are employed to make examinations, provide service, render opinions or prepare reports required under the Loan Agreement, the Master Indenture or the Trust Agreement;

(v) reasonable fees and other costs that the Corporation is obligated to pay, not otherwise paid under the Loan Agreement or the Trust Agreement, incurred by the Agency in connection with its administration and enforcement of, and compliance with, the Loan Agreement or the Trust Agreement, including, but not limited to, the annual administrative fee imposed by the Agency in an annual amount not to exceed 1/10 of 1% of the original aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, which annual amount is payable October 1 of each calendar year commencing October 1, 2006, and reasonable attorneys' fees;

(vi) all costs incurred by the Agency or the Bond Trustee in connection with the discontinuation of or withdrawal from any book-entry system for the Bonds or any transfer from one book-entry system to another, including, without limitation, the printing and issuance of additional or substitute Bonds in connection with such withdrawal, discontinuance or transfer; and

(vii) fees and other costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds to the extent such fees and other costs are not paid from the proceeds of the Bonds.

Absolute Obligation to Make Total Required Payments

So long as any Bonds remain Outstanding or Bank Obligations remain unpaid, the obligation of the Corporation to make Total Required Payments shall be absolute and unconditional. The Corporation will pay without abatement, diminution or deduction (whether for taxes or otherwise) all such amounts regardless of any cause or circumstance whatsoever including, without limitation, any defense, set-off, recoupment or counterclaim that the Corporation may have or assert against the Agency or the Bond Trustee or any other person.

Other Covenants of the Corporation

The Loan Agreement provides that the Corporation will comply with each covenant, condition and agreement in the Master Indenture. The Loan Agreement also sets forth certain other agreements of the Corporation with respect to among other things: merger, sale and transfer of assets; examination of books and records of the Corporation; furnishing to the Agency, the Bond Trustee, the Bank, and any Holder who requests in writing, the financial statements and certain other information required to be furnished under the Master Trust Indenture; the execution, acknowledgment and delivery of supplements, amendments and such further instruments as may reasonably be required with respect to the performance of the Loan Agreement; inspection of any Operating Assets by the Agency, the Bond Trustee, the Bank and the Holders of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds; and secondary market disclosure.

Amendments to Master Indenture

So long as any Bonds are Outstanding, the Master Indenture shall not be amended without the prior written consent of the Agency and, subject to the provisions of Supplement No. 2, the Bank if such amendment would require the consent of all or a portion of the Holders of the Obligations then Outstanding.

Defaults and Remedies

Events of Default are defined in the Loan Agreement to include: (a) failure of the Corporation to make any payment required under the Loan Agreement (including, but not limited to, Loan Repayments) or under the Obligation related to the Loan Agreement when due, whether at maturity, redemption, acceleration or otherwise, (b) failure of the Corporation to perform, observe or comply with any covenant, condition or agreement on its part under the Loan Agreement (other than a failure to make any payments described under clause (a) of this paragraph), including any covenant, condition or agreement in the Master Indenture applicable to the any Member of the Obligated Group and incorporated by reference in the Loan Agreement, and such failure continues for a period of thirty (30) days after the date on which written notice of such failure, requiring the same to be remedied, has been given to the Corporation by the Bond Trustee or to the Corporation and the Bond Trustee by the Holders of at least twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding; provided, however, that if such performance, observation or compliance requires work to be done, action to be taken or conditions to be remedied, which by their nature cannot reasonably be done, taken or remedied, as the case may be, within such 30day period, no Event of Default shall be deemed to have occurred or to exist if, and so long as, the Corporation shall commence such performance, observation or compliance within such period and shall diligently and continuously prosecute the same to completion; or (c) the Master Trustee has declared the aggregate principal amount of the Obligation related to the Loan Agreement and all interest due thereon immediately due and payable in accordance with the Master Indenture.

Upon the happening and continuance of an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement, the Agency may take the following remedial steps: (i) in the case of an Event of Default described in clause (a) in the preceding paragraph, take whatever action at law or in equity is necessary or desirable to collect the payments then due under the Obligation related to the Loan Agreement; (ii) in the case of an Event of Default described in clause (b) in the preceding paragraph, take whatever action at law or in equity is necessary or desirable to enforce the performance, observance or compliance by the Corporation with any covenant, condition or agreement by the Corporation under the Loan Agreement; and (iii) in the case of an Event of Default described in clause (c) in the preceding paragraph, take such action, or cease such action, as the Master Trustee shall direct, but only to the extent such directions are consistent with the provisions of the Master Indenture.

Prepayment of the Loan

The Corporation has the option to prepay, together with accrued interest, all or any portion of the unpaid aggregate amount of the Loan by redeeming Bonds in accordance with the Trust Agreement. Such prepayment will be made by the Corporation taking, or causing the Agency to take, the actions required (i) for payment of the Bonds, whether by redemption or purchase prior to maturity or by payment at maturity, or (ii) to effect the purchase, redemption or payment at maturity of less than all of the Outstanding Bonds according to their terms.

The Corporation has the option to prepay the unpaid aggregate amount of the Loan, together with accrued interest to the date of prepayment, upon the occurrence of the following events: (a) damage or destruction of all or any part (if damage or destruction of such part causes the Corporation to be impracticable to operate, as evidenced by an Officer's Certificate filed with the Agency and the Bond Trustee) of the Operating Assets by fire or casualty, or loss of title to or use of substantially all of the Operating Assets as a result of the failure of title or as a result of Eminent Domain proceedings or proceedings in lieu thereof; or (b) changes in the Constitution of the United States of America or of the State or of legislation or administrative action, or failure of administrative action by the United States of America or the State or any agency or political subdivision of either, or any by reason of any judicial decision; in either event to such extent that in the opinion of the board of directors of the Corporation (expressed in a resolution) and in the opinion of an independent architect, engineer or management consultant (as may be appropriate for the particular event), both filed with the Agency and the Bond Trustee, (i) the Loan Agreement is impossible to perform without reasonable delay or (ii) unreasonable burdens or excessive liabilities not being imposed on the date of the Loan Agreement are imposed on the Corporation.

The Corporation shall have the right to revoke any notice of prepayment given pursuant to the Loan Agreement if and to the same extent that a notice of optional redemption given pursuant to the Trust Agreement contains conditions under which the call for redemption may be revoked.

Amendment of Loan Agreement

The Loan Agreement may be amended, without the consent of or notice to any of the Holders, to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission therein or in any supplement thereto; to correct or supplement any provisions therein which may be inconsistent with any other provisions therein or make any other provisions with respect to matters which do not materially and adversely affect the interest of the Holders; to grant to or confer upon the Bond Trustee for the benefit of the Holders any additional rights, remedies, powers, authority or security that may lawfully be granted or conferred upon the Holders or the Bond Trustee; or to add conditions, limitations and restrictions on the Corporation to be observed thereafter.

Other than amendments referred to in the preceding paragraph and subject to the terms and provisions and limitations contained in the Trust Agreement and not otherwise, the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have the right, from time to time, to consent to and approve the execution by the Corporation and the Agency of such supplements and amendments as shall be deemed necessary and desirable for the purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in the Loan Agreement; provided, however, nothing in the Loan Agreement shall permit or be construed as permitting a supplement or amendment which would:

(i) Extend the stated maturity of or time for paying interest on the Obligation related to the Loan Agreement or reduce the principal amount of or the redemption premium or rate of interest payable on such Obligation without the consent of the Holders of all Bonds then Outstanding;

(ii) Except as expressly permitted at the time of execution of the Loan Agreement, grant to the registered owner of any Indebtedness (as defined in the Master Indenture) a security interest in Pledged Assets superior to that of the Holders without the consent of the Holders of all Bonds then Outstanding; or

(iii) Reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding the consent of the Holders of which is required to authorize such supplement or amendment without the consent of the Holders of all Bonds then Outstanding.

Members, Directors, Trustees, Officers and Employees of the Agency and the Corporation Not Liable

Neither the members, officers and employees of the Agency nor the members of the board of directors or the trustees, officers and employees of the Corporation will be personally liable for any costs, losses, damages, or liabilities caused or subsequently incurred by the Corporation or any officer, director or agent thereof in connection with or as a result of the Loan Agreement.

Bank Deemed Holder

For all purposes of the Loan Agreement regarding defaults and remedies and amendments to the Loan Agreement, the Bank shall, so long as the Credit Facility shall be in effect and shall not have been dishonored and uncured and so long as any Bank Obligations remain unpaid, be deemed the Holder of all Bonds. As such, the Bank may take all actions permitted by the provisions of the Loan Agreement regarding defaults and remedies and amendments thereto to be taken by the Holders of the Bonds, to the exclusion of the actual Holders of the Bonds, as if the Bank was in fact the actual Holder of all such Bonds; the purposes of this provisions being to permit the Bank to direct the taking of actions and the enforcement of remedies permitted by the provisions of the Loan Agreement regarding defaults and remedies and to consent to supplements to the Loan Agreement so long as the Credit Facility shall be in effect and shall not have been dishonored and uncured and so long as any Bank Obligations remain unpaid.

SUMMARY OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT

Various Funds and Accounts Created by the Trust Agreement

The Trust Agreement creates the following funds:

- 1. The Bond Fund
- 2. The Redemption Fund
- 3. The Construction Fund

Money received by the Agency from any source for the construction of any portion of the Project shall be deposited immediately upon receipt to the credit of the Construction Fund. Payment of the cost of the Project shall be made from the Construction Fund.

The Trust Agreement also creates separate accounts in the Bond Fund designated the "Interest Account" and "Sinking Fund Account."

The Bond Trustee shall establish separate subaccounts within the Interest Account, Sinking Fund Account and Redemption Fund corresponding to the source of moneys (e.g., proceeds of required draws on the Credit Facility or Available Moneys) for each deposit made thereto so that the Bond Trustee may at all times ascertain the source and date of deposit of the funds in each such subaccount.

The money in each of such funds and accounts shall be held in trust and applied as hereinafter described and, pending such application, shall be subject to a lien and charge in favor of the Holders and for the further security of such Holders; provided, however, that moneys in subaccounts shall also be subject to a lien and charge in favor of the Bank for the further security of the Bank.

Deposits to the Bond Fund

The Bond Trustee will deposit all amounts received as Loan Repayments and Required Payments under the Loan Agreement in the following order, subject to the credits provided in the Trust Agreement:

(i) on the 1st day of each month commencing on the 1st day of the month which follows the month in which the Bonds are delivered and paid for, and continuing on the 1st day of each month thereafter so long as any Bonds are Outstanding, into the Bond Fund for credit to the appropriate subaccount in the Interest Account, an amount such that, if the same amount is so credited on the 1st day of each succeeding month thereafter, the aggregate of such amounts on credit to such subaccount on an Interest Payment Date will be equal to the installment of interest falling due on the Bonds on such Interest Payment Date; and

(ii) beginning October 25, 2011, and on the 25th day of each month thereafter, into the Sinking Fund Account in the Bond Fund, one-twelfth (1/12) of the amount required to retire the Bonds to be called by mandatory redemption or to be paid at maturity on the next ensuing October 1 in accordance with the Sinking Fund Requirement therefor.

If, after giving effect to the credits specified below, any installment of Total Required Payments is insufficient to enable the Bond Trustee to make the deposits required above, the Bond Trustee will notify the Corporation and request that it increase each future installment of the Total Required Payments to make up any previous deficiency in any of the required monthly payments and to make up any deficiency or loss in any of the above-mentioned accounts and funds.

To the extent that investment earnings are credited to the Interest or Sinking Fund Accounts in accordance with the Trust Agreement, or amounts are credited thereto as a result of the application of Bond proceeds or a transfer of investment earnings on any other fund or account held by the Bond Trustee, or otherwise, future deposits to such accounts shall be reduced by the amount so credited, and the Loan Repayments due from the Corporation in the months following the date of the credit shall be reduced by the amounts so credited.

Interest Account

If the Bonds are not in a Book-Entry System, not later than 1:00 p.m. on each Interest Payment Date, or date for the payment of Defaulted Interest, or date upon which Bonds are to be redeemed, the Bond Trustee shall withdraw from the Interest Account and remit by mail, to each Holder which is not a Securities Depository Nominee the amount required for paying interest on such Bonds when due and payable.

If the Bonds are in a Book-Entry System, at such time as to enable the Bond Trustee to make payments of interest on the Bonds in accordance with any existing agreement between the Bond Trustee and any Securities Depository, the Bond Trustee shall withdraw from the Interest Account and remit by wire transfer, in Federal Reserve or other immediately available funds, the amounts required to pay to any Holder which is a Securities Depository Nominee interest on the Bonds on the next ensuing Interest Payment Date or date for the payment of Defaulted Interest or date upon which Bonds are to be redeemed; provided, however, that in no event shall the Bond Trustee be required to make such wire transfer prior to the Business Day next preceding each Interest Payment Date or date for the payment of date for the payment of Defaulted Interest or date upon which Bonds are to be redeemed, and provided further that such wire transfer shall be made not later than 1:00 p.m. on each Interest Payment Date or date for the payment of Defaulted Interest or date upon which Bonds are to be redeemed.

Sinking Fund Account

Money on deposit in the Sinking Fund Account of the Bond Fund will be applied during each Bond Year to the retirement of Bonds then Outstanding as follows:

The Bond Trustee shall endeavor to purchase and cancel Bonds or portions thereof then subject to (a) redemption by operating of the Sinking Fund Account at the most advantageous price obtainable with reasonable diligence, such price not to exceed the Redemption Price provided in the Trust Agreement which would be payable on the next October 1 to the Holders of such Bonds under the provisions of the Trust Agreement if such Bonds or portions were to be called for redemption on such date, plus accrued interest to the date of purchase. The Bond Trustee shall pay the interest accrued on such Bonds or portions thereof to the date of settlement therefor from the Interest Account and the purchase price from the Sinking Fund Account, but no such purchase will be made by the Bond Trustee from money in the Sinking Fund Account within the period of forty-five (45) days immediately preceding the next October 1 on which such Bonds are subject to redemption. No such purchase of Bonds shall be made other than with Available Moneys on and prior to the Expiration Date. The aggregate purchase prices of such Bonds so purchased shall not exceed the amount deposited in the Sinking Fund Account on account of the Sinking Fund Requirement for such Bonds; provided, however, that if in any Bond Year the amount held for the credit of the Sinking Fund Account plus the principal amount of all Bonds purchased during such Bond Year pursuant to the provisions of the Trust Agreement described in this paragraph (a) exceed the aggregate Sinking Fund Requirements for all Bonds then Outstanding for such Bond Year, the Bond Trustee shall endeavor to purchase any Bonds then Outstanding with such excess money;

(b) The Bond Trustee shall call for redemption on the October 1 immediately following such Bond Year, Bonds or portions thereof then subject to redemption in a principal amount equal to the aggregate Sinking Fund Requirement for the Bonds for such Bond Year, less the principal amount of any such Bonds retired by purchase pursuant to clause (a). If such October 1 is the stated maturity date of any such Bonds, the Bond Trustee shall not call such Bonds for redemption but, on such maturity date, shall withdraw from the Sinking Fund Account and remit to the Bond Registrar the amount required for paying the principal of such Bonds when due and payable. On each such redemption date, the Bond Trustee shall withdraw from the Interest Account and the Sinking Fund Account and wire transfer to the Bond Registrar the respective amounts required for paying the interest on and the Redemption Price of the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption, other than Bonds owned by the Bank. Any amounts remaining in the Interest Account and the Sinking Fund Account immediately after such transfer to the Bond Trustee to reimburse the Bank in immediately available funds for any required draw on the Credit Facility and to pay the interest on and the Redemption Price of Bonds owned by the Bank.

Redemption Fund

Money held for the credit of the Redemption Fund shall be applied to the purchase or redemption of Bonds, as follows:

(a) Subject to the provisions described in paragraph (c) below, the Bond Trustee shall endeavor to purchase and cancel Bonds or portions thereof, whether or not such Bonds or portions thereof shall then be subject to redemption, at the most advantageous price obtainable with reasonable diligence, such price not to exceed the Redemption Price that would be payable on the next redemption date to the Holder of such Bonds if such Bonds or portions thereof should be called for redemption on such date from the money in the Redemption Fund. The Bond Trustee shall pay the interest accrued on such Bonds or portions thereof to the date of settlement therefor from the Interest Account and the purchase price from the Redemption Fund, but no such purchase shall be made by the Bond Trustee from money in the Redemption Fund within the period of forty-five (45) days immediately preceding any Interest Payment Date on which such Bonds are subject to redemption and no such purchase of Bonds shall be made other than with Available Moneys on and prior to the Expiration Date;

(b) Subject to the provisions described in paragraph (c) below, the Bond Trustee shall call for redemption on each Interest Payment Date such amount of Bonds or portions thereof as, with the redemption premium, if any, will exhaust the money then held for the credit of the Redemption Fund as nearly as may be practicable; provided, however, that not less than \$50,000 principal amount of Bonds shall be called for redemption at any one time. On the redemption date the Bond Trustee shall withdraw from the Interest Account and from the Redemption Fund and wire transfer to the Bond Registrar, in Federal Reserve or other immediately available funds, the respective amounts required for paying the interest on and the Redemption Price of the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption, other than Bonds owned by the Bank. Any amounts remaining in the Interest Account and the Redemption Fund immediately available funds for any required draw on the Credit Facility and to pay the interest on and Redemption Price on Bonds owned by the Bank; and

(c) Money in the Redemption Fund shall be applied by the Bond Trustee each Fiscal Year to the purchase, or the redemption of Bonds then Outstanding in accordance with the latest Officer's Certificate filed by the Corporation with the Bond Trustee designating the Bonds to be purchased or redeemed. For purposes of this clause (c), Bonds shall be considered to mature on October 1 in amounts equal to the aggregate Sinking Fund Requirement therefor.

Draws on the Credit Facility

(a) Prior to and including the Expiration Date, the Bond Trustee shall, no later than 10:00 A.M., New York City time, on each Interest Payment Date for the Bonds, submit the necessary draw certificates in accordance with the terms of the Credit Facility to ensure that by 1:30 P.M., New York City time, on each such Interest Payment Date an amount shall be drawn on the Credit Facility which, together with any Available Moneys then held in the Interest Account for, and available for payment of, the Bonds, shall be sufficient to pay the interest becoming due on all Bonds other than Bonds owned by the Bank. Such payments shall be made solely from first, Available Moneys, and second, from moneys drawn on the Credit Facility. No drawing under the Credit Facility shall be made or proceeds of any drawing applied to pay the interest on any Bonds owned by the Bank or any Bonds that have been converted to bear interest at a Fixed Rate.

(b) The Bond Trustee shall, no later than 10:00 A.M., New York City time, on each day on which principal is due prior to and including the Expiration Date, whether by optional redemption, mandatory redemption, extraordinary mandatory redemption, acceleration or maturity, submit the necessary draw certificates in accordance with the terms of the Credit Facility to ensure that, by 1:30 P.M., New York City time, on each such day to and including the Expiration Date, an amount shall be drawn on the Credit Facility which, together with any Available Moneys then held in the Sinking Fund Account or the Redemption Account for, and available for payment of, the Bonds, shall be sufficient to pay the principal of all Bonds becoming due upon presentation and surrender thereof, other than Bonds owned by the Bank. Prior to and on the Expiration Date, the Bond Trustee shall pay all principal coming due on all Bonds other than Bonds owned by the Bank, whether at maturity, upon mandatory or optional redemption or upon acceleration, solely from first, Available Moneys, and second, from moneys drawn on the Credit

Facility. No drawing under the Credit Facility shall be made or proceeds of any drawing applied to pay the principal of any Bonds owned by the Bank or any Bonds that have been converted to bear interest at a Fixed Rate.

(c) In the event the Bank dishonors a draw on the Credit Facility pursuant to subsections (a) or (b) above, the Bond Trustee shall pay principal of or interest on the Bonds, as the case may be, from Loan Repayments regardless of whether such Loan Repayments constitute Available Moneys.

(d) The Bond Trustee shall deposit the proceeds of all required draws under the Credit Facility to the appropriate subaccounts in the Interest Account, Sinking Fund Account and Redemption Fund.

Money Held in Trust

All money that the Bond Trustee shall have withdrawn from the Bond Fund or shall have received from any other source and set aside or transferred to the Bond Registrar for the purpose of paying any of the Bonds secured by the Trust Agreement, either at the maturity thereof or by purchase or call for redemption, shall be held in trust for the respective Holders. Any money that is so set aside or transferred and that remains unclaimed by the Holders for a period of three (3) years after the date on which such Bonds have become payable shall be paid to the Corporation, or to such successor as may then be entitled by law to receive the same, and thereafter the Holders shall look only to the Corporation, or to such successor, as the case may be, for payment and then only to the extent of the amounts so received, without any interest thereon, and the Bond Trustee, the Bond Registrar, the Bank and the Agency shall have no responsibility with respect to such money; provided, however, that any such money relating to the Bonds shall be paid to the Bank instead of the Corporation if and to the extent that any obligations of the Corporation to the Bank remain outstanding under the Reimbursement Agreement.

Investment of Money

Money held for the credit of all funds and accounts, as nearly as may be practicable, shall be continuously invested and reinvested by the Bond Trustee in Investment Obligations; provided, however, that proceeds of required draws on the Credit Facility shall not be invested. Any such Investment Obligations will mature not later than the respective dates when the money held for the credit of such funds or accounts will be required for the purposes intended.

No Investment Obligations in any fund or account may mature beyond the latest maturity date of any Bonds Outstanding at the time such Investment Obligations are deposited.

Investment Obligations acquired with money and credited to any fund or account established under the Trust Agreement will be held by or under the control of the Bond Trustee and while so held shall be deemed at all times to be part of such fund or account in which such money was originally held. Interest accruing on such Investment Obligations and any profit or loss realized upon the disposition or maturity of the same will be credited to or charged against the fund or account to which the same are credited. The Bond Trustee shall sell at the best price reasonably attainable or reduce to cash a sufficient amount of such Investment Obligations whenever it is necessary so to do to provide money to make any payment or transfer of money from any such fund or account. The Bond Trustee will not be liable or responsible for any loss resulting from any investment made in accordance with the Trust Agreement.

Valuation

For the purpose of determining the amount on deposit in any fund or account, Investment Obligations in which money in such fund or account is invested will be valued (a) at face value if such Investment Obligations mature within six months from the date of valuation, and (b) if such Investment Obligations mature more than six months after the date of valuation, at the price at which such Investment Obligations are redeemable by the holder at his option if so redeemable or, if not so redeemable, at the lesser of (i) the cost of such Investment Obligations plus the amortization of any premium or minus the amortization of any discount thereon and (ii) the market value of such obligations.

The Bond Trustee shall value the Investment Obligations in the funds and accounts established under the Trust Agreement as of the last business day of each month. In addition, the Investment Obligations will be valued by the Bond Trustee at any time requested by the Agency Representative on reasonable notice to the Bond Trustee (which period of notice may be waived or reduced by the Bond Trustee), provided, however that the Bond Trustee shall not be required to value the Investment Obligations more than once in any calendar month.

Events of Default

Each of the following events is an Event of Default under the Trust Agreement:

(a) payment of any installment of interest on any Bonds shall not be made when due and payable; or

(b) payment of the principal or the purchase price or the redemption premium, if any, of any Bonds shall not be made when due and payable, whether at maturity or by proceedings for redemption or pursuant to a Sinking Fund Requirement or otherwise; or

(c) default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Trust Agreement or any agreement supplemental thereto and such default shall continue for thirty (30) days or such further time as may be granted in writing by the Bond Trustee after receipt by the Agency, of a written notice from the Bond Trustee specifying such default and requiring the same to be remedied; or

(d) an "Event of Default" shall have occurred under the Loan Agreement, and such Event of Default shall not have been remedied or waived.

Remedies on Default

Upon the happening and continuance of any Event of Default under the Trust Agreement, the Bond Trustee may, and upon the written request of the Holders of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall, by notice in writing to the Agency, the Bank and the Corporation, declare the principal of all Bonds then Outstanding to be due and payable. Such declaration may be rescinded under circumstances specified in the Trust Agreement.

Upon the happening and continuance of any Event of Default under the Trust Agreement, then and in every such case the Bond Trustee may proceed and upon the written request of the Holders of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding shall proceed to protect and enforce its rights and the rights of the Holders under the laws of the State or under the Trust Agreement by such suits, actions or special proceedings in equity or at law, or by proceedings in the office of any board or officer having jurisdiction, either for the specific performance of any covenant or agreement contained in the Trust Agreement or in aid or execution of any power therein granted or for the enforcement of any proper legal or equitable remedy, as the Bond Trustee, being advised by counsel chosen by the Bond Trustee, shall deem most effectual to protect and enforce such rights.

No Holder may institute any suit, action or proceeding on any Bond for any remedy under the Trust Agreement unless such Holder previously has given to the Bond Trustee written notice of the Event of Default under the Trust Agreement on account of which suit, action or proceeding is to be instituted, and unless such Holder has made a written request of the Bond Trustee to act and furnished indemnity as required in the Trust Agreement and afforded the Bond Trustee a reasonable opportunity to act and the Bond Trustee has refused or neglected to comply with such request; except that the Holders of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding may institute any such suit, action or proceeding in their own names for the benefit of all Holders. Except as otherwise provided in the Trust Agreement, no Holder will have any right in any manner whatsoever to affect, disturb or prejudice the security of the Trust Agreement or to enforce any right thereunder except in the manner provided in the Trust Agreement, and any individual rights given to such Holders by law are restricted by the Trust Agreement to the rights and remedies therein granted.

Notwithstanding anything above to the contrary, no provisions of the Trust Agreement shall affect or impair the right of any Holder to enforce the payment of principal of and interest on his Bond or the obligation of the Agency to pay the principal of and interest on each Bond to the Holder thereof at the time and place in said Bond expressed.

Notice to Bondholders

Except as described below, notice of any Event of Default will be mailed to all Holders at their addresses as they appear on the registration books within 30 days after the Bond Trustee receives notice of the same. The Bond Trustee shall not be subject to any liability to any Holder by reason of its failure to mail any such notice.

Except upon the happening of an Event of Default with respect to, among other things, the payment of the principal of and interest on or redemption premium on bonds when due, the Bond Trustee may withhold notice of any Event of Default to Holders if in its opinion such withdrawal is in the interest of the Holders. The Bond Trustee shall not be subject to any liability to any Holder by reason of its failure to mail any such notice.

Bank Deemed Holder

For all purposes of the provisions of the Trust Agreement regarding defaults and remedies and supplements to the Trust Agreement and the Loan Agreement, the Bank shall, so long as the Credit Facility shall be in effect and shall not have been dishonored and uncured and so long as any Bank Obligations remain unpaid, be deemed the Holder of all Bonds. As such, the Bank may take all actions permitted by the provisions of the Trust Agreement to be taken by the Holders of the Bonds, to the exclusion of the actual Holders of the Bonds, as if the Bank was in fact the actual Holder of all such Bonds; the purposes of this provisions being to permit the Bank to direct the taking of actions and the enforcement of remedies permitted by the provisions of the Trust Agreement regarding defaults and remedies and to consent to supplements to the Trust Agreement and the Loan Agreement so long as the Credit Facility shall be in effect and shall not have been dishonored and uncured and so long as any Bank Obligation remains unpaid.

Payment of Bond Trustee's and Bond Registrar's Fees

If the Agency fails to cause required payments to be made to the Bond Trustee or the Bond Registrar for compensation and expenses, the Bond Trustee or the Bond Registrar may make such payment from any monies in its possession other than proceeds of drawings on the Credit Facility and will be entitled to a preference therefor over any Bonds Outstanding.

Modification of the Trust Agreement

The Agency and the Bond Trustee may, from time to time with the prior consent of the Bank so long as the Credit Facility is in effect and has not been dishonored and uncured and any Bank Obligation remains unpaid, execute such supplemental trust agreements as shall be consistent with the terms and provisions of the Trust Agreement and the Loan Agreement and, in the opinion of the Bond Trustee, who may rely upon a written opinion of counsel, shall not affect adversely or prejudice the interest of the Holders to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission, to modify, alter, amend, add to or rescind in any particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in the Trust Agreement, to grant to or confer upon the Bond Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of Bonds any additional rights, remedies, powers, authority or security that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Holders or the Bond Trustee, to add to the conditions, limitations and restrictions on the issuance of Bonds under the provisions of the Trust Agreements of the Agency contained in the Trust Agreement, to surrender any right or power reserved to or conferred upon the Agency, to comply with any federal or state securities law, to provide for the issuance of Bonds in bearer form, to provide for the issuance of Bonds under a book-entry system, or to provide for changes necessary or desirable in connection with the conversion of the Bonds to a Fixed Rate, including the establishment of additional accounts for serial Bonds.

The Trust Agreement may be amended in any particular with the consent of the Bank so long as the Credit Facility is in effect and has not been dishonored and any Bank Obligation remains unpaid and the Holders of more than fifty percent (50%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding, provided, that nothing contained in the Trust Agreement will permit (a) an extension of the maturity of principal of or interest on any Bonds, (b) a reduction in the principal amount of or the redemption premium or the rate of interest on any Bonds, (c) the creation of a pledge of receipts and revenues to be received by the Agency other than the pledge created by the Trust Agreement, (d) a preference or priority of any Bonds over any other Bonds, or (e) a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required for consent to such supplemental trust agreement.

Defeasance

When, among other things, the principal, premium, if any, and interest due upon all of the Bonds is paid or sufficient money or Defeasance Obligations are held by the Bond Trustee for such purpose under the conditions specified in the Trust Agreement, then the right, title and interest of the Bond Trustee in the funds and accounts created in the Trust Agreement will cease and the Bond Trustee will release the Trust Agreement.

No Recourse Against Members, Officers or Employees of the Agency

No recourse under, or upon, any statement, obligation, covenant, or agreement contained in the Trust Agreement; or in any Bond secured thereby; or in the Loan Agreement; or in any document or certification whatsoever; or under any judgment obtained against the Agency or by the enforcement of any assessment or by any legal or equitable proceeding by virtue of any constitution or statute or otherwise or under any circumstances, shall be had against any member, officer or employee, as such, of the Agency, either directly or through the Agency, respectively, or otherwise, for the payment for or to, the Agency or any receiver of either of them, or for, or to, any Holder or otherwise, of any sum that may be due and unpaid upon any such Bond. Any and all personal liability of every nature, whether at common law or in equity or by statute or by constitution or otherwise, of any such member, officer or employee, as such, to respond by reason of any act or omission on his or her part or otherwise, for the payment for, or to, the Agency or for, or to, any Holder or otherwise, of any such member, officer or employee, as such to respond by reason of any act or omission on his or her part or otherwise, for the payment for, or to, the Agency or for, or to, any Holder or otherwise, of any such member, officer or employee, as such, to respond by reason of any act or omission on his or her part or otherwise, for the payment for, or to, the Agency or any receiver of either thereof, or for, or to, any Holder or otherwise, of any sum that may remain due and unpaid upon the Bonds secured by the Trust Agreement or any of them, is expressly waived and released in the Trust Agreement as an express condition of, and in consideration for, the execution of the Trust Agreement and the issuance of the Bonds.

COPY OF MASTER TRUST INDENTURE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS CONCERNING INTERPRETATION

Section 1.01.	Definitions1
Section 1.02.	Interpretation 12
	*

ARTICLE II

INDEBTEDNESS, AUTHORIZATION, ISSUANCEAND TERMS OF OBLIGATIONS

Section 2.01.	Amount of Indebtedness	.13
Section 2.02.	Designation of Obligations	.13
	Execution and Authentication of Obligations	
Section 2.04.	Supplement Creating Indebtedness	.14
Section 2.05.	Conditions to Issuance of Obligations Hereunder	.14

ARTICLE III

PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF THE OBLIGATED GROUP

Section 3.01.	Security; Restrictions on Encumbering Pledged Assets; Payment of	
	Principal and Interest	15
Section 3.02.	Covenants as to Corporate Existence, Maintenance of Properties, Etc	16
Section 3.03.	Insurance	18
Section 3.04.	Insurance and Condemnation Proceeds	19
Section 3.05.	Limitations on Creation of Liens	20
Section 3.06.	Limitations on Indebtedness	22
Section 3.07.	Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio	25
Section 3.08.	Sale, Lease or Other Disposition of Operating Assets; Disposition of Cash	
	and Investments; Sale of Accounts	25
Section 3.09.	Consolidation, Merger, Sale or Conveyance	29
Section 3.10.	Filing of Financial Statements, Certificate of No Default and Other	
	Information	30
Section 3.11.	Parties Becoming Members of the Obligated Group	31
Section 3.12.	Withdrawal from the Obligated Group	32
	6 1	

i

NY1 5867000v.4

NY1 5867000v.4

ARTICLE IV

MASTER TRUST INDENTURE

by and between

GIFFORD MEDICAL CENTER, INC. and CHITTENDEN TRUST COMPANY as Master Trustee

Dated as of May 1, 2006

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 4.02. Acceleration; Annulment of Acceleration 35 Section 4.03. Additional Remedies and Enforcement of Remedies 35 Section 4.03. Additional Remedies and Enforcement of Remedies 36 Section 4.04. Application of Gross Receipts and Other Moneys after Default 36 Section 4.05. Remedies Vested in the Master Trustee 38 Section 4.06. Remedies Vested in the Master Trustee 38 Section 4.07. Holders' Control of Proceedings 38 Section 4.08. Termination of Proceedings 38 Section 4.09. Waiver of Event of Default 38 Section 4.10. Appointment of Receiver 39 Section 4.10. Remedies Subject to Provisions of Law 39 Section 4.12. Notice of Default 39	Section 4.01.	Events of Default	
Section 4.04. Application of Gross Receipts and Other Moneys after Default	Section 4.02.	Acceleration; Annulment of Acceleration	
Section 4.05. Remedies Not Exclusive 38 Section 4.06. Remedies Vested in the Master Trustee. 38 Section 4.07. Holders' Control of Proceedings. 38 Section 4.08. Termination of Proceedings. 38 Section 4.09. Waiver of Event of Default 38 Section 4.10. Appointment of Receiver. 39 Section 4.11. Remedies Subject to Provisions of Law 39	Section 4.03.	Additional Remedies and Enforcement of Remedies	
Section 4.06. Remedies Vested in the Master Trustee	Section 4.04.	Application of Gross Receipts and Other Moneys after Default	
Section 4.07. Holders' Control of Proceedings 38 Section 4.08. Termination of Proceedings 38 Section 4.09. Waiver of Event of Default 38 Section 4.10. Appointment of Receiver 39 Section 4.11. Remedies Subject to Provisions of Law 39	Section 4.05.	Remedies Not Exclusive	
Section 4.08. Termination of Proceedings	Section 4.06.	Remedies Vested in the Master Trustee	
Section 4.09. Waiver of Event of Default 38 Section 4.10. Appointment of Receiver 39 Section 4.11. Remedies Subject to Provisions of Law 39	Section 4.07.	Holders' Control of Proceedings	
Section 4.10. Appointment of Receiver	Section 4.08.	Termination of Proceedings	
Section 4.11. Remedies Subject to Provisions of Law	Section 4.09.	Waiver of Event of Default	
	Section 4.10.	Appointment of Receiver	
Section 4.12. Notice of Default	Section 4.11.	Remedies Subject to Provisions of Law	
	Section 4.12.	Notice of Default	

ARTICLE V

THE MASTER TRUSTEE

Section 5.01.	Certain Duties and Responsibilities	40
Section 5.02.	Certain Rights of Master Trustee	41
Section 5.03.	Right to Deal in Obligations and Related Bonds	42
Section 5.04.	Removal and Resignation of the Master Trustee	42
Section 5.05.	Compensation and Reimbursement	43
Section 5.06.	Recitals and Representations	44
Section 5.07.	Separate or Co-Master Trustee	44
Section 5.08.	Availability of Records	46

ARTICLE VI

SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS

Section 6.01.	Supplements Not Requiring Consent of Holders	46
Section 6.02.	Supplements Requiring Consent of Holders	47
Section 6.03.	Execution and Effect of Supplements	48

ARTICLE VII

SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE OF INDENTURE

Section 7.01.	Satisfaction and Discharge of Indenture	48
	Payment of Obligations after Discharge of Lien4	

ARTICLE VIII

CONCERNING THE HOLDERS

Section 8.01.	Evidence of Acts of Holders	49
Section 8.02.	Obligations or Related Bonds Owned by Members of Obligated Group	
Section 8.03.	Instruments Executed by Holders Bind Future Holders	51
	ARTICLE IX	

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 9.01.	Limitation of Rights	5
	Severability	
	Holidays	
	Governing Law	
	Counterparts	
	Immunity of Individuals	
	Binding Effect	
	Notices	

iii

THIS MASTER TRUST INDENTURE, made and entered into as of the 1st day of May, 2006, by and between Gifford Medical Center, Inc. (the "Corporation"), a Vermont nonprofit corporation, and its legal successors, and Chittenden Trust Company, a Vermont chartered banking corporation duly qualified to accept and administer the trusts created hereby (the "Master Trustee").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Corporation is authorized and deems it necessary and desirable to enter into this Indenture for the purpose of providing for the issuance from time to time by Members of the Obligated Group (as defined herein) of Obligations (as defined herein) to finance or refinance the acquisition or betterment of health care facilities or other facilities, or for other lawful and proper purposes; and

WHEREAS, all acts and things necessary to constitute this Indenture a valid indenture and agreement according to its terms have been done and performed, the Corporation has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Indenture, and the Corporation, in the exercise of the legal rights and powers vested in it, executes this Indenture and proposes to make, execute, issue and deliver Obligations hereunder; and

WHEREAS, the Master Trustee agrees to accept and administer the trusts created hereby,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, of the acceptance by the Master Trustee of the trusts hereby created, and of the giving of consideration for and acceptance of Obligations issued hereunder by the registered owners thereof, and for the purpose of fixing and declaring the terms and conditions upon which Obligations are to be issued, authenticated, delivered and accepted by all persons who shall from time to time be or become registered owners thereof, the Corporation covenants and agrees with the Master Trustee, for the equal and proportionate benefit of the respective registered owners from time to time of Obligations issued hereunder, as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS CONCERNING INTERPRETATION

 $Section 1.01. \ \underline{Definitions}. For the purposes hereof unless the context otherwise indicates, the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings:$

"Account Lien Amount" means the product of (x) the Coverage Factor multiplied by (y) an amount equal to the Obligated Group's net patient accounts (as shown in its audited Financial Statements for the preceding Fiscal Year).

1

NY1 5867000v.4

NY1 5867000v.4

or any Affiliate, and which is a professional management consultant having the skill and experience necessary to render the particular report required by the provision hereof in which such requirement appears and which is acceptable to the Master Trustee.

"Corporate Charter" means, with respect to any corporation, the articles of incorporation, certificate of incorporation, corporate charter or other organic document pursuant to which such corporation is organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof.

"Corporate Trust Office" means the office of the Master Trustee at which its principal corporate trust business is conducted, which at the date hereof is located in Burlington, Vermont.

"Corporation" means Gifford Medical Center, Inc., an eligible institution under Chapter 131, Sections 3851 to 3862, inclusive, of Title 16, Vermont Statutes Annotated and a nonprofit hospital as defined in Section 1902 of Title 18 of Vermont Statutes Annotated, organized and existing under the laws of the State, and its successors and assigns and any surviving, resulting or transferee corporation thereof.

"Corporation Property" means all capital assets of the Corporation wherever located, including without limitation any or all land, leasehold interests, buildings, fixtures, furnishings, equipment, personal property, hardware, supplies and inventory of the Corporation, whether separately or together with any other such assets, and all stock owned by the Corporation in any corporation which may own any such capital assets.

"Coverage Factor" means an amount determined in accordance with the following schedule:

Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for preceding Fiscal Year	Coverage Factor	
greater than or equal to 4.0	100%	
less than 4.0 but greater than or equal	1 to 3.0 75%	
less than 3.0 but greater than or equal	l to 2.0 50%	
less than 2.0 but greater than or equal	l to 1.2 25%	
less than 1.2	0%	

"Cross-over Date" means, with respect to Cross-over Refunding Indebtedness, the date on which the principal portion of the related Cross-over Refunded Indebtedness is to be paid or redeemed from the proceeds of such Cross-over Refunding Indebtedness.

"Cross-over Refunded Indebtedness" means Indebtedness refunded by Cross-over Refunding Indebtedness.

3

"Accounts" means any right to payment for goods sold or leased or for services rendered which is not evidenced by an instrument or chattel paper, whether or not it has been earned by performance.

"Affiliate" means a corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, business trust or similar entity organized under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof which (i) is directly or indirectly controlled by any Member of the Obligated Group, or by any Person which directly or indirectly controls any Member of the Obligated Group or (ii) controls, directly or indirectly, any Member of the Obligated Group. For purposes of this definition, control means the power to direct the management and policies of a Person through the ownership of not less than a majority of its voting securities or the right to designate or elect not less than a majority of the members of its board of directors or other governing board or body by contract or otherwise.

"Agency" means the Vermont Educational and Health Buildings Financing Agency, a body corporate and politic constituting a public instrumentality of the State of Vermont, and any successor thereto.

"Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness" means Long-Term Indebtedness twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the principal payments of which are due in a single year or forty percent (40%) or more of the principal payments of which are due over two consecutive years, which portion of the principal is not required by the documents pursuant to which such Indebtedness is issued to be amorized by redemption prior to such year.

"Capitalization" means the sum of the aggregate Long-Term Indebtedness of the Members of the Obligated Group, plus the aggregate unrestricted fund balance of the nonprofit Members of the Obligated Group and plus, without duplication, the aggregate excess of assets over liabilities of the for-profit Members of the Obligated Group, if any, all as calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

"Completion Indebtedness" means any Long-Term Indebtedness incurred for the purpose of financing the completion of facilities for the acquisition, construction or equipping of which Long-Term Indebtedness has theretofore been incurred in accordance with the provisions hereof, to the extent necessary to provide a completed and equipped facility of the type and scope contemplated at the time that such Long-Term Indebtedness theretofore incurred was originally incurred, and, to the extent the same shall be applicable, in accordance with the general plans and specifications for such facility as originally prepared with only such changes as have been made in conformance with the documents pursuant to which such Long-Term Indebtedness theretofore incurred was originally incurred.

"Consultant" means a firm or firms which is not, and no member, stockholder, director, officer or employee of which is, an officer or employee of any Member of the Obligated Group $\frac{NY1587000+4}{NY1587000+4}$

2

"Cross-over Refunding Indebtedness" means Indebtedness issued for the purpose of Refunding other Indebtedness if the proceeds of such Refunding Indebtedness are irrevocably deposited in escrow to secure the payment on the applicable redemption date or maturity date of the Refunded Indebtedness, and the earnings on such escrow deposit are required to be applied to pay interest on such Refunding Indebtedness until the Cross-over Date.

"Defeasance Obligations" means (i) noncallable Government Obligations, (ii) evidences of ownership of a proportionate interest in specified noncallable Government Obligations, which Government Obligations are held by a bank or trust company organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof in the capacity of custodian, (iii) Defeased Municipal Obligations and (iv) evidences of ownership of a proportionate interest in specified Defeased Municipal Obligations, which Defeased Municipal Obligations are held by a bank or trust company organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof in the capacity as custodian.

"Defeased Municipal Obligations" means obligations of state or local government municipal bond issuers which are rated the highest rating by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services and Moody's Investors Service, respectively, provision for the payment of the principal of and interest on which shall have been made by deposit with a trustee or escrow agent (pursuant to an agreement which may not be amended to provide for redemption on an earlier date than that originally contemplated by the parties thereto on the date such agreement was first executed) of (i) noncallable Government Obligations or (ii) evidences of ownership of a proportionate interest in specified noncallable Government Obligations, which Government Obligations are held by a bank or trust company organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof in the capacity as custodian, the maturing principal of and interest on such Government Obligations or evidences of ownership, when due and payable, shall provide sufficient money to pay the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on such obligations of state or local government municipal bond issuers.

"Defeased Obligations" means Obligations issued under a Supplement that have been discharged, or provision for the discharge of which has been made, pursuant to their terms.

"Derivative Indebtedness" means all or any portion of Indebtedness of a Member of the Obligated Group which bears interest at a variable rate for any future period of time or the interest on which is calculated at a varying rate per annum for any future period of time meeting the requirements set forth in clauses (i) and (ii) below:

> (i) the Member of the Obligated Group issuing such Indebtedness shall have issued or entered into a Hedge Agreement in respect of all or such portion of such Indebtedness within sixty (60) days of the date of issuance of such Indebtedness, and

> such Hedge Agreement provides that during the entire period that such Indebtedness bears interest at a variable rate such Member of the Obligated

NY1 5867000v.4

Group will pay a fixed rate and the provider of the Hedge Agreement will pay the variable rate borne by such Indebtedness or such Indebtedness, taken together with the Hedge Agreement, results in a net fixed rate payable by such Member of the Obligated Group for such period of time (the "Hedged Fixed Rate"), assuming such member of the Obligated Group and the party(ies) with whom such Member of the Obligated Group has entered into the Hedge Agreement make all payments required to be made by the terms of the Hedge Agreement.

"Event of Default" means, with respect to this Indenture, any one or more of those events set forth in Section 4.01 hereof.

"Financial Statements" means the consolidated or combined financial statements of the Obligated Group as reported upon by a firm of independent certified public accountants.

"Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the Obligated Group, which shall be the period commencing on October 1 of any year and ending on September 30 of the following year unless the Master Trustee is notified in writing by the Obligated Group Representative of a change in such period, in which case the Fiscal Year shall be the period set forth in such notice; provided, however, that each Member of the Obligated Group shall have the same Fiscal Year.

"Governing Body" means, when used with respect to any Member of the Obligated Group, its board of directors, board of trustees or other board or group of individuals in which the powers of such Member of the Obligated Group are vested.

"Government Obligations" means direct obligations of, or obligations the timely payment of the principal of and interest on which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America.

"Governmental Restrictions" means federal, state or other applicable governmental laws or regulations affecting any Member of the Obligated Group or its health care facilities placing restrictions and limitations on the (i) fees and charges to be fixed, charged and collected by any Member of the Obligated Group or (ii) the timing of the receipt of such revenues.

"Gross Receipts" means all Accounts and all revenues, income, receipts and money (other than proceeds of borrowing) received in any period by or on behalf of any Member of the Obligated Group, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (a) revenues derived from the operations of any Member of the Obligated Group, (b) gifts, grants, bequests, donations and contributions and the income therefrom to the extent specifically restricted by the donor to a particular purpose inconsistent with their use for the payment of Obligations, (c) proceeds derived from (i) insurance, except to the extent otherwise required by this Indenture, (ii) Accounts, (iii) securities and other investments, (iv) inventory and other tangible and intangible property, (v) medical or hospital insurance, indemnity or reimbursement programs or agreements and (vi) contract rights and other rights and assets now or hereafter owned, held or NY1 service.

5

Indebtedness. Indebtedness shall not include obligations of any Member of the Obligated Group to another Member of the Obligated Group.

"Insurance Consultant" means a firm or person which is not, and no member, stockholder, director, officer or employee of which is, an officer or employee of any Member of the Obligated Group or an Affiliate, which is qualified to survey risks and to recommend insurance coverage for hospitals, health-related facilities and services and organizations engaged in such operations and, if being retained to evaluate alternative risk management programs, including self-insurance, which has a favorable national reputation.

"Lien" means any mortgage, deed of trust or pledge of, security interest in or encumbrance on any Property of any Member of the Obligated Group which secures any Indebtedness or any other obligation of any Member of the Obligated Group or which secures any obligation of any Person, other than an obligation to any Member of the Obligated Group.

"Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio" means for any period of time the ratio determined by dividing the Income Available for Debt Service by Maximum Annual Debt Service.

"Long-Term Debt Service Requirement" means, for any period of twelve (12) consecutive calendar months for which such determination is made, the aggregate of the payments to be made in respect of principal of and interest on Outstanding Long-Term Indebtedness of the Obligated Group during such period, also taking into account (i) with respect to Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness the amount of principal which would be payable in such period if such principal were amortized from the date of incurrence thereof over a period of twenty (20) years (or, if the term thereof exceeds twenty (20) years, over a period equal to such term) on a level debt service basis at an interest rate set forth in an opinion of a banking institution, a financial advisory firm or an investment banking institution knowledgeable in health care finance delivered to the Master Trustee as the interest rate at which the Obligated Group could reasonably expect to borrow the same by issuing an Obligation with the same term as assumed above, or, if a binding alternative redemption or prepayment schedule has been established between a Member of the Obligated Group and a credit enhancement provider, then the amount of principal required to be redeemed or prepaid in such period pursuant to such schedule shall be the amount of principal taken into account; provided, however, that if the date of calculation is within twelve (12) months of the actual maturity of such Indebtedness and no binding commitment exists to refinance such Indebtedness or sufficient moneys have not been segregated to pay such Indebtedness at its actual maturity, the full amount of principal payable at maturity shall be included in such calculation, (ii) with respect to Variable Rate Indebtedness that is Long-Term Indebtedness the interest on such Indebtedness shall be calculated at the rate which is equal to the average of the actual interest rates which were in effect (weighted according to the length of the period during which each such interest rate was in effect) for the most recent twelve-month period immediately preceding the date of calculation for which such information is available (or shorter period if such information is not available for a twelve-month

possessed by each Member of the Obligated Group, and (d) rentals received from the leasing of real or tangible personal property.

"Guaranty" means any obligation of any Member of the Obligated Group guaranteeing in any manner, directly or indirectly, any obligation of any Person that is not a Member of the Obligated Group which obligation of such other Person would, if such obligation were the obligation of a Member of the Obligated Group, constitute Indebtedness hereunder. For the purposes of this Indenture, a Guaranty shall be valued at twenty percent (20%) of the obligation so guaranteed at the interest rate borne by such obligation on the date calculated; provided, however, that for purposes of determining whether a Member of the Obligated Group may incur a Guaranty, such Guaranty shall be valued at one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount of the obligation so guaranteed at the interest rate borne by such indebtedness on the date calculated; and further provided that in the event such Guaranty shall have been drawn upon or for so long as any default shall have occurred and be continuing with respect to the obligation so guaranteed, such Guaranty shall be valued at one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount of the obligation so guaranteed at the interest rate borne by such obligation on the date calculated for a period ending two (2) years after the date that such Guaranty was drawn upon.

"Hedge Agreement" means an interest rate swap, cap, collar, floor, forward or other hedging agreement, arrangement or security however denominated, expressly identified pursuant to its terms as being entered into in connection with and in order to hedge interest rate fluctuations on all or a portion of any Indebtedness.

"Hedged Fixed Rate" means Hedged Fixed Rate as defined in the definition of Derivative Indebtedness.

"Holder" means the owner of any Obligation issued in registered form.

"Income Available for Debt Service" means, with respect to the Obligated Group, as to any Fiscal Year, the excess of revenues over expenses before depreciation, amorization and interest expense on Long-Term Indebtedness, as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied; provided, however, that no determination thereof shall take into account unrealized gains or losses on investments, including charges to income resultant from a determination of impared assets, market revaluations of Hedge Agreements, any gain or loss resulting from either the extinguishment of Indebtedness, revaluations of unfunded pension liabilities or the sale, exchange or other disposition of plant and equipment not made in the ordinary course of business; and provided further, however, that revenues shall not include income from the investment of funds held in a Qualified Escrow.

"Indebtedness" means (i) all indebtedness of Members of the Obligated Group for borrowed money, (ii) all installment sales, conditional sales and capital lease obligations, incurred or assumed by any Member of the Obligated Group, and (iii) all Guaranties (other than any Guaranty by any Member of the Obligated Group of Indebtedness of any other Member of the Obligated Group), whether constituting Long-Term Indebtedness or Short-Term NY1 sextone.

6

period), except that with respect to new Variable Rate Indebtedness the interest rate for such Indebtedness for the initial interest rate period shall be the initial rate at which such Indebtedness is issued and thereafter shall be calculated as set forth above and (iii) with respect to Derivative Indebtedness, the interest on such Indebtedness shall be calculated at the Hedged Fixed Rate; provided, however, that interest shall be excluded from the determination of Long-Term Debt Service Requirement to the extent the same is provided from the proceeds of the Long-Term Indebtedness and provided further, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, the aggregate of the payments to be made with respect to principal of and interest on Outstanding Long-Term Indebtedness shall not include principal and interest payable from funds available (without reinvestment) in a Qualified Escrow (other than principal and interest).

"Long-Term Indebtedness" means all obligations for borrowed money incurred or assumed by any Member of the Obligated Group, including Guaranties (except Guaranties of obligations of any Member of the Obligated Group by another Member of the Obligated Group), Short-Term Indebtedness if a binding commitment by an institutional lender exists to provide financing to retire such Short-Term Indebtedness and such commitment provides for the repayment of principal on terms which would, if such commitment were implemented, constitute Long-Term Indebtedness, and the current portion of Long-Term Indebtedness, for any of the following:

> money borrowed for an original term, or renewable at the option of the borrower for a period from the date originally incurred, longer than one (1) year;

(ii) leases which are required to be capitalized in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles having an original term, or renewable at the option of the lessee for a period from the date originally incurred, longer than one (1) year; and

(iii) installment sale or conditional sale contracts having an original term in excess of one (1) year;

provided, however, that any Guaranty by any Member of the Obligated Group of any obligation of any Person, which obligation would, if it were a direct obligation of such Member of the Obligated Group, constitute Short-Term Indebtedness, shall be excluded.

"Master Trustee" means Chittenden Trust Company, Burlington, Vermont, in the trusts created hereunder.

"Maximum Annual Debt Service" means the highest Long-Term Debt Service Requirement for the then current or any succeeding Fiscal Year.

8

NY1 5867000v.4

NY1 5867000v.4

"Member of the Obligated Group" means, initially, the Corporation and, thereafter, any Person which shall become a Member of the Obligated Group in accordance with Section 3.11 of this Indenture excluding any Person which shall have withdrawn from the Obligated Group in accordance with Section 3.12 of this Indenture.

"Net Book Value", when used in connection with Property, Plant and Equipment or other Property of any Person, means the value of such property, net of accumulated depreciation, as it is carried on the books of such Person in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and when used in connection with Property, Plant and Equipment or other Property of the Obligated Group, means the aggregate of the values so determined with respect to such Property, Plant and Equipment or other Property of the Obligated Group determined in such a manner that no portion of Property, Plant and Equipment or other Property is included more than once.

"Non-Recourse Indebtedness" means any Indebtedness secured by a Lien, the liability for which is effectively limited to the Property, the purchase or acquisition or, in the case of vacant land only, the improvement of which was financed with the proceeds of such Non-Recourse Indebtedness and which is subject to such Lien with no recourse, directly or indirectly, to any other Property of any Member of the Obligated Group.

"Obligated Group" means, collectively, the Members of the Obligated Group.

"Obligated Group Representative" means the Person at the time designated to act on behalf of the Obligated Group in a written certificate furnished to the Master Trustee, which certificate shall contain a specimen signature of such Person and shall be signed on behalf of the Obligated Group by the President of the Corporation or by his designee.

"Obligation" means the evidence of particular Indebtedness issued hereunder.

"Officer's Certificate" means a certificate signed by (i) the chairman of the Governing Body, or the president or chief executive officer, or the chief financial officer, or the chairman of the finance committee of the Governing Body of each Member of the Obligated Group Representative. Each Officer's Certificate presented under this Indenture shall state that it is being delivered pursuant to (and shall identify the section or subsection of) this Indenture and shall incorporate by reference and use in all appropriate instances all terms thereof are in compliance with the requirements of the section or subsection pursuant to which such Officer's Certificate is delivered, or shall state in reasonable detail the nature of any non-compliance and the steps being taken to remedy such non-compliance, and (ii) that it is being delivered together with any opinions, schedules, statements or other documents required in connection therewith.

"Operating Assets" means any or all land, leasehold interests, buildings, machinery, equipment, hardware, and inventory of each Member of the Obligated Group used in its NY15867000+4

Indebtedness secured thereby or by a trustee or agent acting on behalf of such holder and is subject to a perfected security interest in favor of such holder, trustee or agent, (b) is held in cash or invested in Defeasance Obligations, and (c) is required by the documents establishing such fund or account to be applied toward the Obligated Group's payment obligations in respect of the Prior Indebtedness, provided that, if the fund or account is funded in whole or in part with the proceeds of Refunding Indebtedness, the documents establishing the same may require specified payments of principal or interest (or both) in respect of the Refunding Indebtedness to be made from the fund or account prior to the date on which the Prior Indebtedness is repaid in full.

"Related Bond Indenture" means any indenture, bond purchase agreement, bond resolution or other comparable instrument pursuant to which a series of Related Bonds is issued.

"Related Bond Issuer" means the issuer of any issue of Related Bonds.

"Related Bonds" means the revenue bonds or other obligations issued by any state, territory or possession of the United States or any municipal corporation or political subdivision formed under the laws thereof or any constituted authority or agency or instrumentality of any of the foregoing empowered to issue obligations on behalf thereof ("governmental issuer"), pursuant to a single Related Bond Indenture, the proceeds of which are loaned or otherwise made available to (i) a Member of the Obligated Group in consideration of the execution, authentication and delivery of an Obligation to or for the order of such governmental issuer, or (ii) any Person other than a Member of the Obligated Group in consideration of the issuance to such governmental issuer (A) by such Person of any indebtedness or other obligation of such Person, and (B) by a Member of the Obligated Group of a Guaranty in respect of such indebtedness or other obligation, which Guaranty is represented by an Obligation.

"Related Bond Trustee" means the trustee or bond purchaser and its successors in the trusts created under any Related Bond Indenture.

"Short-Term Indebtedness" means all obligations, other than any Guaranty of an obligation of a Person which is a Member of the Obligated Group and the current portion of Long-Term Indebtedness, but including any Guaranty by any Member of the Obligated Group of any obligation of any Person, which obligation would, if it were a direct obligation of such Member, constitute indebtedness due within one year, incurred or assumed by one or more Members of the Obligated Group, for any of the following:

 payments of principal and interest with respect to money borrowed for an original term, or renewable at the option of the borrower for a period from the date originally incurred, of one (1) year or less;

(ii) payments under leases which are capitalized in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles having an original term, or renewable at the option of the lessee for a period from the date originally incurred, of one (1) year or less; and respective trades or businesses, whether separately or together with other such assets, but not including cash, investment securities and other Property held for investment purposes.

"Opinion of Bond Counsel" means an opinion in writing signed by an attorney or firm of attorneys acceptable to the Master Trustee and experienced in the field of municipal bonds whose opinions are generally accepted by purchasers of municipal bonds.

"Opinion of Counsel" means an opinion in writing signed by an attorney or firm of attorneys, acceptable to the Master Trustee, who may be counsel for any Member of the Obligated Group or other counsel acceptable to the Master Trustee.

"Outstanding", when used with reference to Indebtedness, means, as of any date of determination, all Indebtedness theretofore issued or incurred and not paid and discharged other than (i) Obligations theretofore cancelled by the Master Trustee or delivered to the Master Trustee for cancellation, (ii) Indebtedness deemed paid and no longer Outstanding and (iii) Obligations in lieu of which other Obligations have been authenticated and delivered or have been paid pursuant to the provisions of the Supplement regarding mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Obligations in lieu shorts further that any such Obligation is held by a bona fide purchaser.

"Permitted Liens" means those Liens or liens described in Section 3.05 hereof.

"Person" means an individual, association, unincorporated organization, corporation, partnership, joint venture, business trust or a government or an agency or a political subdivision thereof, or any other entity.

"Pledged Assets" means all Gross Receipts of the Members of the Obligated Group, now owned or hereafter acquired, and all proceeds thereof.

"Property" means any and all rights, titles and interests in and to any and all property whether real or personal, tangible or intangible and wherever situated.

"Property, Plant and Equipment" means all Property of the Members of the Obligated Group which is property, plant and equipment under generally accepted accounting principles.

"Put Indebtedness" means Long-Term Indebtedness twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the principal of which is required, at the option of the owner thereof, to be purchased or redeemed at one time.

"Qualified Escrow" means a segregated escrow fund or other similar fund or account which (a) is irrevocably established as security for Long-Term Indebtedness previously incurred and then outstanding (herein referred to as "Prior Indebtedness") or for Long-Term Indebtedness, if any, then to be incurred to refund Outstanding Prior Indebtedness (herein referred to as "Refunding Indebtedness"), is held by the holder of the Prior Indebtedness or Refunding NV sectored.

10

(iii) payments under installment purchase or conditional sale contracts having an original term of one (1) year or less.

"State" means the State of Vermont.

"Supplement" means an indenture supplemental to, and authorized and executed pursuant to the terms of, this Indenture.

"Tax-Exempt Organization" means a Person organized under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof which is an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Code, or corresponding provisions of federal income tax laws from time to time in effect.

"Total Operating Revenues" means, with respect to the Obligated Group, as to any period of time, total operating revenues, as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied.

"Transfer" means any act or occurrence the result of which is to dispossess any Person of any asset or interest therein, including specifically, but without limitation, the forgiveness of any debt.

"Variable Rate Indebtedness" means any portion of Indebtedness the interest rate on which is not established at the time of incurrence at a fixed or constant rate.

Section 1.02. <u>Interpretation</u>. (a) Any reference herein to any officer or member of the Governing Body of a Member of the Obligated Group shall include those succeeding to their functions, duties or responsibilities pursuant to or by operation of law or who are lawfully performing their functions.

(b) Unless the context otherwise indicates, words importing the singular shall include the plural and vice versa, and the use of the neuter, masculine, or feminine gender is for convenience only and shall be deemed to mean and include the neuter, masculine or feminine gender.

(c) Where the character or amount of any asset, liability or item of income or expense is required to be determined or any consolidation, combination or other accounting computation is required to be made for the purposes hereof or of any agreement, document or certificate executed and delivered in connection with or pursuant to this Indenture, the same shall be done in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

(d) Headings of articles and sections herein and in the table of contents hereof are solely for convenience of reference, do not constitute a part hereof and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect hereof.

NY1 5867000v.4

Provisions calling for the redemption of Obligations or the calling of (e) Obligations for redemption do not mean or include the payment of Obligations at their stated maturity or maturities.

Provisions calling for or referring to the delivery by each Member of the (f) Obligated Group of financial statements for any given period shall be deemed satisfied if the combined or consolidated financial statements for such period, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of such entities are so delivered.

ARTICLE II

INDEBTEDNESS, AUTHORIZATION, ISSUANCE AND TERMS OF OBLIGATIONS

Section 2.01. Amount of Indebtedness. Each Member of the Obligated Group may incur Indebtedness by issuing Obligations hereunder or by creating Indebtedness under any other document. The principal amount of Indebtedness created under other documents and the number and principal amount of Obligations evidencing Indebtedness that may be created hereunder are not limited, except as limited by the provisions hereof, including Section 3.06, or of any Supplement. Any Member of the Obligated Group proposing to incur Long-Term Indebtedness, whether evidenced by Obligations issued hereunder or Indebtedness created under any other documents, shall, at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the incurrence of such Long-Term Indebtedness, give written notice of its intention to incur such Long-Term Indebtedness, including in such notice the amount of Indebtedness to be incurred, to the other Members of the Obligated Group and to the Master Trustee. The Master Trustee shall promptly furnish each Related Bond Trustee with a copy of each such notice. Each Member of the Obligated Group is jointly and severally liable for each and every Obligation.

Section 2.02. <u>Designation of Obligations</u>. Obligations shall be issued in such forms as may from time to time be created by Supplements permitted hereunder. Each Obligation or series of Obligations shall be created by a different Supplement and shall be designated in such a manner as will differentiate such Obligation from any other Obligation.

Section 2.03. Execution and Authentication of Obligations. Each Obligation shall be executed for and on behalf of the issuer thereof, by the chairman of its Governing Body, its president or a vice president and attested by its secretary or an assistant secretary. The signatures of either or both of such officers may be mechanically or photographically reproduced on the Obligation. If any officer whose signature appears on any Obligation ceases to be such officer before delivery thereof, such signature shall remain valid and sufficient for all purposes as if such officer had remained in office until such delivery. Each Obligation shall be manually authenticated by an authorized officer of the Master Trustee, without which authentication no Obligation shall be entitled to the benefits hereof.

NY1 5867000v 4

13

each of the Persons who is to be a Holder of such Obligation upon the original issuance thereof is not acquiring the interest represented by such Obligation directly or indirectly with the assets of, or in connection with any arrangement or understanding by it in any way involving, any employee benefit plan with respect to which (i) any employee of any Member of the Obligated Group or the Master Trustee, in its individual capacity, is a participant or (ii) any Member of the Obligated Group or the Master Trustee, in its individual capacity, or any of their affiliates is otherwise a party in interest, all within the meaning of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

ARTICLE III

PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF THE OBLIGATED GROUP

Section 3.01. <u>Security: Restrictions on Encumbering Pledged Assets: Payment of Principal and Interest.</u> (a) Any Obligation issued pursuant to this Indenture shall be a general obligation of the issuer of such Obligation.

To secure the prompt payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and the interest on the Obligations and the performance by each Member of the Obligated Group of its other obligated on the performance of the interference of the obligated for the obligated for a second of the obligated for the performance of the obligated for the performance of the master Trustee a security interest in its Pledged Assets. Prior to its receipt of a request from the Master Trustee pursuant to Section 3.01(d) of this Indenture, any Member of the Obligated Group may sell, or incur Indebtedness secured by, all or any part of its Pledged Assets free of such security interest, subject, however, to the provisions of Sections 3.05, 3.06, 3.08 and 3.09 of this Indenture. In the event of such sale or incurrence of Indebtedness, upon request of a Member of the Obligated Group, the Master Trustee shall execute a release of its security interest with respect to the assets so sold or pledged as security for such Indebtedness. Upon the request of any Member of the Oblgated Group, the Master Trustee will provide to such Member of the Oblgated Group, the Master Trustee will provide to such Member of the Oblgated Group a written certification as to whether there is currently outstanding a request from the Master Trustee pursuant to Section 3.01(d) of this Indenture.

At least one (1) business day prior to the delivery of the first Obligation hereunder, there shall be delivered to the Master Trustee duly executed financing statements to evidence the aforementioned security interests in the form required by the Vermont Uniform Commercial Code with copies sufficient in number for filing in the office of the Secretary of State in Montpelier, Vermont,

Each Member of the Obligated Group shall also execute and deliver to the Master Trustee from time to time such amendments or supplements to this Indenture as may be necessary or appropriate to include as security hereunder its Pledged Assets. In addition, each Member of the Obligated Group covenants that it will prepare and file such financing statements or amendments to or terminations of existing financing statements which shall, in the Opinion of Counsel, be necessary to comply with applicable law or as required due to changes in the Obligated Group, including, without limitation, (i) any Person becoming a Member of the Obligated Group

15

The Master Trustee's authentication certificate shall be substantially in the following form

MASTER TRUSTEE'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE

The undersigned Master Trustee hereby certifies that this Obligation No. _____ is one of the Obligations described in the within-mentioned Indenture.

> Chittenden Trust Company, as Master Trustee

By Authorized Signatory

Section 2.04. <u>Supplement Creating Indebtedness</u>. Any Member of the Obligated Group and the Master Trustee may from time to time enter into a Supplement in order to create Indebtedness hereunder. Such Supplement shall, with respect to an Obligation evidencing Indebtedness created thereby, set forth the date thereof, and the date or dates on which the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on such Obligation shall be payable, and the form of such Obligation and such other terms and provisions as shall conform with the provisions hereof.

Section 2.05. Conditions to Issuance of Obligations Hereunder. With respect to Indebtedness created hereunder, simultaneously with or prior to the execution, authentication and delivery of Obligations evidencing such Indebtedness pursuant to this Indenture:

All requirements and conditions to the issuance of such Obligations, if (a) (a) An requirements and containing to the issuance of sets of an any, set forth in the Supplement and in this Indenture shall have been complied with and satisfied, as provided in an Officer's Certificate, a certified copy of which shall be delivered to the Master Trustee;

The issuer of such Obligations shall have delivered to the Master Trustee an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that (i) registration of such Obligations under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and qualification of this Indenture or the Supplement under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as a mended, is not required, or, if such registration or qualification is required, that all applicable registration and qualification provisions of said acts have been complied with, and (ii) the Master Indenture and the Obligations are valid, binding and enforceable obligations of the Members of the Obligated Group in accordance with their terms, except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and other laws affecting creditors' rights generally and usual equity principles; and

(c) Each Member of the Obligated Group shall have delivered to the Master Trustee an Officer's Certificate stating that, to the best of the knowledge of the signer thereof, NY1 5867000v 4

14

pursuant to Section 3.11 of this Indenture, or (ii) any Member of the Obligated Group ceasing to be a Member of the Obligated Group pursuant to Section 3.12 of this Indenture. In particular, each Member of the Obligated Group covenants that it will, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any financing statement, prepare and file such continuation statements of existing financing statements as shall, in the Opinion of Counsel, be necessary to comply with applicable law and shall provide to the Master Trustee written notice of such filing. If the Master Trustee shall not have received such notice at least twenty-five (25) days prior to the expiration date of any such financing statement, the Master Trustee shall prepare and file or cause each Member of the Obligated Group to prepare and file such continuation statements in a timely manner to assure that the security interest in the Pledged Assets shall remain perfected

Each Member of the Obligated Group covenants that it will not pledge or (b) grant a security interest in (except as provided in (a) above and as may be otherwise provided in this Indenture) any of its Pledged Assets.

Each Obligation shall be a joint and several obligation of each Member of the Obligated Group. Each Member of the Obligated Group covenants promptly to pay or cause to be paid the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on each Obligation issued hereunder at the place, on the dates and in the manner provided herein, in the Supplement and in said Obligation according to the terms thereof whether at maturity, upon proceedings for redemption, by acceleration or otherwise.

(d) Each Member of the Obligated Group covenants that, subject to the rights, if any, of holders of Permitted Liens, if an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, it will, upon request of the Master Trustee, deliver or direct to be delivered to the Master Trustee all Gross Receipts until such Event of Default has been cured, such Gross Receipts to be applied in accordance with Section 4.04 of this Indenture.

Section 3.02. Covenants as to Corporate Existence, Maintenance of Properties, Etc. Each Member of the Obligated Group hereby covenants:

(a) Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, to preserve its corporate or other legal existence and all its rights and licenses to the extent necessary or desirable in the operation of its business and affairs and be qualified to do business in each jurisdiction where its ownership of Property or the conduct of its business requires such qualifications; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall be construed to obligate it to retain or preserve any of its rights or licenses, no longer used or, in the judgment of its Governing Body, useful in the conduct of its business

At all times to cause its Property to be maintained, preserved and kept in good repair, working order and condition and all needed and proper repairs, renewals and replacements thereof to be made; provided, however, that nothing contained in this subsection shall be construed to (i) prevent it from ceasing to operate any portion of its Property, if in its judgment (evidenced, in the case of such a cessation other than in the ordinary course of business

by an opinion or certificate of a Consultant) it is advisable not to operate the same, or if it intends to sell or otherwise dispose of the same and within a reasonable time endeavors to effect such sale or other disposition, or (ii) to obligate it to retain, preserve, repair, renew or replace any Property, leases, rights, privileges or licenses no longer used or, in the judgment of its Governing Body, useful in the conduct of its business.

(c) To do all things reasonably necessary to conduct its affairs and carry on its business and operations in such manner as to comply with any and all applicable laws of the United States and the several states thereof and duly observe and conform to all valid orders, regulations or requirements of any governmental authority relative to the conduct of its business and the ownership of its Properties; provided, nevertheless, that nothing herein contained shall require it to comply with, observe and conform to any such law, order, regulation or requirement of any governmental authority thereof or the applicability thereof to it shall be contested in good faith.

(d) To pay promptly all lawful taxes, governmental charges and assessments at any time levied or assessed upon or against it or its Property; provided, however, that it shall have the right to contest in good faith any such taxes, charges or assessments or the collection of any such sums and pending such contest may delay or defer payment thereof.

(c) To pay promptly or otherwise satisfy and discharge all of its Indebtedness and all demands and claims against it as and when the same become due and payable, other than any thereof (exclusive of the Indebtedness created and Outstanding hereunder) whose validity, amount or collectability is being contested in good faith.

(f) At all times to comply with all terms, covenants and provisions of any Liens at such time existing upon its Property or any part thereof or securing any of its Indebtedness.

(g) To procure and maintain all necessary licenses and permits and maintain accreditation of its health care facilities (other than those of a type for which accreditation is not available) by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations or other applicable recognized accrediting body; provided, however, that it need not comply with this Section 3.02(g) if and to the extent that its Governing Body shall have determined in good faith, evidenced by a resolution of the Governing Body, that such compliance is not in its best interests and that lack of such compliance would not materially impair its ability to pay its Indebtedness when due.

(h) So long as this Indenture shall remain in force and effect, each Member of the Obligated Group which is a Tax-Exempt Organization at the time it becomes a Member of the Obligated Group agrees, so long as all amounts due or to become due on any Related Bond have not been fully paid to the holder thereof, to take no action or to fail to take any action which action or failure to act (including any action or failure to act which would result in the alteration or loss of its status as a Tax-Exempt Organization) in the Opinion of Bond Counsel, would result NY1 servery.

17

advantage of state or federal laws now or hereafter in existence limiting medical and malpractice liability, or to establish or participate in other alternative risk management programs; all as may be approved by the Insurance Consultant as reasonable and appropriate risk management by the Obligated Group. If any Member of the Obligated Group shall be self-insured for any coverage, the report of the Insurance Consultant mentioned above shall state whether the anticipated funding of any self-insurance fund is actuarially sound, and if not, the required funding to produce such result and such coverage shall be reviewed by such Consultant not less frequently than annually. If the Insurance Consultant determines that the anticipated funding of any selfinsurance fund is not actuarially sound, the Obligated Group covenants that it will fund such selfinsurance fund in the manner recommended by the Insurance Consultant.

Section 3.04. <u>Insurance and Condemnation Proceeds</u>. Amounts received by any Member of the Obligated Group as insurance proceeds with respect to any casually loss or as condemnation awards may be used in such manner as the recipient may determine, including, without limitation, applying such moneys to the payment or prepayment of any Indebtedness in accordance with the terms thereof and of any pertinent Supplement, subject to compliance with the provisions hereof; provided that if the amount of such proceeds or awards received with respect to any casualty loss or condemnation exceeds ten percent (10%) of the Book Value of the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Obligated Group, each Member of the Obligated Group agrees that it will immediately notify the Master Trustee and that it will, within one hundred twenty (120) days after the casualty loss or taking, deliver to the Master Trustee:

(a) (i) An Officer's Certificate certifying the expected Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for each of the two (2) periods of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months following the date on which such proceeds or awards are expected to have been fully applied, which Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for each such period is not less than 1.25, as shown by pro forma financial statements for each such period, accompanied by a statement of the relevant assumptions including assumptions as to the use of such proceeds or awards, upon which such pro forma statements are based, along with the Officer's Certificate, and certifying further that the amount of such proceeds or awards, together with other available funds of the Obligated Group, shall be sufficient to pay the estimated replacement cost, which proceeds or awards received with respect to any casualty loss or condemnation exceeds twenty percent (20%) of the Book Value of the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Obligated Group, a written report of a Consultant confirming such certification; or

(b) A written report of a Consultant stating the Consultant's recommendations, including recommendations as to the use of such proceeds or awards, to cause the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for each of the periods described in subsection (a) of this section to be not less than 1.25, or, if in the opinion of the Consultant the attainment of such level is impracticable, at the highest practicable level which shall not be less than 1.00. in the interest on any Related Bond becoming included in the gross income of the holder thereof for federal income tax purposes.

(i) To maintain at all times cash, cash equivalents and unrestricted investments in an amount at least equal to 20 days of operating expenses, as determined from the most recent Financial Statements. Unrestricted investments shall mean those funds not immediately available for debt service through agreements with other parties. Operating expense shall exclude depreciation, amortization and other non-cash charges.

Section 3.03. Insurance. (a) Each Member of the Obligated Group agrees that it will maintain, or cause to be maintained, such insurance with respect to the operation and maintenance of its Property (including one or more self-insurance programs considered by an Insurance Consultant to be reasonable and appropriate) of such type and in such amounts as are normally carried by hospital facilities of similar type and size and against such risks as are customarily insured against in connection with hospital operations and hospital facilities of similar type and size, including blanket contractual liability and automobile insurance including owned and hired automobiles (excluding collision and comprehensive coverage thereon), (ii) professional liability or medical malpractice insurance, (iii) fire, flood, lightning, windstorm, hail, explosion, riot, riot attending a strike, civil commotion, damage from aircraft, smoke and uniform standard coverage and vandalism and malicious mischief endorsements and business interruption insurance covering such periods, (iv) workers' compensation insurance and (v) boiler insurance.

The Obligated Group shall retain an Insurance Consultant to review the (b) insurance requirements of the Members of the Obligated Group from time to time (but not less frequently than triennially). If the Insurance Consultant makes recommendations for the increase of any coverage, the Obligated Group shall increase or cause to be increased such coverage in accordance with such recommendations, subject to a good faith determination of the Obligated Group Representative that such recommendations, in whole or in part, are in the best interests of the Obligated Group. Notwithstanding anything in this Section to the contrary, each Member of the Obligated Group shall have the right, without giving rise to an Event of Default solely on such account, (i) to maintain insurance coverage below that most recently recommended by the Insurance Consultant, if the Obligated Group furnishes to the Master Trustee a report of the Insurance Consultant to the effect that the insurance so provided affords either the greatest amount of coverage available for the risk being insured against at rates which in the judgment of the Insurance Consultant are reasonable in connection with reasonable and appropriate risk management, or the greatest amount of coverage necessary by reason of state or federal laws now or hereafter in existence limiting medical and malpractice liability, or (ii) to adopt alternative risk management programs which the Insurance Consultant determines to be reasonable, including, without limitation, to self-insure in whole or in part individually or in connection with other institutions, to participate in programs of captive insurance companies, to participate with other health care institutions in mutual or other cooperative insurance or other risk management programs, to participate in state or federal insurance programs, to take NY1 5867000v 4

18

Each Member of the Obligated Group agrees that it will use such proceeds or awards, to the extent permitted by law, only in accordance with the assumptions described in subsection (a), or the recommendations described in subsection (b), of this section.

Section 3.05. <u>Limitations on Creation of Liens</u>. (a) Each Member of the Obligated Group agrees that it will not create or suffer to be created or permit the existence of any Lien upon Pledged Assets or on Property now owned or hereafter acquired by it other than Permitted Liens.

(b) Permitted Liens shall consist of the following:

(i) The Lien on the Pledged Assets created by Section 3.01(a) of this Indenture;

(ii) Liens arising by reason of good faith deposits with any Member of the Obligated Group in connection with leases of real estate, bids or contracts (other than contracts for the payment of money), deposits by any Member of the Obligated Group to secure public or statutory obligations, or to secure, or in lieu of, surety, stay or appeal bonds, and deposits as security for the payment of taxes or assessments or other similar charges;

(iii) Any Lien arising by reason of deposits with, or the giving of any form of security to, any governmental agency or any body created or approved by law or governmental regulation for any purpose at any time as required by law or governmental regulation as a condition to the transaction of any business or the exercise of any privilege or license, or to enable any Member of the Obligated Group to maintain self-insurance or to participate in any funds established to cover any insurance risks or in connection with workers' compensation, unemployment insurance, pension or profit sharing plans or other social security, or to share in the privileges or benefits required for companies participating in such arrangements;

(iv) Any judgment lien of less than \$250,000 against any Member of the Obligated Group so long as such judgment is being contested in good faith and execution thereon is stayed and any judgment lien which is certified by an Officer's Certificate to be fully covered by adequate insurance or funded reserves of the Obligated Group;

(v) (A) Rights reserved to or vested in any municipality or public authority by the terms of any right, power, franchise, grant, license, permit or provision of law, affecting any Property; (B) any liens on any Property for taxes, assessments, levies, fees, water and sewer rents, and other governmental and similar charges and any Liens of mechanics, materialmen, laborers, suppliers or vendors for work or services performed or materials furnished in connection with

NY1 5867000v 4

such Property, which are not due and payable or which are not delinquent, or the amount or validity of which, are being contested and execution thereon is stayed or, with respect to liens of mechanics, materialmen, laborers, suppliers or vendors have been due for fewer than one hundred eighty (180) days; (C) easements, rights-of-way, servitudes, restrictions, oil, gas or other mineral reservations and other minor defects, encumbrances, and irregularities in the tille to any Property which do not materially impair the use of such Property or materially and adversely affect the value thereof; (D) to the extent that it affects title to any Property, this Indenture; and (E) landlord's liens:

(vi) Any Lien which is existing on the date of authentication and delivery of the initial Obligation issued under this Indenture;

 (vii) Any Lien on pledges, gifts or grants (which do not constitute Gross Receipts) to be received in the future including any income derived from the investment thereof;

(viii) (x) Any Lien on inventory securing Short-Term Indebtedness which does not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the Book Value thereof or (y) any Lien on marketable investment securities securing Short-Term Indebtedness which does not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the fair market value thereof;

 (ix) Any Lien in favor of a trustee on the proceeds of Indebtedness prior to the application of such proceeds;

(x) Any Lien securing all Obligations on a parity basis;

(xi) Any Liens subordinate to the lien described in clause (x) of this subsection and required by a statute under which a Related Bond is issued;

(xii) Liens on moneys deposited by patients or others with any Member of the Obligated Group as security for or as prepayment for the cost of patient care:

(xiii) Liens on Property received by any Member of the Obligated Group through gifts, grants or bequests, such Liens being due to restrictions on such gifts, grants or bequests of Property or the income thereon;

(xiv) Liens on Property due to rights of third party payors for recoupment of amounts paid to any Member of the Obligated Group;

 $(xv) \;$ Rights of the United States of America under Title 42 United States Code Section 291i;

NY1 5867000v.4

21

Statements have been reported upon by independent certified public accountants and such Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio is not less than 1.25; and (B) there shall be filed with the Master Trustee the report of a Consultant to the effect that the forecasted Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio, taking the proposed Long-Term Indebtedness into account, for (I) in the case of Long-Term Indebtedness (other than a Guaranty) to finance capital improvements, each of the two (2) periods of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months succeeding the date on which such capital improvements are expected to be in operation, or (II) in the case of Long-Term Indebtedness not financing capital improvements or in the case of a Guaranty, each of the two (2) periods of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months succeeding the date on which the Indebtedness is incurred, is not less than 1.35, in each case as shown by forecasted balance sheets, statements of revenues and expenses and statements of changes in financial position for each such period, accompanied by a statement of the relevant assumptions upon which such forecasted statements are based; provided, however, that if the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio calculated pursuant to this clause (a)(ii)(B) is greater than 1.50, an Officer's Certificate may be substituted for the required Consultant's report.

(b) Completion Indebtedness may be incurred without limitation; provided, however, that prior to the incurrence of Completion Indebtedness, the Obligated Group Representative shall furnish to the Master Trustee: a certificate of an architect estimating the costs of completing the facilities for which Completion Indebtedness is to be incurred; a certificate of the chief financial officer of the Member of the Obligated Group for which Completion Indebtedness is to be incurred certifying that the amount of Completion Indebtedness to be incurred will be sufficient, together with other funds, if applicable, to complete construction of the facilities in respect of which Completion Indebtedness is to be incurred.

(c) Long-Term Indebtedness may be incurred for the purpose of refunding any Outstanding Long-Term Indebtedness without limitation if, prior to the incurrence of such Long-Term Indebtedness, there is delivered to the Master Trustee an Opinion of Counsel stating that upon the incurrence of such proposed Long-Term Indebtedness and application of the proceeds thereof (on the Cross-over Date, in the case of Cross-over Refunding Indebtedness), the Outstanding Long-Term Indebtedness to be refunded thereby will no longer be Outstanding.

(d) Short-Term Indebtedness may be incurred if immediately after the incurrence of such Indebtedness the aggregate Outstanding principal amount of all such Indebtedness (exclusive of the Short-Term Indebtedness described in the last proviso hereof) plus the current portion of Long-Term Indebtedness does not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the Total Operating Revenues for the most recent period of twelve (12) consecutive calendar months for which the Financial Statements have been reported upon by independent certified public accountants; provided, however, that there shall be a period of at least twenty (20) consecutive

23

 $(xvi)\,$ Any Lien securing Non-Recourse Indebtedness permitted by Section 3.06(g) hereof;

(xvii) Any Lien on Accounts that are sold pursuant to Section 3.08(c) hereof or that are pledged to secure Indebtedness permitted by Section 3.06(d) or 3.06(h) hereof; and

(xviii) Any Lien securing a Hedge Agreement.

Section 3.06. Limitations on Indebtedness. Each Member of the Obligated Group covenants and agrees that, after the issuance and delivery of Obligation No. 1, dated as of May 1, 2006, to the Vermont Educational and Health Buildings Financing Agency (the "Agency"), which Obligation No. 1 evidences the obligation of the Members of the Obligated Group to repay a loan made by the Agency to the Corporation pursuant to the terms and provisions of a Loan Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2006, by and between the Corporation and the Agency, it will not incur any Indebtedness if, after giving effect to all other Indebtedness incurred by the Obligated Group, such Indebtedness could not be incurred pursuant to subsections (a) to (h), inclusive, of this Section 3.06, and it will not incur any Long-Term Indebtedness if, immediately after the incurrence of the proposed Long-Term Indebtedness, the aggregate principal amount of all Long-Term Indebtedness would exceed seventy percent (70%) of Capitalization. Any Indebtedness may be incurred only in the manner and pursuant to the terms set forth in such subsections.

(a) Long-Term Indebtedness may be incurred if prior to incurrence of the Long-Term Indebtedness one of the following conditions is met:

(i) there is delivered to the Master Trustee an Officer's Certificate (accompanied by the historical audited financial report(s) of the independent certified public accountants mentioned below) certifying that the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio, taking all Outstanding Long-Term Indebtedness and the Long-Term Indebtedness then proposed to be incurred into account as if it had been incurred at the beginning of such period, for the most recent period of twenty-four (24) full consecutive calendar months preceding the date of delivery of such Officer's Certificate for which the Financial Statements have been reported upon by independent certified public accountants, is not less than 1.35; or

(ii) (A) there is delivered to the Master Trustee an Officer's Certificate (accompanied by the historical audited financial report(s) of the independent certified public accountants mentioned below) certifying that the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio, taking into account all Outstanding Long-Term Indebtedness, but not the Long-Term Indebtedness then to be incurred for the most recent period of twenty-four (24) full consecutive calendar months preceding the date of delivery of the Officer's Certificate for which the Financial

NY1 5867000v.4

22

calendar days during each such period of twelve (12) consecutive calendar months during which all Short-Term Indebtedness, other than Short-Term Indebtedness incurred pursuant to subsection (h) of this Section 3.06 and Short-Term Indebtedness incurred to offset a temporary delay in the receipt of funds due from third-party payers and Short-Term Indebtedness incurred in reasonable anticipation of the issuance of Long Term Indebtedness, shall not exceed five percent (5%) of such Total Operating Revenues; provided, however, that the Corporation's outstanding Short-Term Indebtedness may include a bank line of credit, as such line may be renewed, which may remain Outstanding, without regard to the volume and paydown requirements set forth in this Section 3.06(d), up to an amount not to exceed \$2,000,000 at any one time.

(e) Indebtedness may be incurred without limitation by any Member of the Obligated Group under a line of credit, letter of credit, standby bond purchase agreement or similar liquidity or credit enhancement facility established in connection with the issuance of any Obligations or Related Bonds; provided, however, if such liquidity facility is used or drawn upon to purchase, but not retire Obligations or Related Bonds, then the liability represented by such use or draw by the Member of the Obligated Group shall be included in Indebtedness as of the date of such use or draw and the principal amount of the Obligations or Related Bonds so purchased shall be excluded for all other purposes of this Master Indenture.

(f) Put Indebtedness may be incurred, if prior to the incurrence of such Put Indebtedness (i) the conditions described in subsection (a)(i) or subsections (a)(ii)(A) and (a)(ii)(B) of this Section 3.06 are met and (ii) a binding commitment from a bank or other financial institution exists to provide financing sufficient to pay the purchase price or principal of such Put Indebtedness on any date on which the owner of such Put Indebtedness may demand payment thereof pursuant to the terms of such Put Indebtedness; provided, however, that no repayments of any principal amounts drawn under such facility for liquidity purposes are required for at least one year from the date of the related drawing.

(g) Non-Recourse Indebtedness may be incurred upon delivery to the Master Trustee of an Officer's Certificate (accompanied by the report of the independent certified public accountants mentioned below) certifying (i) that the amount of Non-Recourse Indebtedness (including the Non-Recourse Indebtedness to be incurred in connection with such certification) incurred during the most recent period of twelve (12) consecutive calendar months for which the Financial Statements have been reported upon by independent certified public accountants is not in excess of an aggregate of twenty percent (20%) of Total Revenues during such period, and (ii) that the incurrence of such Non-Recourse Indebtedness will not result in a violation of Section 3.07 hereof.

(h) Indebtedness secured by Accounts may be incurred if prior to the incurrence of such Indebtedness there is delivered to the Master Trustee an Officer's Certificate of an Obligated Group Representative certifying that immediately after the incurrence of such Indebtedness, the amount of Accounts that have been pledged to secure Indebtedness that has

NY1 5867000v.4

been issued pursuant to this paragraph (h) and is then Outstanding will not exceed 25% of the Obligated Group's net patients accounts, as shown on the Financial Statements for the previous Fiscal Year; provided, however, that (A) the determination of whether a disposition of Accounts is a sale or loan shall be made in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and (B) any Indebtedness issued pursuant to this provision shall be considered to be Short-Term Indebtedness subject to the incurrence test set forth in Section 3.06(d) hereof.

Section 3.07. Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio. (a) Each Member of the Obligated Group covenants to set rates and charges for its facilities, services and products such that the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio, calculated at the end of each Fiscal Year, will not be less than 1.10; provided, however, that in any case where Long-Term Indebtedness has been incurred to acquire or construct capital improvements, the Long-Term Debt Service Requirement with respect thereto shall not be taken into account in making the foregoing calculation until the first Fiscal Year commencing after the occupation or utilization of such capital improvements unless the Long-Term Debt Service Requirement with respect thereto is required to be paid from sources other than the proceeds of such Long-Term Indebtedness prior to such Fiscal Year.

(b) If at any time the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio required by clause (a) hereof is not met, the Obligated Group covenants immediately to retain a Consultant acceptable to the majority of the beneficial owners of Obligation No. 1 to make recommendations to increase such Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio in the following Fiscal Year to the level required or, if in the opinion of the Consultant the attainment of such level is impracticable, to the highest level attainable. Each Member of the Obligated Group sagrees that it will, to the extent permitted by law, follow the recommendations of the Consultant. So long as a Consultant shall be retained and each Member of the Obligated Group shall follow such Consultant's recommendations to the extent permitted by law, this Section 3.07 shall be deemed to have been complied with even if the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the following Fiscal Year is below the required level; provided, however, the revenues of the Obligated Group shall not be less than the amount required in cash to pay the total operating expenses of the Obligated Group and to pay the debt service on all Indebtedness of the Obligated Group for such Fiscal Year.

(c) If a report of a Consultant is delivered to the Master Trustee, which report shall state that Governmental Restrictions have been imposed which make it impossible for the coverage requirement in clause (a) hereof to be met, then such coverage requirement shall be reduced to the maximum coverage permitted by such Governmental Restrictions but in no event less than 1.00.

Section 3.08. <u>Sale, Lease or Other Disposition of Operating Assets; Disposition of Cash</u> <u>and Investments; Sale of Accounts</u>. (a) Each Member of the Obligated Group agrees that it will not transfer Operating Assets in any twelve (12) month period for which Financial Statements will be reported upon by an independent certified public accountant, except for Transfers:

NY1 5867000v.4

25

(v) To any Person provided that (A) the Member of the Obligated Group proposing to make such Transfer shall receive, as consideration for such Transfer, cash, services or Property equal to the fair market value of the asset so transferred (fair market value of real property with a value in excess of \$100,000 as determined by an Officer's Certificate shall be evidenced by a written report of an independent appraiser reasonably acceptable to the Master Trustee which report shall state the fair market value as of a date not more than one (1) year prior to the date as of which such fair market value is being determined), and (B) if the fair market value of the asset to be transferred exceeds five percent (5%) of the unrestricted fund balance of the Obligated Group as shown on the Financial Statements for the most recent period of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months for which such Financial Statements were reported upon by independent certified public accountants, then there shall be delivered to the Master Trustee prior to such Transfer either:

(I) an Officer's Certificate (accompanied by the Financial Statements mentioned below) certifying that the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio, adjusted to exclude the revenues and expenses derived from the Operating Assets proposed to be disposed of, for the most recent period of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months preceding the date of delivery of the Officer's Certificate for which Financial Statements are available, is not less than 1.25 and not less than sixty-five percent (65%) of what it would have been were such Transfer not to take place; or

(II) the report of a Consultant to the effect that the forecasted Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio, taking such Transfer into account, for each of the two (2) periods of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months succeeding the date on which such Transfer is expected to occur, and the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for each such period is not less than 1.25 and not less than sixty-five percent (65%) of what it would have been were such Transfer not to take place, accompanied by a statement of the relevant assumptions upon which such forecasts are based.

Each Member of the Obligated Group covenants to maintain records adequate to enable the Master Trustee to ascertain that the provisions of paragraph (v) above have been complied with and to make such records available to the Master Trustee upon written request.

(b) Each Member of the Obligated Group agrees that it will not transfer cash or investments, except for Transfers of cash and investments by any Member of the Obligated Group:

(i) To another Member of the Obligated Group without limit.

(i) To any Person, of Operating Assets (A) that the Obligated Group has ceased to operate pursuant to Section 3.02(b) hereof and (B) the Net Book Value of which, in the aggregate for such twelve-month period, does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the unrestricted fund balance (plus the excess of assets over liabilities of for-profit Members of the Obligated Group, if applicable) of the Obligated Group, as shown on the Financial Statements for the most recent period of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months for which such Financial Statements are available.

(ii) To any Person if, prior to the sale, lease or other disposition, there is delivered to the Master Trustee an Officer's Certificate stating that, in the judgment of the signer, such Operating Assets have become inadequate, obsolete, worn out, unsuitable, unprofitable, undesirable or unnecessary and the sale, lease, removal or other disposition thereof will not impair the structural soundness, efficiency or economic value of the remaining Operating Assets; provided, however, that no Officer's Certificate shall be required to be delivered to the Master Trustee with respect to the Transfer of any Operating Assets having a Net Book Value in the aggregate of less than two percent (2%) of the unrestricted fund balance (plus the excess of assets over liabilities of for-profit Members of the Obligated Group, if applicable) of the Obligated Group, as shown on the Financial Statements for the most recent period of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months for which Financial Statements are available.

(iii) To another Member of the Obligated Group without limit.

(iv) To any Person provided there shall be delivered to the Master Trustee prior to such Transfer either:

(A) an Officer's Certificate (accompanied by the Financial Statements mentioned below) certifying that the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio, adjusted to exclude the revenues and expenses derived from the Operating Assets proposed to be disposed of, for the most recent period of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months preceding the date of delivery of the Officer's Certificate for which Financial Statements are available, is not less than 1.25 and not less than sixty-five percent (65%) of what it would have been were such Transfer not to take place; or

(B) the report of a Consultant to the effect that the forecasted Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio, taking such Transfer into account, for each of the two (2) periods of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months succeeding the date on which such Transfer is expected to occur, is not less than 1.30 and not less than sixty-five percent (65%) of what it would have been were such Transfer not to take place, accompanied by a statement of the relevant assumptions upon which such forecasts are based.

NY1 5867000v.4

26

To any Person if there shall be filed with the Master Trustee an (ii) Officer's Certificate, accompanied by and based upon Financial Statements for the most recent period of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months for which such Financial Statements are available, demonstrating (i) that the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the period commencing with the Fiscal Year in which such accumulated amount became available and ending with the Fiscal Year preceding the year of such Transfer would not be reduced below 1.25 if the amount of the proposed Transfer was deducted from Income Available for Debt Service for such period, and (ii) that the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for such period would not be reduced below 1.25 if the amount of the proposed Transfer were deducted from Income Available for Debt Service for such period; provided, however, that in each twelve (12) month period in which the amount of cash and investments transferred pursuant to this clause (ii) is less than the amount permitted to be transferred pursuant to this clause (ii), the amount permitted to be transferred but untransferred may be accumulated for Transfer in a future year or years, provided that when any or all of such accumulated amount is transferred, there shall be filed with the Master Trustee an Officer's Certificate demonstrating (i) that the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the period commencing with the Fiscal Year in which such accumulated amount became available and ending with the Fiscal Year preceding the year of such Transfer would not be reduced below 1.25 if the amount of the proposed Transfer were deducted from Income Available for Debt Service for such period and (ii) that the accumulated amount so transferred will not reduce the cash and investments of the Obligated Group as shown on the Financial Statements for the most recent twelve (12) month period by more than thirty-five percent (35%) or to an amount below the cash and investments for the twelve (12) month period when such accumulation began as shown on the Financial Statements for such twelve (12) month period, and provided further, however, that no such Transfer shall reduce the remaining cash and unrestricted investments to a level at or below 20 days' operating expenses, as defined in Section 3.02(i) hereof.

(iii) To any Person provided that, the Member of the Obligated Group proposing to make such Transfer shall receive, and if requested by the Master Trustee can demonstrate in an Officer's Certificate filed with the Master Trustee that the Member of the Obligated Group shall receive, as consideration for such Transfer Property, cash, securities or services the fair market value of which is at least equal to the amount of the cash, securities and other investment properties so transferred; provided, however, that in the case of a Transfer involving forgiveness of debt in connection with physician contracts which contain, as compensation, a loan, the forgiveness of which is contingent upon the completion by said physician of a term of service as specified in such physician contracts, services received or to be received by the Member of the Obligated Group in the event of completion of such term of service are, presumptively, equal to at least the fair market value of such forgiveness of debt and provided further, however, that no such Transfer shall reduce the remaining cash and unrestricted investments to a level at or below 30 days' operating expenses.

 (iv) To any Person or Persons in an aggregate amount not to exceed \$1,000,000 in any Fiscal Year.

(c) Each Member of the Obligated Group agrees that it will not transfer Accounts; provided, however, that prior to its receipt of a request from the Master Trustee pursuant to Section 3.01(d) hereof any Member of the Obligated Group will have the right to sell, in any Fiscal Year, its patient Accounts in an amount not to exceed the difference between (i) the Account Lien Amount and (ii) the amount of Accounts that have been pledged to secure outstanding Indebtedness incurred by any Member of the Obligated Group pursuant to Section 3.06(d) or 3.06(h) hereof, if such Member of the Obligated Group pursuant to Section consideration for such sale cash, services or Property equal to the fair market value of the accounts receivable so sold, as certified to the Master Trustee in an Officer's Certificate of such Member of the Obligated Group and (ii) deliver to the Master Trustee a statement from the Obligated Group's certified public accountants that such sale of patient Accounts constitutes a "sale" under generally accepted accounting principles.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this section, nothing herein shall be construed as limiting the ability of any Member of the Obligated Group to purchase or sell Property (other than Operating Assets) or inventory in the ordinary course of business or to transfer cash, securities and other investment properties in connection with ordinary investment transactions where such purchases, sales and transfers are for substantially equivalent value.

Section 3.09. <u>Consolidation, Merger, Sale or Conveyance</u>. (a) Each Member of the Obligated Group covenants that it will not merge or consolidate with, or sell or convey all or substantially all of its assets to any Person that is not a Member of the Obligated Group unless:

(i) Either a Member of the Obligated Group will be the successor corporation, or if the successor corporation is not a Member of the Obligated Group such successor corporation shall execute and deliver to the Master Trustee an appropriate instrument, satisfactory to the Master Trustee, containing the agreement of such successor corporation to assume the due and punctual payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on all Outstanding Obligations issued under this Indenture according to their tenor and the due and punctual performance and observance of all the covenants and conditions of this Indenture and any Supplement hereto and granting to the Master Trustee a security interest in the Pledged Assets of such successor corporation; and

(ii) No Member of the Obligated Group immediately after such merger or consolidation, or such sale or conveyance, would be in default in the performance or observance of any covenant or condition of this Indenture and any

NY1 5867000v.4

29

file with the Master Trustee and with each Holder who may have so requested in writing or on whose behalf the Master Trustee may have so requested, a copy of the audited Financial Statements as of the end of such Fiscal Year (which shall include comparative information from the preceding Fiscal Year) accompanied by the opinion of independent certified public accountants. Such audited Financial Statements shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall include such statements necessary for a fair presentation of unrestricted fund financial position, results of operations and changes in unrestricted fund balance and financial position as of the end of such fiscal reporting period.

(b) Within thirty (30) days after receipt of the audit report mentioned above but in no event later than one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of each Fiscal Year, file with the Master Trustee and with each Holder who may have so requested or in whose behalf the Master Trustee may have so requested, an Officer's Certificate stating the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the Fiscal Year and stating whether, to the best knowledge of the signers, any Member of the Obligated Group is in default in the performance of any covenant contained in this Indenture and, if so, specifying each such default of which the signers may have knowledge and whether each such default has been corrected. If any default has not been remedied then a report of independent certified public accountants, to the best knowledge of the signers, shall identify what, if any, corrective action will be taken to cure such default.

(c) If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, (i) file with the Master Trustee such other financial statements and information concerning its operations and financial affairs (or of any consolidated or combined group of companies, including any Member of the Obligated Group) as the Master Trustee may from time to time reasonably request, excluding specifically donor records, patient records and personnel records and (ii) provide access to its facilities for the purpose of inspection by the Master Trustee during regular business hours or at such other times as the Master Trustee may reasonably request.

(d) Within thirty (30) days after its receipt thereof, file with the Master Trustee a copy of each report which any provision of this Indenture requires to be prepared by a Consultant or an Insurance Consultant.

(e) Within thirty (30) days after the beginning of each fifth Fiscal Year, file with the Master Trustee an Opinion of Counsel which shall state whether there are required to be filed in any office within the period of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months following the date of such Opinion of Counsel financing statements, including continuation statements in order to continue the perfection of the security interests granted hereunder.

Section 3.11. <u>Parties Becoming Members of the Obligated Group</u>. Persons which are non-profit corporations and which are not Members of the Obligated Group and non-profit corporations which are successor corporations to any Member of the Obligated Group through a merger or consolidation permitted by Section 3.09 hereof may, with the prior written consent of the current Members of the Obligated Group, become Members of the Obligated Group, if:

NY1 5867000v.4

condition described in subsection (a)(i) or (ii) of Section 3.06 of this Indenture would be met for the incurrence of one (1) additional dollar of Long-Term Indebtedness; and

(iii) If all amounts due or to become due on any Related Bond have not been fully paid to the holder thereof, there shall have been delivered to the Master Trustee an Opinion of Bond Counsel, in form and substance satisfactory to the Master Trustee, to the effect that under then existing law the consummation of such merger, consolidation, sale or conveyance, whether or not contemplated on any date of the delivery of such Related Bond, would not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation of interest payable on such Related Bond.

(b) In case of any such consolidation, merger, sale or conveyance and upon any such assumption by the successor corporation, such successor corporation shall succeed to and be substituted for its predecessor, with the same effect as if it had been named herein as such predecessor or had become a Member of the Obligated Group pursuant to Section 3.11 hereof, as the case may be. Such successor corporation thereupon may cause to be signed, and may issue in its own name Obligations issuable hereunder; and upon the order of such successor corporation and subject to all the terms, conditions and limitations in this Indenture prescribed, the Master Trustee shall authenticate and shall deliver Obligations that such successor corporation shall have caused to be signed and delivered to the Master Trustee. All Outstanding Obligations so issued by such successor corporation hereunder shall in all respects have the same security position and benefit under this Indenture as Outstanding Obligations theretofore or thereafter issued in accordance with the terms of this Indenture as though all of such Obligations had been issued hereunder without any such consolidation, merger, sale or conveyance having occurred.

(c) In case of any such consolidation, merger, sale or conveyance such changes in phraseology and form (but not in substance) may be made in Obligations thereafter to be issued as may be appropriate.

(d) The Master Trustee may accept an Opinion of Counsel as conclusive evidence that any such consolidation, merger, sale or conveyance, and any such assumption, complies with the provisions of this Section and that it is proper for the Master Trustee under the provisions of Article VI and of this Section to join in the execution of any instrument required to be executed and delivered by this Section.

Section 3.10. Filing of Financial Statements, Certificate of No Default and Other Information. The Obligated Group covenants that it will:

(a) Within thirty (30) days after receipt of the audit report mentioned below but in no event later than one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of each Fiscal Year for which the Financial Statements are reported upon by independent certified public accountants, NY1 S807000-4

30

(a) The Person or successor corporation which is becoming a Member of the Obligated Group shall execute and deliver to the Master Trustee an appropriate instrument, satisfactory to the Master Trustee containing the agreement of such Person or successor corporation (i) to become a Member of the Obligated Group under this Indenture and thereby become subject to compliance with all provisions of this Indenture pertaining to a Member of the Obligated Group, including the pledge and security interest provided for in Section 3.01 of this Indenture, the filing or recordation of all financing statements and continuation statements in such places as are required by law and the performance and observance of all covenants and obligations of a Member of the Obligated Group hereunder, and (ii) unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteeing to the Master Trustee and each other Member of the Obligated Group that all Obligations issued and then Outstanding or to be issued and Outstanding hereunder will be paid in accordance with the terms thereof and of this Indenture when due.

(b) Each instrument executed and delivered to the Master Trustee in accordance with subsection (a) of this Section, shall be accompanied by an Opinion of Counsel, addressed to and satisfactory to the Master Trustee, to the effect that such instrument has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by such Person or successor corporation and constitutes a valid and binding obligation enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy laws, insolvency laws, other laws affecting creditors' rights generally, equity principles and laws dealing with fraudulent conveyances.

(c) There shall be filed with the Master Trustee (i) an Officer's Certificate demonstrating that the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the most recent period of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months preceding the proposed date of such action for which Financial Statements are available, assuming such action actually occurred at the beginning of such period, would not have been reduced by more than thirty-five percent (35%) and in no event to less than 1.25; or (ii) the report of a Consultant demonstrating that the forecasted Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for each of the two (2) Fiscal Years immediately succeeding the date of such action (A) will be not less than 2.00 or (B) will be greater than 1.30 and not reduce by more than thirty-five percent (35%), the forecasted Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for each of susming that such action had not taken place.

(d) If all amounts due or to become due on any Related Bond have not been paid to the holders thereof, there shall be filed with the Master Trustee, an Opinion of Bond Counsel, in form and substance satisfactory to the Master Trustee, to the effect that the consummation of such transaction would not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation of the interest on any such Related Bond.

Section 3.12. <u>Withdrawal from the Obligated Group</u>. (a) No Member of the Obligated Group may withdraw from the Obligated Group unless, prior to the taking of such action, there is delivered to the Master Trustee:

(i) (A) An Officer's Certificate demonstrating that (I) all Obligations issued by such Member are no longer Outstanding or (II) an amount of cash or Defeasance Obligations sufficient to accomplish the requirement of clause (i)(A)(I) hereof has been paid by such Member to the Master Trustee or all Outstanding Obligations issued by such Member have been assumed by another Member of the Obligated Group, and (B), in either case, if all amounts due on any Related Bond which bears interest which is not includable in the gross income of the recipient thereof under the Code have not been paid to the holder thereof, an Opinion of Bond Counsel, in form and substance satisfactory to the Master Trustee, to the effect that under then existing law such Member's withdrawal from the Obligated Group, whether or not contemplated on any date of delivery of any Related Bond, would not cause the interest payable on such Related Bond to become includable in the gross income of the recipient thereof under the Code; and

(ii) (A) An Officer's Certificate demonstrating that the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the most recent period of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months preceding the proposed date of such action for which Financial Statements are available, assuming such action actually occurred at the beginning of such period, would have been not reduced by more than thirtyfive percent (35%) and in no event to less than 1.25; or

(B) The report of a Consultant demonstrating that the forecasted Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for each of the two (2) Fiscal Years immediately succeeding the date of such action is forecasted to be greater than 1.30 and that such action will not reduce by more than thirty-five (35%) the forecasted Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio for each of such periods assuming that such action had not taken place.

(b) Upon the withdrawal of any Member from the Obligated Group pursuant to subsection (a) of this Section, any guaranty by such Member pursuant to Section 3.11 hereof shall be released and discharged in full and all liability of such Member of the Obligated Group with respect to all Obligations Outstanding under this Indenture shall cease.

ARTICLE IV

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 4.01. <u>Events of Default</u>. Event of Default, as used herein, shall mean any of the following events:

(a) The Members of the Obligated Group shall fail to make any payment of the principal of, the redemption premium, if any, or interest on any Obligations issued and Outstanding hereunder when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at maturity, NY1 5867000-4

33

assignment for the benefit of creditors, or the admission by it in writing of its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due.

Section 4.02. <u>Acceleration; Annulment of Acceleration</u>. (a) Upon the occurrence and during the continuation of an Event of Default hereunder, the Master Trustee may and, upon the written request of (i) the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Obligations Outstanding or (ii) any Person properly exercising the right given to such Person under any Supplement to require acceleration of the Obligations issued pursuant to such Supplement, shall, by notice to the Members of the Obligations shall become and be immediately due and payable, whereupon such Obligations shall become and be immediately due and payable, whereupon such Obligations issued pursuant to such Supplement give a Person the right to consent to acceleration of the Obligations issued pursuant to said Supplement, the Obligations issued pursuant to such Supplement. In the event Obligations are accelerated there shall be due and payable to the total principal amount of all such Obligations, and unto the total of accelerated there shall be due and payable to the total principal mount of all such Obligations, plus all interest which accrues thereon from the date of acceleration to the date of payment.

(b) At any time after the principal of the Obligations shall have been so declared to be due and payable and before the entry of final judgment or decree in any suit, action or proceeding instituted on account of such default, if (i) the Obligated Group has paid or caused to be paid or deposited with the Master Trustee moneys or Defeasance Obligations sufficient to pay all matured installments of interest and interest on installments of principal and interest and principal or redemption prices then due (other than the principal then due only because of such declaration) of all Obligation Soutstanding; (ii) the Obligated Group has paid or caused to be paid or deposited with the Master Trustee money sufficient to pay the charges, compensation, expenses, disbursements, advances, fees and liabilities of the Master Trustee; (iii) all other amounts then payable by the Obligated Group hereunder shall have been paid or a sum sufficient to pay the same shall have been deposited with the Master Trustee; and (iv) every Event of Default (other than a default in the payment of the principal of such Master Trustee may, and upon the written request of Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Obligation Such annument shall aveclosed or not these studing shall, annul such declaration and its consequences with respect to any Obligations or portions thereof not then due by their terms. No such annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent Event of Default or impair any right consequent thereon.

Section 4.03. <u>Additional Remedies and Enforcement of Remedies</u>. (a) Upon the occurrence and continuance of any Event of Default, the Master Trustee may, and upon the written request of the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Obligations Outstanding, together with indemnification of the Master Trustee to its satisfaction therefor, shall, proceed forthwith to protect and enforce its rights and the rights of the Holders

by proceedings for redemption, by acceleration or otherwise, in accordance with the terms thereof, of this Indenture or of any Supplement;

(b) Any Member of the Obligated Group shall fail duly to perform, observe or comply with any covenant or agreement on its part under this Indenture for a period of thirty (30) days after the date on which written notice of such failure, requiring the same to be remedied, shall have been given to the Members of the Obligated Group by the Master Trustee, or to the Members of the Obligated Group by the Holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of Obligations then Outstanding; provided, however, that if said failure be such that it cannot be corrected within thirty (30) days after the receipt of such notice; is shall not constitute an Event of Default if corrective action is instituted within such thirty (30) day period, is diligently pursued and is successfully completed within sixty (60) days after

(c) An event of default shall occur under a Related Bond Indenture or upon a Related Bond;

(d) Any Member of the Obligated Group shall fail to make any required payment with respect to any Indebtedness in a outstanding aggregate principal amount in excess of \$250,000 (other than Obligations issued and Outstanding hereunder and Non-Recourse Indebtedness), whether such Indebtedness now exists or shall hereafter be created, and any period of grace with respect thereto shall have expired, or an event of default as defined in any mortgage, indenture or instrument under which there may be issued, or by which there may be secured or evidenced, any Indebtedness, whether such Indebtedness now exists or shall hereafter be created, shall occur, which event of default shall not have been waived by the holder of such mortgage, indenture or instrument, and as a result of such failure to pay or other event of default such Indebtedness shall have been accelerated;

(c) The entry of a decree or order by a court having jurisdiction in the premises for an order for relief against any Member of the Obligated Group, or approving as properly filed a petition seeking reorganization, arrangement, adjustment or composition of or in respect of such Member under the United States Bankruptcy Code or any other applicable federal or state law, or appointing a receiver, liquidator, custodian, assignee, or sequestrator (or other similar official) of such Member or of any substantial part of its Property, or ordering the winding up or liquidation of its affairs, and the continuance of any such decree or order unstayed and in effect for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days; and

(f) The institution by any Member of the Obligated Group of proceedings for an order for relief, or the consent by it to an order for relief against it, or the filing by it of a petition or answer or consent seeking reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, composition or relief under the United States Bankruptcy Code or any other similar applicable federal or state law, or the consent by it to the filing of any such petition or to the appointment of a receiver, liquidator, custodian, assignee, trustee or sequestrator (or other similar official) of such Member of the Obligated Group or of any substantial part of its Property, or the making by it of an $W_{1305000-4}$

34

hereunder by such suits, actions or proceedings as the Master Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem expedient, including but not limited to:

(i) Enforcement of the right of the Holders to collect and enforce the payment of amounts due or becoming due under the Obligations;

(ii) Suit upon all or any part of the Obligations;

(iii) Civil action to require any Person holding moneys, documents or other property pledged to secure payment of amounts due or to become due on the Obligations to account as if it were the trustee of an express trust for the Holders:

 (iv) Civil action to enjoin any acts or things, which may be unlawful or in violation of the rights of the Holders;

(v) Enforcement of rights as a secured party under the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of Vermont; and

(vi) Enforcement of any other right of the Holders conferred by law or hereby.

(b) Regardless of the happening of an Event of Default, the Master Trustee, if requested in writing by the Holders of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of the Obligations then Outstanding, shall, upon being indemnified to its satisfaction therefor, institute and maintain such suits and proceedings as it may be advised shall be necessary or expedient (i) to prevent any impairment of the security hereunder by any acts which may be unlawful or in violation hereof, or (ii) to preserve or protect the interests of the Holders, provided that such request and the action to be taken by the Master Trustee are not in conflict with any applicable law or the provisions hereof and, in the sole judgment of the Master Trustee, is not unduly prejudicial to the interest of the Holders not making such request.

Section 4.04. <u>Application of Gross Receipts and Other Moneys after Default</u>. During the continuance of an Event of Default all Gross Receipts and other moneys received by the Master Trustee pursuant to any right given or action taken under the provisions of this Article, after payment of (i) the costs and expenses of the proceedings resulting in the collection of such moneys and of the expenses and advances incurred or made by the Master Trustee with respect thereto and all other fees and expenses of the Master Trustee under this Indenture and (ii) in the sole discretion of the Master Trustee, the payment of the expenses of operating any Member of the Obligated Group, shall be applied as follows:

(a) Unless the principal of all Outstanding Obligations shall have become or have been declared due and payable:

36

NY1 5867000v 4

<u>First</u>: To the payment to the Persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest then due on Obligations in the order of the maturity of such installments, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any installment or installments maturing on the same date, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts due thereon to the Persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference; and

Second: To the payment to the Persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal installments of any Obligations which shall have become due, whether at maturity or by call for redemption, in the order of their due dates, and if the amounts available shall not be sufficient to pay in full all Obligations due on any date, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts of principal installments due on such date, to the Persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference.

(b) If the principal of all Outstanding Obligations shall have become or have been declared due and payable, to the payment of the principal and interest then due and unpaid upon Obligations without preference or priority of principal over interest or of interest over principal, or of any installment of interest over any other installment of interest, or of any Obligation over any other Obligation, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for principal and interest, to the Persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or preference.

(c) If the principal of all Outstanding Obligations shall have been declared due and payable, and if such declaration shall thereafter have been rescinded and annulled under the provisions of this Article, then, subject to the provisions of paragraph (b) of this Section in the event that the principal of all Outstanding Obligations shall later become due or be declared due and payable, the moneys shall be applied in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (a) of this Section.

Whenever moneys are to be applied by the Master Trustee pursuant to the provisions of this Section, such moneys shall be applied by it at such times, and from time to time, as the Master Trustee shall determine, having due regard for the amount of such moneys available for application and the likelihood of additional moneys becoming available for such application in the future. Whenever the Master Trustee shall apply such moneys, it shall fix the date upon which such application is to be made and upon such date interest on the amounts of principal to be paid on such dates shall cease to accrue. The Master Trustee shall give such notice as it may deem appropriate of the deposit with it of any such moneys and of the fixing of any such date, and shall not be required to make payment to the Holder of any unpaid Obligation until such Obligation shall be presented to the Master Trustee for appropriate endorsement of any partial payment or for cancellation if fully paid.

Whenever all Obligations and interest thereon have been paid under the provisions of this Section and all expenses and charges of the Master Trustee have been paid, any balance remaining shall be paid to the Person entitled to receive the same; if no other Person shall be entitled thereto, then the balance shall be paid to the Members of the Obligated Group, their respective successors, or as a court of competent jurisdiction may direct.

37

(b) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Master Trustee, upon the written request of the Holders of not less than a majority of the aggregate principal amount of Obligations then Outstanding, shall waive any Event of Default hereunder and its consequences; provided, however, that, except under the circumstances set forth in subsection (b) of Section 4.02 hereof, a default in the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any Obligation, when the same shall become due and payable by the terms thereof or upon call for redemption, may not be waived without the written consent of the Holders of all the Obligations (with respect to which such payment default exists) at the time Outstanding.

(c) In case of any waiver by the Master Trustee of an Event of Default hereunder, the Members of the Obligated Group, the Master Trustee and the Holders shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, but no such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other Event of Default or impair any right consequent thereon.

Section 4.10. <u>Appointment of Receiver</u>. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default unless the same shall have been waived as herein provided, the Master Trustee shall be entitled as a matter of right if it shall so elect, to the extent permitted by law, (i) forthwith and without declaring the Obligations to be due and payable, (ii) after declaring the same to be due and payable, or (iii) upon the commencement of an action to enforce the specific performance hereof or in aid thereof or upon the commencement of any other judicial proceeding to enforce any right of the Master Trustee or the Holders, to the appointment of a receiver or receivers of any or all of the Property of the Obligated Group with such powers as the court making such appointment shall confer. Each Member of the Obligated Group, respectively, hereby consents and agrees, and will if requested by the Master Trustee consent and agree at the time of application by the Trustee for appointment of a receiver of its Property, to the appointment of such receiver of its Property and that such receiver may be given the right, power and authority, to the extent the same may lawfully be given, to take possession of and operate and deal with such Property and the revenues, profits and proceeds therefrom, with like effect as the Member of the Obligated Group could do so, and to borrow money and issue evidences of indebtedness as such receiver.

Section 4.11. <u>Remedies Subject to Provisions of Law</u>. All rights, remedies and powers provided by this Article may be exercised only to the extent that the exercise thereof does not violate any applicable provision of law, and all the provisions of this Article are intended to be subject to all applicable mandatory provisions of law which may be controlling and to be limited to the extent necessary so that they will not render this instrument or the provisions hereof invalid or unenforceable under the provisions of any applicable law.

Section 4.12. <u>Notice of Default</u>. The Master Trustee shall, within ten (10) days after it has knowledge of the occurrence of an Event of Default, mail to all Holders as the names and addresses of such Holders appear upon the books of the Master Trustee, notice of such Event of Default known to the Master Trustee.

Section 4.05. <u>Remedies Not Exclusive</u>. No remedy by the terms hereof conferred upon or reserved to the Master Trustee or the Holders is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or existing at law or in equity or by statute on or after the date hereof.

Section 4.06. <u>Remedies Vested in the Master Trustee</u>. All rights of action (including the right to file proof of claims) hereunder or under any of the Obligations may be enforced by the Master Trustee without the possession of any of the Obligations or the production thereof in any trial or other proceedings relating thereto. Any such suit or proceeding instituted by the Master Trustee may be brought in its name as the Master Trustee without the necessity of joining as plaintiffs or defendants any Holders. Subject to the provisions of Section 4.04 hereof, any recovery or judgment shall be for the equal benefit of the Holders.

Section 4.07. <u>Holders' Control of Proceedings</u>. If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Obligations then Outstanding shall have the right, at any time, by an instrument in writing executed and delivered to the Master Trustee and accompanied by indemnity satisfactory to the Master Trustee, to direct the method and place of conducting any proceeding to be taken in connection with the enforcement of the terms and conditions hereof or for the appointment of a receiver or any other proceedings hereunder, provided that such direction is not in conflict with any applicable law or the provisions hereof, and provided further, that the Master Trustee shall have the right to decline to follow any such direction if the master Trustee in good faith shall determine that the proceeding so directed would involve it in personal liability, and, in the sole judgment of the Master Trustee, is not unduly prejudicial to the interest of any Holders not joining in such direction and provided further that nothing in this Section shall impair the right of the Master Trustee in its discretion to take any other action hereunder which it may deem proper and which is not inconsistent with such direction by Holders.

Section 4.08. <u>Termination of Proceedings</u>. In case any proceeding taken by the Master Trustee on account of an Event of Default shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason or shall have been determined adversely to the Master Trustee or to the Holders, then the Members of the Obligated Group, the Master Trustee and the Holders shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, and all rights, remedies and powers of the Master Trustee and the Holders shall continue as if no such proceeding had been taken.

Section 4.09. <u>Waiver of Event of Default</u>. (a) No delay or omission of the Master Trustee or of any Holder to exercise any right or power accruing upon any Event of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such Event of Default or an acquiescence therein. Every power and remedy given by this Article to the Master Trustee and the Holders, respectively, may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient by them.

38

NY1 5867000v.4

NY1 5867000v 4

ARTICLE V

THE MASTER TRUSTEE

Section 5.01. <u>Certain Duties and Responsibilities</u>. (a) Except during the continuance of an Event of Default:

(i) The Master Trustee undertakes to perform such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Indenture, and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Indenture against the Master Trustee; and

(ii) In the absence of bad faith on its part, the Master Trustee may conclusively rely, as to the truth of the statements and the correctness of the opinions expressed therein, upon certificates or opinions furnished to the Master Trustee and conforming to the requirements of this Indenture; but in the case of any such certificates or opinions which by any provision hereof are specifically required to be furnished to the Master Trustee, the Master Trustee shall be under a duty to examine the same to determine whether or not they conform to the requirements of this Indenture.

(b) In case an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Master Trustee shall exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it by this Indenture, and use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise, as a prudent person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of such person's own affairs.

(c) No provision of this Indenture shall be construed to relieve the Master Trustee from liability for its own negligent action, its own negligent failure to act, or its own willful misconduct, except that:

(i) this Subsection shall not be construed to limit the effect of Subsection (a) of this Section;

(ii) the Master Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a chairman or vice-chairman of the board of directors, the chairman or vice-chairman of the executive committee of the board of directors, the president, any vice president, the secretary, any assistant secretary, the treasurer, any assistant treasurer, the cashier, any assistant cashier, any trust officer or assistant trust officer, the controller and any assistant controller or any other officer or employee of the Master Trustee customarily performing functions similar to those performed by any of the above designated officers or with respect to a particular matter, any other officer or employee to whom such matter is referred because of his knowledge of and familiarity with the particular subject, unless it shall be proved that the Master Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts; (iii) the Master Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted to be taken by it in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Outstanding Obligations relating to the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Master Trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred upon the Master Trustee, under this Indenture, except under the circumstances set forth in subsection (b) of Section 4.09 hereof requiring the consent of the Holders of all the Obligations at the time Outstanding; and

(iv) no provision of this Indenture shall require the Master Trustee to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial or other liability, directly or indirectly, in the performance of any of its duties hereunder, or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers.

(d) Whether or not therein expressly so provided, every provision of this Indenture relating to the conduct or affecting the liability of or affording protection to the Master Trustee shall be subject to the provisions of this Section.

Section 5.02. <u>Certain Rights of Master Trustee</u>. Except as otherwise provided in Section 5.01:

(a) The Master Trustee may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, consent, order, bond, note or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties.

(b) Any request, direction or statement of any Member of the Obligated Group mentioned herein shall be sufficiently evidenced by an Officer's Certificate and any action of the Governing Body may be sufficiently evidenced by a copy of a resolution certified by the secretary or an assistant secretary of the Member of the Obligated Group to have been duly adopted by the Governing Body and to be in full force and effect on the date of such certification and delivered to the Master Trustee.

(c) Whenever in the administration of this Indenture the Master Trustee shall deem it desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking, suffering or omitting any action hereunder, the Trustee (unless other evidence be herein specifically prescribed) may, in the absence of bad faith on its part, rely upon an Officer's Certificate.

(d) The Master Trustee may consult with counsel or independent auditor and the written advice of such counsel or independent auditor or any Opinion of Counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection in respect of any action taken, suffered or omitted by it hereunder in good faith and in reliance thereon.

41

NY1 5867000v.4

the powers of a trust company as to trusts, qualified to do and doing trust business in one or more states of the United States of America and having an officially reported combined capital, surplus, undivided profits and reserves aggregating at least Ten Million Dollars (\$10,000,000), if there is such an institution willing, qualified and able to accept the trust upon reasonable or customary terms.

Every successor Master Trustee howsoever appointed hereunder shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its predecessor and also to each Member of the Obligated Group an instrument in writing, accepting such appointment hereunder, and thereupon such successor Master Trustee, without further action, shall become fully vested with all the rights, immunities, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor, and such predecessor shall execute and deliver an instrument transferring to such successor Master Trustee all the rights, powers and trusts of such predecessor. The predecessor Master Trustee shall execute any and all documents necessary or appropriate to convey all interest it may have to the successor Master Trustee. The predecessor Master Trustee shall promptly deliver all material information it may have obtained concerning the trust to the successor Master.

Each successor Master Trustee, not later than ten (10) days after its assumption of the duties hereunder, shall mail a notice of such assumption to each registered Holder.

Section 5.05. Compensation and Reimbursement. Each Member of the Obligated Group, respectively, agrees:

(a) To pay the Master Trustee from time to time reasonable compensation for all services rendered by it hereunder (which compensation shall not be limited by any provision of law in regard to the compensation of a trustee of an express trust), and, if not paid when due, shall be subject to interest at the base rate of the Master Trustee.

(b) Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, to reimburse the Master Trustee upon its request for all reasonable expenses, disbursements and advances incurred or made by the Master Trustee, including fees on collection and enforcement, in accordance with any provision of this Indenture (including the reasonable compensation and the expenses and disbursements of its counsel and its agents), except any such expense, disbursement or advance as may be attributable to its negligence or bad faith. If such amounts are not paid when due, they shall be subject to interest at the base rate of the Master Trustee.

(c) To indemnify the Master Trustee for, and to hold it harmless against, any loss, liability or expense incurred without negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct on its part, arising out of or in connection with the acceptance or administration of this trust or its duties hereunder, including the reasonable costs and expenses of defending itself against any claim or liability in connection with the exercise or performance of any of its powers or duties hereunder. (e) The Master Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers vested in it by this Indenture whether on its own motion or at the request or direction of any of the Holders pursuant to this Indenture which shall be in the opinion of the Master Trustee likely to involve expense or liability not otherwise provided for herein, unless one or more Holders or such Holders making such request shall have offered and furnished to the Master Trustee reasonable security or indemnity satisfactory to the Master Trustee against the costs, expenses and liabilities which might be incurred by it in compliance with such request or direction or otherwise in connection herewith.

(f) The Master Trustee shall not be bound to make any investigation into the facts or matters stated in any resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, consent, order, bond, note or other paper or document, but the Master Trustee, in its discretion, may make such further inquiry or investigation into such facts or matters as it may see fit, and, if the Master Trustee shall determine to make such further inquiry or investigation, it shall be entitled to examine the books, records and premises of any Member of the Obligated Group, personally or by agent or attorney.

(g) The Master Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereunder or perform any duties hereunder either directly or by or through agents or attorneys.

Section 5.03. <u>Right to Deal in Obligations and Related Bonds</u>. The Master Trustee may in good faith buy, sell or hold and deal in any Obligations and Related Bonds with like effect as if it were not such Master Trustee and may commence or join in any action which a Holder or holder of a Related Bond is entitled to take with like effect as if the Master Trustee were not the Master Trustee.

Section 5.04. Removal and Resignation of the Master Trustee. The Master Trustee may resign on its motion or may be removed at any time by an instrument or instruments in writing signed by the Holders of not less than a majority of the principal amount of Obligations then Outstanding. No such resignation or removal shall become effective unless and until a successor Master Trustee (or temporary successor trustee as provided below) has been appointed and has assumed the trusts created hereby. Written notice of such resignation or removal shall be given to the Members of the Obligated Group and to each Holder at the address then reflected on the books of the Master Trustee and such resignation or removal shall take effect upon the appointment and qualification of a successor Master Trustee. A successor Master Trustee may be appointed at the direction of the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Obligatied Group or any Holder may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Master Trustee may apply to any court of such the as a successor is appointed as above provided.

Unless otherwise ordered by a court or regulatory body having competent jurisdiction, or unless required by law, any successor Master Trustee shall be a trust company or bank having $_{\rm NY1\,58770004}$

42

As security for the performance of the Members of the Obligated Group under this Section, the Master Trustee shall have a lien prior to any Obligations upon all property and funds held or collected by the Master Trustee as such, except funds held in trust for the payment of principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on Obligations.

Section 5.06. <u>Recitals and Representations</u>. The recitals, statements and representations contained herein, or in any Obligation (excluding the Master Trustee's authentication on the Obligations) shall be taken and construed as made by and on the part of the Members of the Obligated Group, respectively, and not by the Master Trustee, and the Master Trustee neither assumes nor shall be under any responsibility for the correctness of the same.

The Master Trustee makes no representation as to, and is not responsible for, the validity or sufficiency hereof, of the Obligations, or the validity or sufficiency of insurance to be provided. The Master Trustee shall be deemed not to have made representations as to the security afforded hereby or hereunder or as to the validity or sufficiency of such document. The Master Trustee shall not be concerned with or accountable to anyone for the use or application of any moneys which shall be released or withdrawn in accordance with the provisions hereof. The Master Trustee shall have no duty of inquiry with respect to any default or Events of Default described herein without actual knowledge of or receipt by the Master Trustee of written notice of a default or an Event of Default from a Member of the Obligated Group or any Holder.

Section 5.07. <u>Separate or Co-Master Trustee</u>. At any time or times, for the purpose of meeting any legal requirements of any jurisdiction, the Master Trustee shall have power to appoint, and, upon the request of the Holders of at least twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of Obligations Outstanding, shall appoint, one or more Persons approved by the Master Trustee either to act as co-trustee or co-trustees, jointly with the Master Trustee, or to act as separate trustee or separate trustees, and to vest in such person repersons, in such capacity, such rights, powers, duties, trusts or obligations as the Master Trustee may consider necessary or desirable, subject to the remaining provisions of this Section.

Every co-trustee or separate trustee shall, to the extent permitted by law but to such extent only, be appointed subject to the following terms, namely:

(a) The Obligations shall be authenticated and delivered solely by the Master Trustee.

(b) All rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations conferred or imposed upon the trustees shall be conferred or imposed upon and exercised or performed by the Master Trustee, or by the Master Trustee and such co-trustee or co-trustees or separate trustee or separate trustees jointly, as shall be provided in the instrument appointing such co-trustee or co-trustees or separate trustee or separate trustees, except to the extent that, under the law of any jurisdiction in which any particular act or acts are to be performed, the Master Trustee shall be performed by such co-trustee or co-trustees or separate trustee or separate trustees. NU second. (c) Any request in writing by the Master Trustee to any co-trustee or separate trustee to take or to refrain from taking any action hereunder shall be sufficient warrant for the taking, or the refraining from taking, of such action by such co-trustee or separate trustee.

(d) Any co-trustee or separate trustee may, to the extent permitted by law, delegate to the Master Trustee the exercise of any right, power, trust, duty or obligation, discretionary or otherwise.

(e) The Master Trustee at any time, by any instrument in writing, may accept the resignation of or remove any co-trustee or separate trustee appointed under this Section. Upon the request of the Master Trustee, the Members of the Obligated Group shall join with the Master Trustee in the execution, delivery and performance of all instruments and agreements necessary or proper to effectuate such resignation or removal.

(f) No trustee or any paying agent hereunder shall be personally liable by reason of any act or omission of any other trustee or paying agent hereunder, nor will the act or omission of any trustee or paying agent hereunder be imputed to any other trustee or paying agent.

(g) Any demand, request, direction, appointment, removal, notice, consent, waiver or other action in writing delivered to the Master Trustee shall be deemed to have been delivered to each such co-trustee or separate trustee.

(h) Any moneys, papers, securities or other items of personal property received by any such co-trustee or separate trustee hereunder shall forthwith, so far as may be permitted by law, be turned over to the Master Trustee.

Upon the acceptance in writing of such appointment by any such co-trustee or separate trustee, it shall be vested with such rights, powers, duties or obligations, as shall be specified in the instrument of appointment jointly with the Master Trustee (except insofar as local law makes it necessary for any such co-trustee or separate trustee to act alone) subject to all the terms hereof. Every such acceptance shall be filed with the Master Trustee. To the extent permitted by law, any co-trustee or separate trustee may, at any time by an instrument in writing, constitute the Master Trustee its or his attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power and authority to perform all acts and things and to exercise all discretion on its or his behalf and in its or his name.

In the event that the Master Trustee shall resign or be removed, no co-trustee or separate trustee appointed pursuant to this Section 5.07 shall become the successor Master Trustee unless such co-trustee or separate trustee shall have been appointed Master Trustee pursuant to Section 5.04 hereof.

In case any co-trustee or separate trustee shall die, become incapable of acting, resign or be removed, all rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of said co-trustee or separate trustee

45

NY1 5867000v.4

Section 6.02. <u>Supplements Requiring Consent of Holders</u>. (a) Other than Supplements referred to in Section 6.01 hereof and subject to the terms and provisions and limitations contained in this Article and not otherwise, the Holders of not less than fifty-one percent (51%) in aggregate principal amount of Obligations then Outstanding shall have the right, from time to time, anything contained herein to the contrary notwithstanding, to consent to and approve the execution by each Member of the Obligated Group, when authorized by resolution or other action of equal formality by its Governing Body, and the Master Trustee of such Supplements as shall be deemed necessary and desirable for the purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any particular, any of the terms or provisions contained herein; provided, however, nothing in this Section shall permit or be construed as permitting a Supplement which would:

(i) Effect a change in the times, amounts or currency of payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on any Obligation or a reduction in the principal amount or redemption price of any Obligation; reate of interest thereon, without the consent of the Holder of such Obligation;

 Permit the preference or priority of any Obligation over any other Obligation, without the consent of the Holders of all Obligations then Outstanding; or

(iii) Reduce the aggregate principal amount of Obligations then Outstanding the consent of the Holders of which is required to authorize such Supplement without the consent of the Holders of all Obligations then Outstanding.

(b) If at any time each Member of the Obligated Group shall request the Master Trustee to enter into a Supplement pursuant to this Section, which request is accompanied by a copy of the resolution or other action of its Governing Body certified by its secretary or if it has no secretary, its comparable officer, and the proposed Supplement and if the Master Trustee shall receive an instrument or instruments purporting to be executed by the Holders of not less than the aggregate principal amount or number of Obligations specified in subsection (a) for the Supplement in question which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed Supplement and shall specifically consent to and approve the execution thereof in substantially the form of the copy thereof as on file with the Master Trustee, thereupon, but not otherwise, the Master Trustee may execute such Supplement in substantially such form, without liability or responsibility to any Holder, whether or not such Holder shall have consented thereto.

(c) Any such consent shall be binding upon the Holder giving such consent and upon any subsequent Holder of such Obligation and of any Obligation issued in exchange therefor (whether or not such subsequent Holder thereof) has notice thereof), unless such consent is revoked in writing by the Holder of such Obligation giving such consent or by a subsequent Holder thereof by filing with the Master Trustee, prior to the execution by the Master Trustee of such Supplement, such revocation and, if such Obligation is transferable by delivery, proof that NV15897000-K shall, so far as permitted by law, vest in and be exercised by the Master Trustee unless and until a successor co-trustee or separate trustee shall be appointed in the manner herein provided.

Section 5.08. <u>Availability of Records</u>. Anything in this Master Trust Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the Master Trustee shall provide copies to any beneficial owner of Obligations, at the Corporation's expense, upon written or facsimile request from any beneficial owner of Obligations identified in the records kept by the Master Trustee, of all records and documents the Master Trustee maintains in connection with the Obligations, the Corporation or any project funded by the Obligations. These include, without limitation, lists of Holders and beneficial owners, fund balances for all funds and accounts established under the Master Trust Indenture and records showing the timeliness of payments. Availability of records and documents for inspection at the offices of the Master Trustee does not satisfy this Section.

ARTICLE VI

SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS

Section 6.01. <u>Supplements Not Requiring Consent of Holders</u>. Each Member of the Obligated Group, when authorized by resolution or other action of equal formality by its Governing Body, and the Master Trustee may, without the consent of, but with notice to, the Holders, enter into one or more Supplements for one or more of the following purposes:

(a) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission herein.

(b) To correct or supplement any provision herein which may be inconsistent with any other provision herein, or to make any other provisions with respect to matters or questions arising hereunder and which shall not materially and adversely affect the interests of the Holders.

(c) To grant or confer ratably upon all of the Holders any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully be granted or conferred upon them subject to the provisions of Section 6.02(a).

(d) To qualify this Indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or corresponding provisions of federal laws from time to time in effect.

(e) To create and provide for the issuance of Indebtedness as permitted hereunder.

(f)~ To obligate a successor to any Member of the Obligated Group as provided in Section 3.09.

(g) To comply with the provisions of any federal or state securities law.

NY1 5867000v.4

46

such Obligation is held by the signer of such revocation in the manner permitted by Section 8.01 of this Indenture. At any time after the Holders of the required principal amount or number of Obligations shall have filed their consents to the Supplement, the Master Trustee shall make and file with each Member of the Obligated Group a written statement to that effect. Such written statement shall be conclusive that such consents have been so filed.

(d) If the Holders of the required principal amount of the Obligations Outstanding shall have consented to and approved the execution of such Supplement as herein provided, no Holder shall have any right to object to the execution thereof, or to object to any of the terms and provisions contained therein or the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the propriety of the execution thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the Master Trustee or any Member of the Obligated Group from executing the same or from taking any action pursuant to the provisions thereof.

Section 6.03. <u>Execution and Effect of Supplements</u>. (a) In executing any Supplement permitted by this Article, the Master Trustee shall be entitled to receive and to rely upon an Opinion of Counsel stating that the execution of such Supplement is authorized or permitted hereby. The Master Trustee may but shall not be obligated to enter into any such Supplement which affects the Master Trustee's own rights, duties or immunities.

(b) Upon the execution and delivery of any Supplement in accordance with this Article, the provisions hereof shall be modified in accordance therewith and such Supplement shall form a part hereof for all purposes and every Holder of an Obligation theretofore or thereafter authenticated and delivered hereunder shall be bound thereby.

(c) Any Obligation authenticated and delivered after the execution and delivery of any Supplement in accordance with this Article may, and if required by the issuer of such Obligation or the Master Trustee shall, bear a notation in form approved by the Master Trustee as to any matter provided for in such Supplement. If the issuer of any Obligations then Outstanding or the Master Trustee shall so determine, new Obligations so modified as to conform in the opinion of the Master Trustee and the Governing Body of such issuer to any such Supplement may be prepared and executed by the issuer and authenticated and delivered by the Master Trustee in exchange for and upon surrender of Obligations then Outstanding.

ARTICLE VII

SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE OF INDENTURE

Section 7.01. <u>Satisfaction and Discharge of Indenture</u>. If (a) the Obligated Group Representative shall deliver to the Master Trustee for cancellation all Obligations theretofore authenticated (other than any Obligations which shall have been mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen and which shall have been replaced or paid as provided in the Supplement) and not theretofore cancelled, or (b) all Obligations not theretofore cancelled or delivered to the Master Trustee for cancellation shall have become due and payable and money sufficient to pay the NY1587000-4

same shall have been deposited with the Master Trustee, or (c) all Obligations that have not become due and payable and have not been cancelled or delivered to the Master Trustee for cancellation shall be Defeased Obligations, and if in all cases the Members of the Obligated Group shall also pay or cause to be paid all other sums payable hereunder by the Members of the Obligated Group or any thereof, then this Indenture shall cease to be of further effect, and the Master Trustee, on demand of the Members of the Obligated Group, and at the cost and expense of the Members of the Obligated Group, shall execute proper instruments acknowledging satisfaction of and discharging this Indenture. Each Member of the Obligated Group, respectively, hereby agrees to reimburse the Master Trustee for any costs or expenses theretofore and thereafter reasonably and properly incurred by the Master Trustee in connection with this Indenture or such Obligations.

Section 7.02. <u>Payment of Obligations after Discharge of Lien</u>. Notwithstanding the discharge of the lien hereof as in this Article provided, the Master Trustee shall nevertheless retain such rights, powers and duties hereunder as may be necessary and convenient for the payment of amounts due or to become due on the Obligations and the registration, transfer, exchange and replacement of Obligations as provided herein.

Nevertheless, any moneys held by the Master Trustee or any paying agent for the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on any Obligation remaining nclaimed for five (5) years after the principal of all Obligations has become due and payable, whether at maturity or upon proceedings for redemption or by declaration as provided herein, shall then be paid to the Members of the Obligated Group, as their interests may appear, and thereafter the Holders of any Obligations not theretofore presented shall be entitled to look only to the Members of the Obligated Group for payment as unsecured creditors, and the Master Trustee shall have no responsibility with respect to such money.

ARTICLE VIII

CONCERNING THE HOLDERS

Section 8.01. <u>Evidence of Acts of Holders</u>. (a) In the event that any request, direction or consent is requested or permitted hereunder of the Holders, the registered owners of Related Bonds then outstanding shall be deemed to be such Holders for the purpose of any such request, direction or consent in the proportion that the aggregate principal amount of Related Bonds then outstanding held by each such owner of Related Bonds bears to the aggregate principal amount of all Related Bonds then outstanding.

(b) As to any request, direction, consent or other instrument provided hereby to be signed and executed by the Holders, such action may be in any number of concurrent writings, shall be of similar tenor, and may be signed or executed by such Holders in person or by agent appointed in writing.

NY1 5867000v.4

49

Section 8.03. Instruments Executed by Holders Bind Future Holders. At any time prior to (but not after) the time when the Master Trustee takes action in reliance upon evidence, as provided in Section 8.01 hereof, of the taking of any action by the Holders of the percentage in aggregate principal amount of Obligations specified herein in connection with such action, any Holder of such an Obligation or Related Bond that is shown by such evidence to be included in Obligations the Holders of which have consented to such action may, by filing written notice with the Master Trustee and upon proof of holding as provided in Section 8.01, revoke such action so far as concerns such Obligation or Related Bond. Except upon such revocation any such action taken by the Holder of an Obligation or Related Bond in any direction, demand, request, waiver, consent, vote or other action of the Holder of such Obligation or Related Bond which by any provision hereof is required or permitted to be given shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holder and upon all future Holders and owners of such Obligation or Related Bond, and of any Obligation or Related Bond issued in lieu thereof, whether or not any notation in regard thereto is made upon such Obligation or Related Bond. Any action taken by the Holders of the percentage in aggregate principal amount of Obligations specified herein in connection with such action shall be conclusively binding upon each Member of the Obligated Group, the Master Trustee and the Holders of all of such Obligations or Related Bonds.

ARTICLE IX

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 9.01. Limitation of Rights. With the exception of rights herein expressly conferred, nothing expressed or mentioned in or to be implied from this Indenture or the Obligations issued hereunder is intended or shall be construed to give to any Person other than each Member of the Obligated Group, the Master Trustee, and the Holders hereunder any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under or in respect to this Indenture or any covenants, conditions and provisions herein contained; this Indenture and all of the covenants, conditions and provisions hereof being intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties mentioned in this Section.

Section 9.02. Severability. If any one or more sections, clauses, sentences or parts hereof shall for any reason be questioned in any court of competent jurisdiction and shall be adjudged invalid or unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remaining provisions hereof, or the Obligations issued pursuant hereto, but shall be confined to the specific sections, clauses, sentences and parts so adjudged.

Section 9.03. Holidays. Except to the extent a Supplement or an Obligation provides otherwise:

Subject to subsection (b), when any action is provided herein to be done (a) on a day or within a time period named, and the day or the last day of the period falls on a day on which banking institutions in the jurisdiction where the Corporate Trust Office is located are authorized by law to remain closed, the action may be done on the next ensuing day not a day on 51

The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such (i) writing may be proved by the certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take acknowledgments in such jurisdiction, that the person signing such writing acknowledged before him the execution thereof, or by the affidavit of a witness of such execution; and

(ii) The ownership of Related Bonds may be proved by the registration books for such Related Bonds maintained pursuant to the Related Bond Indenture.

Nothing in this Section shall be construed as limiting the Master Trustee to (d) the proof herein specified, it being intended that the Master Trustee may accept any other evidence of the matters herein stated which it may deem sufficient.

Any action taken or suffered by the Master Trustee pursuant to any provision hereof upon the request or with the assent of any person who at the time is the Holder of any Obligation, shall be conclusive and binding upon all future Holders of the same Obligation

Section 8.02. Obligations or Related Bonds Owned by Members of Obligated Group. In determining whether the Holders of the requisite aggregate principal amount of Obligations have concurred in any demand, direction, request, notice, consent, waiver or other action under this Indenture, Obligations or Related Bonds that are owned by any Member of the Obligated Group or by any person directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by or under direct or indirect common control with such Member shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding or outstanding under the Related Bond Indenture, as the case may be, for the purpose of any such determination, provided that for the purposes of determining whether the Master Trustee shall be protected in relying on any such direction, consent or waiver, only such Obligations or Related Bonds which the Trustee has actual notice or knowledge are so owned shall be so disregarded. Obligations or Related Bonds so owned that have been pledged in good faith may be regarded as Outstanding or outstanding under the Related Bond Indenture, as the case may be, for purposes of this Section, if the pledgee shall establish to the satisfaction of the Master Trustee the pledgee's right to vote such Obligations or Related Bonds and that the pledgee is not a person directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by or under direct or indirect common control with any Member of the Obligated Group. In case of a dispute as to such right, any decision by the Master Trustee taken upon the advice of counsel shall be full protection to the Master Trustee

NY1 5867000v 4

50

which banking institutions in such jurisdiction are authorized by law to remain closed with effect as though done on the day or within the time period named

When the date on which principal of or interest or premium on any (b) Obligation is due and payable is a day on which banking institutions at the place of payment are authorized by law to remain closed, payment may be made on the next ensuing day on which banking institutions at such place are not authorized by law to remain closed with the same effect as though payment were made on the due date, and, if such payment is made, no interest shall accrue from and after such due date.

Section 9.04. <u>Governing Law</u>. This Indenture and any Obligations issued hereunder are contracts made under the laws of the State of Vermont and shall be governed by and construed in accordance with such laws

Section 9.05. Counterparts. This Indenture may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute one instrument

Section 9.06. <u>Immunity of Individuals</u>. No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any Obligations issued hereunder or for any claim based thereon or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement herein against any past, present or future officer, director, trustee, member, employee or agent of any Member of the Obligated Group, and all such liability of any such individual as such is hereby expressly waived and released as a condition of and in consideration for the execution hereof and the issuance of Obligations issued hereunder

Section 9.07. <u>Binding Effect</u>. This instrument shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon each Member of the Obligated Group, the Master Trustee and their respective successors and assigns subject to the limitations contained herein.

Section 9.08. Notices. (a) Unless otherwise expressly specified or permitted by the terms hereof, all notices, consents or other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be deemed sufficiently given or served if given in writing, mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

52

 (i) If to any Member of the Obligated Group, addressed to Gifford Medical Center, Inc., at its principal place of business, which on the date hereof is: 44 South Main Street, Randolph, Vermont 05060; Attention: Vice President of Finance:

If to the Master Trustee, addressed to it at 2 Burlington Square, (ii) Burlington, Vermont 05401; Attention: Institutional Trust Services; o

(iii) If to any registered Holder, addressed to such Holder at the address shown on the books of the Master Trustee kept pursuant hereto.

(b) Any Member of the Obligated Group or the Master Trustee may from time to time by notice in writing to the other and to the registered Holders designate a different address or addresses for notice hereunder.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Member of the Obligated Group has caused these presents to be signed in its name and on its behalf by its duly authorized officer and to evidence its acceptance of the trusts hereby created, the Master Trustee has caused these presents to be signed in its name and on its behalf by its duly authorized officer, all of as of the day and year first above written.

By

GIFFORD MEDICAL CENTER, INC.

By_____Authorized Officer

CHITTENDEN TRUST COMPANY, as Master Trustee

Authorized Officer

53

NY1 5867000v.4

54

APPENDIX C -PROPOSED FORM OF LEGAL OPINION

June 1, 2006

Vermont Educational and Health Buildings Financing Agency Montpelier, Vermont

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have examined Title 16, Chapter 131, Sections 3851 to 3862, inclusive, Vermont Statutes Annotated, as amended (the "Act"), and certified copies of the proceedings of the Board (the "Board") of Vermont Educational and Health Buildings Financing Agency, a body corporate and politic constituting a public instrumentality of the State of Vermont (the "Agency"), authorizing the issuance of revenue bonds of the Agency hereinafter described and other proofs submitted relative to the issuance of the following bonds (the "Bonds"):

\$20,315,000

VERMONT EDUCATIONAL AND HEALTH BUILDINGS FINANCING AGENCY VARIABLE RATE DEMAND HOSPITAL REVENUE BONDS (GIFFORD MEDICAL CENTER PROJECT) 2006 SERIES A

The Bonds are issued under and pursuant to the Act and a Trust Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2006 (the "Trust Agreement"), between the Agency and Chittenden Trust Company, as trustee (the "Trustee"), for the purpose of providing funds, together with other available funds, to (i) refund a portion of the Agency's outstanding Variable Rate Demand Hospital Revenue Bonds (Gifford Medical Center Project) 2006 Series A, (ii) finance a portion of the cost of the Project (as defined in the Loan Agreement hereinafter mentioned) for Gifford Medical Center, Inc. (the "Corporation"), in Middlebury, Vermont, and (iii) pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

The Agency will lend the proceeds of the Bonds to the Corporation under a Loan Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2006 (the "Loan Agreement"), between the Agency and the Corporation. The Bonds are secured by, among other things, payments to be made by the Corporation on its Obligation No. 1, dated as of May 1, 2006 ("Obligation No. 1"), issued by the Corporation under the Master Trust Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2006, as supplemented (the "Master Trust Indenture"), between the Corporation and Chittenden Trust Company, as master trustee (the "Master Trustee"), as such Master Trust Indenture is supplemented by Supplemental Indenture for Obligation No. 1, dated as of May 1, 2006 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and, together with the Master Trust Indenture, the "Master Indenture"), between the Corporation and the Master Trustee. Obligation No. 1 is being delivered to the Agency as evidence of its obligation to repay the loan of the proceeds of the Bonds, and assigned by the Agency to the

Trustee as security for the payment of the Bonds. Obligation No. 1 is a direct, general and unconditional obligation of the Corporation secured as provided in the Master Indenture.

The Bonds bear interest from the original issuance date thereof initially at an adjustable interest rate and are subject to redemption prior to their maturity in the manner and upon the terms and conditions set forth therein and in the Trust Agreement. The Bonds are issuable in fully registered form in denominations that vary according to the interest mode in which the Bonds may be from time to time.

The Bonds can be converted from one interest mode to a different interest mode upon compliance with the terms of the Trust Agreement. The Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory tender for purchase at such times, under such circumstances and upon the terms and conditions as are set forth in the Trust Agreement.

The Corporation is obligated under Obligation No. 1 and the Loan Agreement to make payments sufficient to pay the principal of, and the redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds when due. The Bonds are also entitled to the benefit of the Credit Facility (as defined in the Trust Agreement).

We have also examined one of the Bonds as executed and authenticated.

Based upon such examinations, we are of the opinion that:

1. The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and issued.

2. The Trust Agreement has been duly authorized and executed by the Agency and is a valid, binding and enforceable agreement in accordance with its terms.

3. The Bonds are valid and binding limited obligations of the Agency payable in accordance with their terms from payments to be made by the Corporation pursuant to Obligation No. 1 and the Loan Agreement, by the Bank pursuant to the Credit Facility, certain funds held by the Trustee under the Trust Agreement and money attributable to the proceeds of the Bonds and the income from the investment thereof, and, under certain circumstances, proceeds of insurance, condemnation awards and remedial action taken pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Loan Agreement or the Trust Agreement.

4. The Loan Agreement has been duly authorized and executed by the Agency and the Corporation and is a valid, binding and enforceable agreement in accordance with its terms.

5. The Master Indenture has been duly authorized and executed by the Corporation and is a valid, binding and enforceable agreement in accordance with its terms.

6. The Bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a debt or liability of the State of Vermont, and neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State of Vermont is pledged for the payment of the principal of or the interest on the Bonds.

7. Based on existing law and assuming compliance by the Corporation and the Agency with their respective covenants to comply with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), the interest on the Bonds is not includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. Interest on the Bonds will not be treated as a specific preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax on individuals and corporations imposed by the Code; however, such interest will be included in the computation of the alternative minimum tax on corporations imposed by the Code. Failure by the Agency or the Corporation to comply with their respective covenants to comply with the provisions of the Code regarding use, expenditure, and investment of proceeds of the Bonds and the timely payment of certain investment earnings to the Treasury of the United States may cause interest on the Bonds to be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to their date of issuance. The covenant of the Agency described above does not require the Agency to make any financial contribution for which it does not receive funds from the Corporation. The opinion expressed in the first sentence of this paragraph may not be relied upon to the extent that the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes is adversely affected as a result of the taking of any action in reliance upon the opinion of counsel other than this firm. In rendering the opinion set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph, we have relied upon the representations made by the Corporation with respect to certain material facts within its knowledge which we have not independently verified and the opinion of McKee, Giuliani & Cleveland, P.C., Montpelier, Vermont, counsel for the Corporation, that the Corporation is exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and that, to the best of such counsel's knowledge, the Corporation has done nothing to impair such status. Other than as described herein, we have not addressed and we are not opining on the tax consequences to any investor of the investment in, or receipt of any interest on, the Bonds.

The Act provides that bonds of the Agency and the income therefrom shall at all times be exempt from taxation in the State of Vermont, except for transfer and estate taxes.

The enforceability of the Master Indenture, the Trust Agreement and the Loan Agreement and the obligations of the aforementioned parties with respect to such documents are subject to bankruptcy, insolvency and other laws affecting creditors' rights generally. To the extent that the remedies under the Master Indenture, the Trust Agreement and the Loan Agreement require enforcement by a court of equity, the enforceability thereof may be limited by such principles of equity as the court having jurisdiction may impose.

In rendering this opinion we have relied upon the opinion of McKee, Giuliani & Cleveland, P.C., Montpelier, Vermont, counsel to the Corporation, with respect to the due organization and valid existence of the Corporation, its power and authority with respect to the transactions contemplated by, and its due authorization, execution and delivery of, the Master Indenture, Obligation No. 1 and the Loan Agreement.

Respectfully submitted,